Public Document Pack

Agenda
Notice of a public meeting of

Audit Committee (informal meeting)

To:

Councillors Cliff Lunn (Chair), Karl Arthur,
Margaret Atkinson (Vice-Chair), Robert Baker,
Philip Broadbank, Jim Clark, David Hugill, Don MacKay,
Mr Nick Grubb, Mr David Marsh and Mr David Portlock.

Date:

Monday, 21st March, 2022

Time:

1.30 pm

Venue:

Remote meeting held via Microsoft Teams

Under his delegated decision making powers in the Officers’ Delegation Scheme in the Council’s
Constitution, the Chief Executive Officer has power, in cases of emergency, to take any decision
which could be taken by the Council, the Executive or a committee.
Following on from the expiry of the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus)
(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales)
Regulations 2020 (“the 2020 Regulations”), which allowed for committee meetings to be held
remotely, the County Council resolved at its meeting on 5 May 2021 (before the expiry of the
Regulations) that, for the present time, in light of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic
circumstances, remote live-broadcast committee meetings should continue as informal meetings
of the committee Members, with any formal decisions required being taken by the Chief Executive
Officer under his emergency decision making powers and after consultation with other Officers
and Members as appropriate and after taking into account any views of the relevant Committee
Members and all relevant information. This approach has been periodically reviewed since that
time and will be further reviewed at the Council AGM on 18 May 2022.
The meeting will be available to view once the meeting commences, via the following link www.northyorks.gov.uk/livemeetings Recordings of previous live broadcast meetings are also
available there.

Business
1.

Apologies for Absence

2.

Minutes of the Informal Meeting of the Committee held on 13
December 2021

3.

Declarations of Interest

Enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Ruth Gladstone Tel: 01609 532555
or e-mail ruth.gladstone@northyorks.gov.uk
Website: www.northyorks.gov.uk
OFFICIAL

Page 1

(Pages 5 - 12)

4.

Public Questions or Statements
Members of the public may ask questions or make statements at this meeting if they
have given notice (including the text of the question/statement) to Ruth Gladstone of
Democratic Services (contact details at the foot of page 1) by midday on Wednesday 16
March 2022. Each speaker should limit themselves to 3 minutes on any item. Members
of the public who have given notice will be invited to speak:

At this point in the meeting if their questions/statements relate to matters which
are not otherwise on the Agenda (subject to an overall time limit of 30 minutes).



When the relevant Agenda item is being considered if they wish to speak on a
matter which is on the Agenda for this meeting.

If you are exercising your right to speak at this meeting, but do not wish to be recorded,
please inform the Chairman who will instruct anyone who may be taking a recording to
cease while you speak.
5.

Progress on Issues Raised by the Committee

(Pages 13 - 14)

Joint report of the Corporate Director – Strategic Resources and the Assistant Chief
Executive (Legal and Democratic Services)
6.

External Audit Annual Report 2020/21

(Pages 15 - 34)

Report of Deloitte
7.

External Audit Planning Report for Year Ending 31 March 2022 North Yorkshire County Council

(Pages 35 - 64)

Report of Deloitte
8.

External Audit Planning Report for Year Ending 31 March 2022 North Yorkshire Pension Fund

(Pages 65 - 94)

Report of Deloitte
9.

Progress on 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan

(Pages 95 102)

Report of the Head of Internal Audit
10.

2022/23 Internal Audit Plan Consultation

(Pages 103 108)

Report of the Head of Internal Audit
11.

Accounting Policies

(Pages 109 114)

Report of the Corporate Director – Strategic Resoures
12.

Treasury Management Strategy

(Pages 115 176)

Report of the Corporate Director – Strategic Resources
13.

Corporate Governance

(Pages 177 194)

Report of the Corporate Director – Strategic Resources

Page 2
OFFICIAL

14.

Information Governance Annual Report

(Pages 195 200)

Report of the Corporate Director – Strategic Resources
15.1

Central Services Directorate - Internal Audit Work

(Pages 201 206)

Report of the Head of Internal Audit
15.2

Central Services Directorate - Internal Control Matters

(Pages 207 228)

Report of the Corporate Director – Strategic Resources
16.

Programme of Work

(Pages 229 230)

Report of the Corporate Director – Strategic Resources
17.

Other business which the Chairman agrees should be considered
as a matter of urgency because of special circumstances

Barry Khan
Assistant Chief Executive
(Legal and Democratic Services)
County Hall
Northallerton
Friday, 11 March 2022

Page 3
OFFICIAL

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2
North Yorkshire County Council
Audit Committee
Minutes of the informal remote meeting held on Monday, 13th December, 2021 commencing at
1.30 pm.
County Councillor Cliff Lunn in the Chair; plus County Councillors Karl Arthur, Margaret Atkinson,
Philip Broadbank, Jim Clark, David Hugill, Don MacKay, Mr Nick Grubb, Mr David Marsh and
Mr David Portlock
In attendance: County Councillor Carl Les
Officers present: Kevin Draisey, Gary Fielding, Anton Hodge, Karen Iveson, Andrew Jarvis, John
Raine, Fiona Sowerby, Max Thomas, Richard Webb and Ruth Gladstone
Other Attendees: Nicola Wright and Nick Rayner
Apologies: County Councillor Robert Baker
Copies of all documents considered are in the Minute Book

237

Minutes of the informal meeting of the Committee held on 25 October 2021
Resolved –
That the Minutes of the informal meeting of Audit Committee Members held on 25 October
2021, having been printed and circulated, be taken as read and be confirmed and signed
by the Chairman as a correct record.

238

Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.

239

Public Questions or Statements
There were no questions or statements from members of the public.

240

Progress on Issues Raised by the Committee
Considered –
The joint report of the Corporate Director – Strategic Resources and the Assistant Chief
Executive (Legal and Democratic Services) which advised of progress made on issues
which the Committee had raised at previous meetings, and other matters that had arisen
since the Committee’s last meeting and related to the work of the Committee.
Gary Fielding (Corporate Director – Strategic Resources) introduced the report.
Resolved –

Page 5
OFFICIAL

That the report be noted.

241

External Audit Update
Considered –
The verbal report of Nicola Wright (Audit Partner, Deloitte) advising of progress of the
external audit of the County Council’s accounts, including the accounts of North Yorkshire
Pension Fund. She reminded Members there were two parts to achieving the sign-off of
the 2020/21 accounts:(i)

The remediation work on the 2019/20 accounts that linked to the FRC review – The
remediation work was now complete and there remained only one person to confirm
their satisfaction, which was expected to happen either that afternoon or the
following morning. This work had confirmed that there was no issue with the
2019/20 accounts. However, with regard to the large adjustment which had been
made to the valuation balance of schools within the 2019/20 accounts, the FRC
reviewer had asked Deloitte whether there should have been a prior year adjustment
in a similar fashion, and Deloitte had not believed so, and Deloitte had confirmed
that. However, Deloitte should have reported, to the Audit Committee, the value,
which was not material. Therefore, Deloitte would be adding that into their updated
2020/21 report for clarity and including it in the representation letter. This did not
require change to the accounts which had been signed for the previous year.

(ii)

Once the remediation work on the 2019/20 accounts was signed off, either later that
day or the following morning, Deloitte would be in a position to close down the
2020/21 financial statements. Nicola Wright understood that there had been some
recent liaison with the Council’s Accountancy Team around “dotting the I’s and
crossing the T's”, but she hoped these would be signed-off that week.

In response to Members’ questions, the following points were clarified:•

The planned signing-off, later that day or the following morning, related only to the
remediation of the 2019/20 accounts. Thereafter, Deloitte would be able to proceed
to the signing of the 2020/21 accounts.

•

Ill health within Deloitte had delayed the external audit because different people,
who had been providing cover, had raised questions to which the Council’s
Accountancy Team had had to respond. To provide an assurance to Members,
Nicola Wright advised that she and Nick Rayner had been on a call that morning
with the review partner and she could not see a reason why Deloitte would not be
able to sign the accounts that week and to have it done before the Christmas break.

•

Gary Fielding (Corporate Director – Strategic Resources) reported that he was really
keen for the Council’s Accountancy Team to be able to move on to deliver local
government review in North Yorkshire, which was a massive piece of work, and that,
as long as the audit window remained opened, there was the prospect of Deloitte
raising more queries. He sought assurance that the only questions now being asked
were to deal with outstanding issues as opposed to new material. Nicola Wright
responded that she understood that the queries which Deloitte was raising were
things that had been asked previously and Deloitte was just “dotting the I’s and
crossing the T's”, making sure that their questions had been answered, that they
understood the explanations and answers provided by the Council, and that
Deloitte’s documentation was absolutely at the quality and standard it should be.
She did not believe that Deloitte had raised any new questions during the previous
few weeks but asked Gary Fielding to contact her if he thought new matters had
Page
been raised. Nicola Wright added
that 6there were 6 steps of review. Other people
OFFICIAL

were involved in the review and it was quite normal to have some tidying-up points
at this stage as an audit was being closed down, to make sure everything was
documented appropriately etc. She confirmed that no big pieces of work were
outstanding, and no questions were being asked which would lead to a change in
the accounts.
•

The delay in the external audit of the Council’s accounts did not reflect badly on the
Council because only around 9% of authorities had had their accounts signed-off by
the statutory deadline due to national issues surrounding the audit market, the audit
process and various reviews. Gary Fielding advised that around 50% of county
councils had now had their accounts signed-off, although that figure had been 9%
just a month or so previously.

Members were reminded that the Chief Executive Officer, using his emergency powers,
had previously delegated power to the Corporate Director – Strategic Resources, in
consultation with the Committee’s Chairman, to approve the Final Statement of Accounts
for 2020/21 and the Letter of Representation, unless there were any material changes
resulting from the final stages of the audit. Gary Fielding and Members commented that
they had heard nothing, in Nicola Wright’s verbal report to today’s meeting, to suggest
there were any major issues of principle to resolve from the final stages of the audit. Gary
Fielding advised that he considered that the power, previously delegated, was not timelimited and could be relied on for the signing of the 2020/21 accounts.
Resolved –

242

(a)

That the report be noted.

(b)

That the Corporate Director – Strategic Resources inform Audit Committee Members
once the accounts are signed-off.

The CIPFA Financial Management Code
Considered –
The report of the Corporate Director – Strategic Resources which provided information
about the aspects of County Council performance that had been regarded, in December
2020, as possible areas of improvement against CIPFA’s Financial Management Code
issued in October 2019.
Gary Fielding (Corporate Director – Strategic Resources) introduced the report,
highlighting that the first full year of compliance with the Code was 2021/22 although, due
to Covid pressures, CIPFA had advised that this could be done within a more flexible
framework.
During discussion, Members commented that they welcomed the approach being taken,
namely, that the Financial Governance Sub Workstream, within the Finance Workstream
under Local Government Reorganisation, would be picking up many of the areas identified
as amber within the Appendix to the report, in order to make best use of resources.
Resolved –
(a)

That the work to further enhance compliance with the Financial Management
Standards within CIPFA’s Financial Management Code be noted.

(b)

That any significant revisions to the Code, along with any corresponding proposed
actions by the County Council, be reported back to the Audit Committee.

Page 7
OFFICIAL

243

Risk Management - Progress Report
Considered –
The report of the Corporate Director – Strategic Resources which advised of the updated
Corporate Risk Register, the links between Directorate Risk Registers and the Corporate
Risk Register, and progress on other Risk Management related matters.
Fiona Sowerby (Head of Insurance and Risk Management) introduced the report and
responded to Members’ questions. During discussion, failures in the care market were
highlighted. Fiona Sowerby advised that the Health and Adult Services Directorate had a
team of staff which went into failing care homes and either took control or arranged for the
residents to be placed elsewhere. In particular, there had been a major issue with a home
care provider in the Selby area, which had posed a number of issues for the team.
However, there had been no instances where the County Council had not been able to
manage the situation.
Resolved –

244

(a)

That the updated Corporate Risk Register, as set out at Appendix A to the report,
and the links between Directorate Risk Registers and the Corporate Risk Register,
as set out at Appendix B to the report, be noted.

(b)

That the situation regarding other Risk Management related matters be noted.

Appointment of External Auditors
Considered –
The report of the Corporate Director – Strategic Resources which set out proposals for
appointing the external auditor to the Council (including the North Yorkshire Pension
Fund) for the accounts for the five-year period from 2023/24.
Karen Iveson (Assistant Director - Strategic Resources) introduced the report, highlighting
that the recommendation was that the Council should accept the invitation of Public Sector
Audit Appointments (PSAA) to opt into the sector-led option for the appointment of
external auditors to principal local government and police bodies with effect from 1 April
2023. Two other options were available, namely, (i) for the Council to appoint its own
external auditor following procedures set out in the relevant Act; and (ii) for the Council to
act jointly with other authorities to procure an external auditor following procedures set out
in the relevant Act. Karen Iveson highlighted that the date of 1 April 2023 coincided with
the transition to a new unitary council for North Yorkshire. The matter had been discussed
by the Section 151 Officers of the eight existing councils in North Yorkshire who were
supportive of opting into the sector-wide procurement conducted by PSAA because they
felt that, on balance, this would produce better outcomes and would be less burdensome
for the Council than a procurement undertaken locally.
Members discussed the report and expressed strong support for the officer
recommendation. They commented that the other two options would not be an efficient
use of officer time and would not be value for money. They added that this would be their
opinion even if a review of local government was not being implemented at the same time.
The officers clarified that the recommendation of this informal meeting would be submitted
to the Chief Executive and, subject to his approval, to a meeting of the Executive in
January 2022 and thereafter to a meeting of the full Council for formal decision.

Page 8
OFFICIAL

Resolved –
That the following be proposed to the Chief Executive Officer for consideration under his
emergency delegated powers:- The Audit Committee Members recommend that the
Council accepts the Public Sector Audit Appointments’ invitation to opt into the sector-led
option for the appointment of external auditors to principal local government and police
bodies for five financial years from 1 April 2023.

245

Procurement and Contract Management Update
Considered –
The report of the Corporate Director – Strategic Resources which provided an update on
the work of the Procurement and Contract Management Service including key
achievements, recent activity and the continuing response to the Covid-19 pandemic.
Kevin Draisey (Head of Procurement and Contract Management) introduced the report
and responded to Members’ questions. During discussion, the following confirmations
were provided:

The County Council’s Procurement and Contract Management Service was working
with officers from each of the North Yorkshire district councils to identify all contracts
that were due for renewal during the subsequent few years in order to avoid
duplication or the new Council being tied into something that it would not want in the
future.



The Procurement and Contract Management Service was working with the LEP to
support SMEs and no duplication of effort was taking place.



The construction industry had seen inflationary price increases and availability
issues recently and the County Council had had to change some of its specifications
and approach to reflect that. However, the County Council had not experienced
“huge” price increases reported elsewhere.



The resilience of the social care market was a particular concern and therefore the
County Council was providing support.



There had been no breaches of the County Council’s procurement rules.

It was reported that this was the last meeting of the Committee which Kevin Draisey would
attend because he had been appointed to a post within the Cabinet Office from January
2022. Members congratulated Kevin Draisey on his appointment, wished him well in his
new post, and thanked him for all the work he had done for the County Council.
Resolved –
The progress on key achievements and recent activity be noted.
246

Internal Audit Report on Information Technology, Corporate Themes and Contracts
Considered –
The report of the Head of Internal Audit which advised of the internal audit work completed
during the period to 30 November 2021 in respect of information technology, corporate
themes, and contracts and procurement.

Page 9
OFFICIAL

Max Thomas (Head of Internal Audit, Veritau Ltd) highlighted that the report set out the
areas which Veritau had reviewed, their findings, and the opinion which they had given.
Where Veritau had found processes or controls required improvement, they had agreed
appropriate actions with the relevant Council managers. These actions would be followed
up in due course to ensure they were implemented. Max Thomas also highlighted that
many of the Directorates’ audits, which were reported at other times through year,
included elements of IT controls, procurement and contract management and that
assurance was gained from those audits, as well as those listed in the report to today’s
meeting. Max Thomas reported that there were no particular issues to bring to the
Committee's attention, that Veritau continued to receive good cooperation with its audit
work, and the control weaknesses which had been identified had all been accepted by
management.
Resolved –
That the results of internal audit work performed in the period, in respect of the Council’s
information technology, corporate and contract arrangements, be noted.
247
a

Health and Adult Services Directorate - Internal Audit Work
Considered –
The report of the Head of Internal Audit which advised of the internal audit work performed
during the year ended 31 October 2021 for the Health and Adult Services Directorate.
Max Thomas (Head of Internal Audit, Veritau Ltd) highlighted that the report presented the
results of internal audit work completed in respect of the Health and Adult Services
Directorate in the year to 31 October 2021. Details of the audit reports finalised in the
year were listed in Appendix 1 to the report. In addition to those specific audits, Veritau
had provided additional support and advice to the Directorate through the year and some
of that work was summarised in paragraph 3.2 of the report. The report set out details of
the areas which Veritau had reviewed as part of each audit, the findings from those audits,
and the opinion given. Where Veritau had found areas or controls which required
improvement, they had agreed appropriate actions with managers within the Directorate.
Those actions would be followed up to ensure that they were implemented in due course.
Max Thomas also highlighted that most of the areas in which Veritau had undertaken
specific audits were ones where the Directorate’s management already had concerns and
the Directorate had requested internal audit input. Therefore the findings and opinions in
Appendix 1 looked slightly concerning, but demonstrated the value of management within
the Directorate and Veritau working together.
Max Thomas and Anton Hodge (Assistant Director - Strategic Resources) responded to
Members’ questions, including advising that remote working had not been identified, by
Veritau, as a factor in most of the audits undertaken within the Health and Adult Services
Directorate.
Members commented that the Health and Adult Services Directorate was doing an
exceptional job in supporting the social care market. Anton Hodge advised that the
Directorate continued to lobby Government for a better funding settlement, in particular to
recognise the higher cost of providing services in a rural area.
Resolved –
That the results of internal audit work performed in the period for the Health and Adult
Services Directorate be noted.

Page 10
OFFICIAL

247
b

Health and Adult Services Directorate - Internal Control Matters
Considered –
The report of the Corporate Director – Health and Adult Services which outlined some of
the key service risks and governance developments within the Directorate, and provided
details of the Directorate’s Risk Register.
Richard Webb (Corporate Director – Health and Adult Services) and Anton Hodge
(Assistant Director - Strategic Resources) introduced the report and responded to
Members’ questions. During discussion, the following was reported:

A national solution was required to address pay and conditions of care sector staff.
The County Council was trying to do what it could, and some pay increases were
being considered although they probably would not match pay rates offered by
global brands.



Nine of around 2,000 County Council staff had been lost/redeployed following the
Government requirement for staff working in care homes to be fully vaccinated
against coronavirus.



The current environment was extremely tough for all councils across the UK.
However, the Corporate Director – Health and Adult Services very much hoped that
the County Council was not going to “fall off the cliff edge” in delivering its social
care statutory services. He felt that the situation was currently manageable on a
smaller scale and intermittent. In addition, the County Council’s Executive had
recently approved investment proposals which included an allocation, for example,
for additional grants to family carers and also to look at what the County Council
could do in liaison with the voluntary sector and other groups to support people.



The Directorate had an agreed programme with Veritau to audit external providers
and in-house providers.

Members thanked Richard Webb and Anton Hodge for providing a full description of the
Directorate’s work and for advising how it worked with Veritau.
Resolved –
That the Risk Register for the Health and Adult Services Directorate be noted.
248

Audit Committee Programme of Work
Considered –
The Committee’s Work Programme.
Gary Fielding (Corporate Director – Strategic Resources) introduced the Committee’s
Work Programme and highlighted the reinstatement of training sessions.
Members expressed support for reinstating training sessions and discussed when the
training should be held. Members suggested that training sessions might be held prior to
meetings of the Audit Committee but should commence 60 or 90 minutes prior to the
meetings so that sessions did not have to be curtailed and sufficient time was also allowed
for preparation for the live-broadcasting of the meeting.

Page 11
OFFICIAL

Members discussed the themes for the training sessions and suggested that cyber and
information security should be covered earlier than October 2022 because it was a subject
for which everyone had responsibility and massive change would be taking place before
then.
Resolved –
That the Work Programme be amended to reflect Members’ comments, namely:(a)

The training sessions commence 60 or 90 minutes prior to the Committee’s
meetings.

(b)

The training session regarding cyber and information security be rearranged to an
earlier date.

The meeting concluded at 3.30 pm.

Page 12
OFFICIAL

Agenda Item 5
NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
AUDIT COMMITTEE
21 March 2022
PROGRESS ON ISSUES RAISED BY THE COMMITTEE
Joint Report of the Corporate Director – Strategic Resources
and the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services)
1.0

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To advise Members of
(i)

progress on issues which the Committee has raised at previous meetings

(ii) other matters that have arisen since the last meeting and that relate to the work of the
Committee

2.0

BACKGROUND

2.1

This report is submitted to each meeting listing the Committee’s previous Resolutions and / or
when it requested further information be submitted to future meetings. The table below
represents the list of issues which were identified at previous Audit Committee meetings and
which have not yet been resolved. The table also indicates where the issues are regarded as
completed and will therefore not be carried forward to this agenda item at the next Audit
Committee meeting.

Date
25.10.21

Minute number
and subject
159 – Audit
Committee Work
Programme

200 – Programme
of Work

Audit Committee
Resolution
That, in respect of training
sessions held immediately
prior to the Committee’s
meetings:i.
Governance of the
Highways Teckal
be scheduled for
26 October 2020
ii.
Pensions
Governance be
scheduled for 27
March 2020
iii.
A session about
Beyond 2020
including Property
Rationalisation be
organised for the
External Members
only

Comment

Training about the
governance of the external
companies could be held
as a follow- up session

To be included as above

Page 13
OFFICIAL

Complete?
X

Governance of external
companies is also to be
added.
As agreed at the last
meeting training sessions
will recommence in 2022.

A proposed schedule of
training / briefings is
included in the Work
Programme to October
2022.
X

Date

Minute number
and subject

13.12.21

248 – Programme
of Work
248 – Programme
of Work

Audit Committee
Resolution
and be combined with a
more detailed session
about commercial
investments.
Training session
commence 60 or 90
minutes prior to the
Committee’s meetings
The training session
regarding cyber and
information security be
rearranged to an earlier
date

Comment

Complete?

These will be arranged 60
or 90 minutes prior to the
meeting



This has now been moved
from October to 21 March



3.0

TREASURY MANAGEMENT

3.1

The Bank of England first raised interest rates in December 2021 from 0.10% to
0.25%. This was subsequently followed by a further rise to 0.50% in February 2022.

3.2

Following this interest rate rise, the County Council’s Treasury Advisors, Link, have
revised their own Interest Rate forecasts. It is now forecast that further increases will
be made in March, followed by increases in May and rising to 1.25% in November as
the Bank of England focus on combating inflation.

3.3

The County Council’s Approved Lending List was approved by the County Council as
part of the 2022/23 Treasury Management Strategy in February 2022. The foreign
banks currently included in the list are domiciled in Australia, Canada, Singapore,
France and Germany. There are no Russian banks included on the Approved Lending
List.

4.0

RECOMMENDATION

4.1

That the Committee considers whether any further follow-up action is required on any of
the matters referred to in this report.

GARY FIELDING
Corporate Director – Strategic Resources

BARRY KHAN
Assistant Chief Executive
(Legal and Democratic Services)

County Hall
NORTHALLERTON
21 March 2022
Background Documents: Report to, and Minutes of, Audit Committee meetings held on 13
December 2021

Page 14
OFFICIAL

Page 15
Auditor’s Annual Report 2020/21

Issued on 10 March 2022

Agenda Item 6

North Yorkshire County Council

Contents

Auditor’s Annual Report

Appendices

Page 16

Purpose of the report

3

Responsibility statement

17

Key messages

4

Council’s responsibilities

18

Assurance sources for the Council

5

Auditor’s responsibilities

19

Opinion on the financial statements

6

Our financial statement audit approach

7

Significant audit risks

8

Auditor’s work on VfM arrangements

11

VfM arrangements:
• Financial sustainability

12

• Governance

14

• Improving economy, efficiency and
effectiveness

16

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services

2

Purpose of this report
Our Auditor’s Annual Report sets out the key findings arising from the work we have carried out at North Yorkshire County Council (“the Council”) for the year
ended 31 March 2021.
This report is intended to bring together the results of our work over the year at the Council, including commentary on the Council’s arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources (“Value for Money”, “VfM”). This report fulfils the requirements of the Accounts and Audit
Regulations for an Annual Audit Letter.
In preparing this report, we have followed the National Audit Office’s (“NAO”) Code of Audit Practice and its Auditor Guidance Note (“AGN”) 03, Value for
Money, and AGN 07, Auditor Reporting. These are available from the NAO website.

Page 17

A key element of this report is our commentary on the Council’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources. Our
work considering these arrangements is based on our assessment of the adequacy of the arrangements the Council has put in place, based on our risk
assessment. The commentary does not consider the adequacy of every arrangement the Council has in place, nor does it provide positive assurance that the
Council is delivering or represents value for money.
Where we identify recommendations, we indicate whether these are:
•

Recommendations in respect of significant weaknesses in the Council’s VfM arrangements, which we are required to make in accordance with paragraph
54 of AGN 03 where we identify a significant weakness, or

•
Other recommendations, which we have indicate as “Deloitte Insights”.
We have not identified any significant weaknesses in the Council’s VfM arrangements, and so have not reported any recommendations in respect of significant
weaknesses.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services

3

Key Messages
Audit opinion on the financial
statements

We issued an unqualified opinion on the Council’s financial statements on 22nd December 2021.

The Council’s arrangements to secure Value for Money

Page 18

Financial Sustainability
How the body plans and manages
its resources to ensure it can
continue to deliver its services

• The Council had a total of £341.3m in usable reserves at the year end, which evidences strong historic financial
planning and provides the Council with flexibility in terms of its approach to transformation.

Governance
How the body ensures that it
makes informed decisions and
properly manages its risks

• The Council has a number of policies in place to ensure it makes properly informed decisions. The Council
Constitution is regularly reviewed and provides detail as to the rules and procedures under which the Council
operates. It sets out how decisions are made and the rights of citizens to obtain information and influence decisions.

• The Council reports the financial position on a quarterly basis which includes an analysis of the actual expenditure
incurred compared to budget.

• The Council has a detailed risk management process in place and performed an assessment of the risks of COVID-19
during the year. The Council maintains a Risk Management Framework and risk register, which are reviewed on a
quarterly basis by the Council. The five independent thematic overview and scrutiny committees hold the Council
accountable for the decisions made.
• The Council utilises an internal audit function which undertakes a risk based programme of internal audit work in
accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. They
provide and present an annual audit report and opinion on the framework of governance, risk management and
control, highlighting any significant control weaknesses.

Improving economy, efficiency
and effectiveness
How the body uses information
about its costs and performance
to improve the way it manages
and delivers its services

• The Council assesses its performance regularly through meetings with the Executive team. The financial and
performance information produced is used at all levels of the Council to identify areas for improvement, addressing
any poor performance and using information on good performance to continuously improve.
• The Council assesses its significant partnerships, service level provision and monitors procurement through various
means including the Corporate & Partnership Overview & Scrutiny Committee that allows an improvement to the
way in which these are delivered.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services

4

Assurance sources for the Council
The diagram below illustrates how the assurances provided by external audit around finance, quality, controls and systems and the future of the Council (in the
green rows) fits with some of the other assurances available over the Council’s position and performance.
Financial

Quality and Operational

Controls and systems

Future of the Council

How is the Council performing
financially?

How is the Council
performing operationally and
in quality of outcomes?

Does the Council have
adequate processes?

Is the Council’s strategy
appropriate and sustainable?

Is reliable reporting and data being produced through the year, at each level within the Council, and appropriately reviewed and followed up?
Is the Statement of accounts, taken as a whole, fair, balanced and
understandable?

Are the Council’s processes
operating effectively?

Are the Council’s plans
realistic and achievable?

Is the Council meeting its legal and regulatory obligations, and are appropriate plans in place to maintain compliance?
Business processes and
Council oversight

Page 19

Has the Council delivered on its
financial plans?

Are quality priorities selected
appropriate for the Council?

Does the Council have
efficient systems and
processes?

Are appropriate actions in
place to deliver the Council’s
plans?

Is the Council generating
sufficient surplus for
reinvestment?

Are the quality metrics
reported accurate and
complete?

Are risks around legacy
systems etc appropriately
mitigated?

What are the risks to
achievement of the Council’s
plans and are appropriate
mitigations in place?

Is there a generally sound system of internal control on key financial and management processes?

Internal audit assurance

External Audit assurance
on reported performance

Has the Council suffered losses
due to fraud?

Does the Council have
appropriate arrangements in
place to mitigate fraud risks?

Do the financial statements give
a true and fair view?

Is the Annual Governance
Statement misleading or
inconsistent with information
we are aware of from our
audit? *

Have the financial statements
been properly prepared?
Is the Narrative Report
consistent with the financial
statements? *

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services

Is there significant
uncertainty over the going
concern assumption?

Has the Council made proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources?

* The scope of external audit in this area is “negative assurance” of reporting by exception of issues identified.

5

Opinion on the financial statements
We provide an independent opinion whether the Council’s financial statements:
•

Give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council and its group at 31 March 2021 and of the Council’s and group’s income and expenditure for
the year then ended;

•
Have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom in 2020/21.
The full opinion is included in the Council’s Statement of accounts, which can be obtained from the Council’s website.
We conduct our audit in accordance with the NAO’s Code of Audit Practice, International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and applicable law.
We are independent of the Council in accordance with applicable ethical requirements, including the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard.

Page 20

Audit opinion on the financial statements:

We issued an unqualified opinion on the Council’s financial statements on 22nd December 2021. We did not identify
any matters where, in our opinion, proper practices had not been observed in the compilation of the financial
statements.

Narrative Report:

We reported that the information given in the Narrative Report for the year ended 31 March 2021 is consistent with
the financial statements.

Annual Governance Statement:

We did not identify any matters where, in our opinion, the Annual Governance Statement did not meet the
disclosure requirements set out in the code of practice on Local Authority Accounting, was misleading, or was
inconsistent with information of which we are aware from our audit.

Reports in the public interest and use of
other powers:

We did not exercise any of our additional reporting powers in respect of the year ended 31 March 2021.

Audit Certificate:

We cannot certify completion of the audit until we have completed our work in respect of our assurance statement
on the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts consolidation pack. We are currently still waiting for the issue of the
central guidance in relation to this work.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services

6

Our financial statement audit approach
An overview of the scope of the audit
Our audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Council and the environment it operates in, including internal control, and assessing the risks of
material misstatement to the financial statements. Our risk assessment procedures include considering the size, composition and qualitative factors relating to
account balances, classes of transactions and disclosures. This enables us to determine the scope of further audit procedures to address identified risks of
material misstatement.
Audit work to respond to the risks of material misstatement was performed directly by the audit engagement team, led by the audit partner, Nicola Wright. The
audit team included integrated Deloitte specialists bringing specific skills and experience in property valuation, pensions and IT.
Materiality
Our work is planned and performed to detect material misstatements. We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced. We use materiality both in planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work.
Based on our professional judgement, we determined group materiality of £21.8m (Council only £21.7m), on the basis of 2% of gross expenditure.

Page 21

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of £1.1m as well as differences below that threshold
that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also report to the Audit Committee on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing
the overall presentation of the financial statements.
Procedures for auditing the Council’s financial statements
Our audit of the Council’s financial statements included:
•
developing an understanding of the Council, including its systems, processes, risks, challenges and opportunities and then using this understanding to focus
audit procedures on areas where we consider there to be a higher risk of misstatement in the Council’s financial statements;
•
interviewing members of the Council’s management team and reviewing documentation to test the design and implementation of the Council’s internal
controls in certain key areas relevant to the financial statements;
•
performing sample tests on balances in the Council’s financial statements to supporting documentary evidence, as well as other analytical procedures, to
test the validity, accuracy and completeness of those balances; and
•
data analytic techniques which were used as part of audit testing, in particular for journal testing.
Approach to audit risks
We focused our work on areas where we considered there to be a higher risk of misstatement. We refer to these areas as significant audit risks.
We provided a detailed audit plan to the Council’s Audit Committee setting out what we considered to be the significant audit risks for the Council, together with
our planned approach to addressing those risks. We have provided a summary of each of the significant audit risks on the following pages.
We have made recommendations in our Audit Committee reporting to management for improvement in the Council’s policies, procedures and internal controls
based on observations from our work. However, we do not consider these recommendations to reflect significant weaknesses in the Council’s VfM
arrangements.
Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services

7

Significant audit risks
Completeness of accrued expenditure
Risk
identified

Under UK auditing standards, there is a presumed risk of revenue recognition due to fraud. We rebutted this risk in line with our approach
in the prior year, and instead believe that a fraud risk lies with the completeness of accrued expenditure (as well as management override
of controls as detailed on page 9).
In the current year, we identified the completeness of expenditure risk as relating specifically to year end accruals.
There is an inherent fraud risk associated with the under-recording of expenditure in order for the Council to report a more favourable
year-end position.
For North Yorkshire County Council, there is therefore an inherent risk that it may materially misstate its expenditure through the
understatement of accruals in an attempt to report a more favourable year-end position.

Page 22

Deloitte
Our work in this area included the following:
response and • We assessed the design and implementation of the controls in relation to recording the completeness of accruals; and
challenge
• We performed focused testing in relation to the completeness of accruals through testing a sample of post year end payments made.
Due to the potential impact of COVID-19 on the Council’s processes in this area, we extended this to 91 days to cover the period
between April and June.

Conclusion

We identified one recommendation in our testing of completeness of accrued expenditure. This related to the Council amending their
accounting approach to correctly apportion the cost of the period of care home expenditure that covers year end.
We did not identify any issues in relation to the key judgements made by management based on our work performed.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services

8

Significant audit risks (continued)
Management override of controls
Risk identified

In accordance with ISA 240 (UK), management override of controls is a significant risk due to fraud for all entities.
This risk area includes the potential for management to use their judgement to influence the financial statements as well as the potential
to override the Council's controls for specific transactions.
The key judgements in the financial statements include those which we have selected to be significant audit risks (completeness of
accrued expenditure) and any one off and unusual transactions where management could show bias. These are inherently the areas in
which management has the potential to use their judgment to influence the financial statements.
Although management is responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Council, we planned our audit so that we had a reasonable
expectation of detecting material misstatements to the Statement of Accounts.

Page 23

Deloitte
response and
challenge

We considered the overall sensitivity of judgements made in preparation of the Statement of Accounts, and noted that:
•

The Council’s results for the first half of the year were projecting overspends in operational areas. These were closely monitored and
whilst projecting overspends, the underlying reasons were well understood. Actions were taken to address the issues identified and
the year-end position was an underspend; and

•

Senior management’s remuneration is not tied to particular financial results.

We have considered these factors and other potential sensitivities in evaluating the judgements made in the preparation of the financial
statements.
Journals
• We tested the design and implementation of controls in relation to journals.
• We made inquiries of individuals involved in the financial reporting process about inappropriate or unusual activity relating to the
processing of journal entries and other adjustments.
• We used Spotlight data analytics tools to test a sample of journals, based upon identification of items of potential audit interest. Our
analysis covered all journals posted in the year.
Significant transactions
• We did not identify any significant transactions outside the normal course of business or any transactions where the business
rationale was not clear.
Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services

9

Significant audit risks (continued)
Management override of controls (continued)
Deloitte
response and
challenge

Accounting estimates
• We performed design and implementation testing of the controls over key accounting estimates and judgements.
• The key judgement in the financial statements was that selected as a significant audit risk: completeness of accrued expenditure.
• We reviewed accounting estimates for biases that could result in material misstatements due to fraud. We noted that overall the
changes to estimates in the period were balanced and did not indicate a bias to achieve a particular result.
• We tested accounting estimates and judgements, focusing on the areas of greatest judgement and value. Our procedures included
comparing amounts recorded or inputs to estimates to relevant supporting information from third party sources.

Conclusion

We did not identify any issues in relation to management override.

Page 24

We have raised one recommendation in relation to the journals control process. From our work on the design and implementation of the
controls in place around the posting of journals, it was noted that there was no review of journals performed prior to posting. In addition
to this, there was also no limit in place on the value of journals an individual can post. We therefore recommended that controls in place
around the journal process are tightened to ensure a review takes place prior to posting.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services

10

Auditor’s work on Value for Money (VfM) arrangements
The Accounting Officer and the Council are responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources. This includes taking properly informed
decisions and managing key operational and financial risks so that they can deliver their objectives and
safeguard public money.
The Accounting Officer reports on the Council’s arrangements, and the effectiveness with which the
arrangements are operating as part of their Annual Governance Statement.
Under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, we are required to be satisfied that proper
arrangements have been made to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources.
Under the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 3, we are required to assess arrangements under
three areas:

Page 25

Financial Sustainability

How the body plans and manages its resources to ensure it can
continue to deliver its services

Governance

How the body ensures that it makes informed decisions and
properly manages its risks

Improving economy,
efficiency and effectiveness

How the body uses information about its costs and performance
to improve the way it manages and delivers its services

In this report, we set out the findings from the work we have undertaken. Where we have found significant
weaknesses in arrangements, we are required to make recommendations so that the Council can consider
them and set out how it plans to make improvements. We have not identified any significant weaknesses in
arrangements.
In planning and performing our work, we consider the arrangements that we expect bodies to have in place,
and potential indicators of risks of significant weaknesses in those arrangements. As a result of the COVID19 pandemic, there have been changes in nationally led processes, changes in expectations around
Council’s arrangements, and events occurring outside of the Council’s control, which affect the relevance of
some of these indicators. We have still considered whether these indicators are present, but have
considered them in the context of the circumstances of 2020/21 in assessing whether they are indicative of
a risk of significant weakness.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services

In addition to our financial
statement audit, we performed a
range of procedures to inform our
VfM commentary, including:
Interviews with key stakeholders,
including Gary Fielding (Corporate
Director – Strategic Resources), Ian
Morton and Stuart Cutts (Internal Audit),
and John Raine (Head of Technical
Finance).
Review of Council and committee reports
and attendance at committee meetings.

Reviewing reports from third parties
including internal audit.

Considering the findings from our audit
work on the financial statements.

Review of the Council’s Annual
Governance Statement and narrative
report.

11

VfM arrangements: Financial Sustainability
Approach and considerations

Commentary

We have considered how the Council plans and manages
its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its
services, including:

The Council has a detailed annual financial planning and forecasting process, with the financial plan
being considered as part of the overall operational planning process which is led by the Corporate
Director – Strategic Resources.

• How the Council ensures it identifies all the significant
financial pressures that are relevant to its short and
medium-term plans and builds these into them;

In preparing the 2020/21 budget, the Council performed a full review of the base budget due to
the significant changes that have occurred over the previous two years. This involved reviewing
both the internal and external environments to ensure that all financial pressures were identified
and factored in to the budget. The 2020/21 budget was linked to the corporate objectives and was
prepared to ensure the Council has sufficient resources to deliver services.
For longer term considerations the Council has in place a Medium Term Financial Strategy which
covers the period 2020/21 to 2023/24, and within this the Council has identified a recurring
shortfall of £18.5m to the end of the period.
The Council’s main focus for transformation to address the identified gap has been The Beyond
2020 Programme, but the Council also believes that there are significant opportunities for savings
as part of the planned local government reorganisation. However, the Council will need to make
sure that it also maintains an appropriate focus on the short term transformation activities it is
undertaking so that its financial performance is maintained up to the point of reorganisation.

• How the Council plans to bridge its funding gaps and
identifies achievable savings;

Page 26

• How the Council plans finances to support the
sustainable delivery of services in accordance with
strategic and statutory priorities;
• How the Council ensures that its financial plan is
consistent with other plans such as workforce, capital,
investment, and other operational planning; and
• How the Council identifies and manages risks to
financial resilience, including challenge of the
assumptions underlying its plans.

With the impending reorganisation, the Council will also need to make sure the necessary financial
information is available to allow it to formulate an accurate and reliable financial strategy which
encompasses the wider remit of the new local Council.
The Council has performed well against budget in 2020/21 and generated a surplus on the
provision of services of £41.6m versus a deficit of £47.3m in the prior year (2018/19 deficit:
£119.8m). In the prior year a large driver of the deficit was the loss on disposal of assets as schools
converted to academies (2020: £59.9m). This loss has reduced in the current year (2021: £38.6m)
and also there have been increases in funding due to COVID support and the recognition of capital
grants.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services

12

VfM arrangements: Financial Sustainability
Commentary
The Council continues to be in a strong balance sheet position with a cash and cash equivalents balance at the end of 2020/21 of £61.8m, which is a decrease in
comparison with the PY balance of £98.0m. The Council holds £421.3m in short term investments (PY: £366.9m). This balance equates to 126% of the total
current liabilities. This is an indicator that the Council has the capability to repay its liabilities as they fall due.
The Council has net assets of £1,112.2m and net current assets of £280m. Property, plant and equipment (PPE) assets amounted to £1,632.0m, for which the
assets within the current year’s portion of the rolling programme were last revalued in January 2021. We note that in the prior year a material uncertainty
paragraph was included within the PPE note. This has been removed in the current year based on the latest RICS guidance.
Furthermore the Council has a total of £341.3m in usable reserves at the year end, which evidences strong historic financial planning and provides the Council
with flexibility in terms of its approach to transformation.
Based on the above, we are satisfied the Council has sufficient arrangements to provide financial sustainability in place for the size and function of the Council.

Page 27
Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services

13

VfM arrangements: Governance
Approach and considerations

Commentary

We have considered how the Council ensures that it
makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks,
including:

The Council has a detailed risk management process in place, which includes a Risk Management
strategy and directorate and corporate risk register which are reviewed on a quarterly basis by the
Council. The risks identified are allocated within the risk register to an owner to implement the
mitigating actions and the overall process is reviewed by the Council’s committees. As we would
expect, due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on a number of areas of the Council’s
services and processes, the main changes in the year have been the identification and inclusion of
risks relating to the pandemic.

• How the body monitors and assesses risk and how the
body gains assurance over the effective operation of
internal controls, including arrangements to prevent
and detect fraud;
• How the body approaches and carries out its annual
budget setting process;

Page 28

• How the body ensures effective processes and systems
are in place to ensure budgetary control; to
communicate relevant, accurate and timely
management information (including non-financial
information); supports its statutory financial reporting
requirements; and ensures corrective action is taken
where needed;
• How the body ensures it makes properly informed
decisions, supported by appropriate evidence and
allowing for challenge and transparency; and
• How the body monitors and ensures appropriate
standards, such as meeting legislative/regulatory
requirements and standards in terms of officer
behaviour.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services

The Audit Committee reviews the adequacy of the risk management arrangements and has
oversight of the Council’s system of internal control, including arrangements to prevent and
detect fraud. The Council has a series of policies covering internal controls, including a
whistleblowing and anti-money laundering policy. These policies are readily available for all staff
to review on the Council’s website. The Audit Committee approves the annual Internal Audit Plan,
and receives updates at Committee meetings through the year.
The Council uses an internal audit function to provide independent, objective assurance, designed
to add value to and improve operations. The Head of Internal Audit opinion for the year was
“Substantial Assurance” that there is a sound system of governance, risk management and
control, with internal controls operating effectively and being consistently applied to support the
achievement of objectives in the areas audited. The function also provides updates and reporting
on the Council’s counter fraud matters and documents the developments in the Council’s
arrangements to minimise fraud risks.
The annual budget setting is conducted as part of the annual planning exercise performed by the
Council. National and local guidance is assessed and used to form the basis of a number of
assumptions in the plan. Current year performance is evaluated with notable variances explained
to determine any ongoing impact. The budget seeks to explain year on year movements and any
pressures are identified. There is a clear process in place to set the annual budget and this is
approved by the Executive and Audit Committee.

14

VfM arrangements: Governance
Commentary
The Council produces a quarterly corporate performance report which includes a review of the actual outturn position against the budget, and details any
significant variances. This is reported to the Council quarterly, which ensures there is sufficient oversight of the budget monitoring process. The report also
includes non financial information and reports on how the Council is achieving against its corporate plans.
The Council has a number of policies in place to ensure it makes properly informed decisions which are detailed within the Council’s Constitution, which is
reviewed regularly by the Executive. The Council receives regular reporting on a wide range of areas to help ensure that decisions are based on the appropriate
information, this includes reports and recommendations from sub-committees and updates from the Councillors responsible for specific portfolios.

Page 29

The Council has an approved decision methodology for investment and divestment decisions, which includes approval by finance personnel, and other key
factors. Where necessary, decisions will be reviewed by the executive management team for comment and to determine if the proposal should be approved.
Business cases with supporting information are submitted to the relevant committee for approval. This allows for challenge and transparency before decisions are
approved.
The Council operates with five independent thematic overview and scrutiny committees, which hold the Executive accountable and ensure value is added to the
Council’s ongoing work to improve outcomes for customers and communities. The Audit Committee also has 3 independent members who are not County
Councillors and it allows the Committee to bring in additional skills and external views on the Committee’s business.
The Council has a number of staff policies in place including a code of conduct. These are all contained within the Constitution and are readily available for all staff
to access. Declarations of interest are maintained for all senior members of staff and decision making officers.
In relation to work done by external regulators on the Council’s services the latest full Ofsted inspection was undertaken in July 2018 in which the Council were
rated 'Outstanding' overall and in all areas. There has also been a focused visit in relation to Children's Services in June 2021 which did not provide a rating but
noted limited recommendations and a number of areas of good practice. From the Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman reporting we note that the
Council has implemented recommendations raised and was ahead of other similar authorities in terms of the rate at which they were able to provide a
satisfactory remedy before the complaint reached the Ombudsman.
In the prior year we raised one recommendation following work undertaken in relation to an objection to the Council’s accounts. We recommended that the
Council take steps to understand the reasons for the decline in their compliance with the reporting deadlines for Freedom of Information Act requests in 2020
(72%) from 2019 (79%). For 2021 there was a further decline to 62%, but there has been increased focus from the management board to improve performance
and as at the end of February 2022 compliance has increased to 89%.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External use Only

15

VfM arrangements: Improving economy, efficiency and
effectiveness

Page 30

Approach and considerations:

Commentary

We have considered how the body uses
information about its costs and
performance to improve the way it
manages and delivers its services,
including:
• How financial and performance
information has been used to assess
performance to identify areas for
improvement;

The Council assesses its performance through quarterly Performance and Finance Monitoring Reports which
consider a number of measures. These reports are presented to the Audit Committee.
Financial planning and performance assessment is increasingly being performed at all levels of the Council in order
to assess areas for improvement and using information on good performance to continuously improve. The Council
also undertakes focussed reviews of service areas which have been identified through the performance
management regime. The focussed reviews are performed in those areas identified where it has been determined
that the greatest benefits may be achieved. Further services reviews are monitored on a quarterly basis by the
Executive through the use of quarterly financial and performance reports.

• How the Council evaluates the
services it provides to assess
performance and identify areas for
improvement;

The Council operates systems in which North Yorkshire residents can provide feedback on services provided and
share ideas about the Council operations. The quarterly Executive performance reports produced have a Customer
feedback segment in which feedback in relation to services is discussed.

• How the Council ensures it delivers
its
role
within
significant
partnerships,
engages
with
stakeholders it has identified,
monitors
performance
against
expectations, and ensures action is
taken where necessary to improve;
and

The Council provides services and maintains partnership throughout North Yorkshire, serving a wide range of
customer needs and utilise various partnerships to do this in collaboration with other entities. This means coordinating plans with partners throughout North Yorkshire. The plans for a unitary council for North Yorkshire are to
be implemented in April 2023 and will replace the current county council and seven district and borough councils,
and will assist in transforming the ways in which the Council operate. As the Council moves forwards with ever closer
partnership and the increasing focus on system wide objectives, it is important that the Council adapts its
arrangements appropriately to incorporate new duties and responsibilities whilst maintaining the existing rigour
over the its current arrangements.

• Where the Council commissions or
procures services, how the Council
ensures that this is done in
accordance with relevant legislation,
professional standards and internal
policies, and how the Council
assesses whether it is realising the
expected benefits.

The Council has adequate procurement procedures and policies and develop the Procurement and Contract
Management Strategy in line with the Council’s policy. The strategy’s aim is to ensure that the Council operates in an
open and transparent manner, achieves value for money and sustainable quality through a proactive commercial
approach to procurement and commissioning for the communities of North Yorkshire. The strategy as been updated
to incorporate the key changes needed to the strategy due to the COVID-19 pandemic.
Based on the above, we are satisfied the Council has sufficient arrangements to improve economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in place for the size and function of the Council.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services

16

Purpose of our report and responsibility statement
What we report

What we don’t report

Our report fulfils our obligations under the Code of Audit Practice to issue
an Auditor’s Annual Report that brings together all of our work over the
year, including our commentary on arrangements to secure value for
money, and recommendations in respect of identified significant
weaknesses in the Council’s arrangements.

Our audit was not designed to identify all matters that may be relevant
to the Audit Committee.
Also, there will be further information you need to discharge your
governance responsibilities, such as matters reported on by
management or by other specialist advisers.
Finally, our views on internal controls and business risk assessment
should not be taken as comprehensive or as an opinion on effectiveness
since they have been based solely on the audit procedures performed in
the audit of the financial statements and work under the Code of Audit
Practice in respect of Value for Money arrangements.

Page 31

We welcome the opportunity to discuss our report
with you and receive your feedback.
The scope of our work
Our observations are developed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements.
We described the scope of our work in our audit plan.
Use of this report
This report has been prepared for the Council, as a body, and we
therefore accept responsibility to you alone for its contents. We accept
no duty, responsibility or liability to any other parties, since this report
has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose.
Deloitte LLP
Newcastle | 10 March 2022

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services

17

Appendix 1: Council’s responsibilities
Public bodies spending taxpayers’ money are accountable for their stewardship of the resources entrusted to them. They should account properly for their use
of resources and manage themselves well so that the public can be confident.
Financial statements are the main way in which local public bodies account for how they use their resources. Local public bodies are required to prepare and
publish financial statements setting out their financial performance for the year. To do this, bodies need to maintain proper accounting records and ensure they
have effective systems of internal control.
All local public bodies are responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness from their resources. This
includes taking properly informed decisions and managing key operational and financial risks so that they can deliver their objectives and safeguard public
money. Local public bodies report on their arrangements, and the effectiveness with which the arrangements are operating, as part of their annual governance
statement.

Page 32

The Chief Executive, as Accounting Officer of the Council, is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view, and for such internal control as the Accounting Officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
The Accounting Officer is required to comply with the CIPFA code of practice and prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless the Council is
informed of the intention for dissolution without transfer of services or function to another entity. In applying the going concern basis of accounting, the
Accounting Officer has applied the ‘continuing provision of services’ approach set out in the CIPFA code of practice as it is anticipated that the services the Council
provides will continue into the future.
The Accounting Officer is required to confirm that the statement of accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced, and understandable, and provides the information
necessary for patients, regulators and stakeholders to assess the Council’s performance, business model and strategy.
The Accounting Officer is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of the Council’s
resources, for ensuring that the use of public funds complies with the relevant legislation, delegated authorities and guidance, for safeguarding the assets of the
Council, and for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
The Accounting Officer and the Council are responsible for ensuring proper stewardship and governance, and reviewing regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of
these arrangements.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services

18

Appendix 2: Auditor’s responsibilities
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor’s report.
Auditor’s responsibilities relating to the Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources
We are required under the Code of Audit Practice and the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy ourselves that the Council has made proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.
We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in
its use of resources are operating effectively.

Page 33

We undertake our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance, published by the Comptroller & Auditor General in April
2021, as to whether the Council has proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources against the specified criteria of
financial sustainability, governance, and improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness.
The Comptroller & Auditor General has determined that under the Code of Audit Practice, we discharge this responsibility by reporting by exception if we have
reported to the Council a significant weakness in arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March
2021. Other findings from our work, including our commentary on the Council’s arrangements, are reported in our Auditor’s Annual Report.
Auditor’s other responsibilities
We are also required to report to you if we exercise any of our additional reporting powers under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to:
• make a written recommendation to the Council, copied to the Secretary of State;
• make a referral to the Secretary of State if we believe that the Council or an officer of the Council is:
• about to make, or has made, a decision which involves or would involve the Council incurring unlawful expenditure; or
• about to take, or has begun to take a course of action which, if pursued to its conclusion, would be unlawful and likely to cause a loss or deficiency; and
• consider whether to issue a report in the public interest.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services

19

Page 34
Deloitte LLP does not accept any liability for use of or reliance on the contents of this document by any person save by the
intended recipient(s) to the extent agreed in a Deloitte LLP engagement contract.
Deloitte LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registered number OC303675 and its
registered office at 1 New Street Square, London, EC4A 3HQ, United Kingdom.
Deloitte LLP is the United Kingdom affiliate of Deloitte NSE LLP, a member firm of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK
private company limited by guarantee (“DTTL”). DTTL and each of its member firms are legally separate and independent
entities. DTTL and Deloitte NSE LLP do not provide services to clients. Please see www.deloitte.com/about to learn more
about our global network of member firms.
© 2022 Deloitte LLP. All rights reserved.

Page 35
Planning report to the Audit Committee for the year ending 31 March 2022
Issued on 10 March 2022 for the Audit Committee on 21 March 2022
Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

Agenda Item 7

North Yorkshire County Council

Contents
01 Planning report

02 Appendices

Page 36

Introduction

3

Sector developments

18

Responsibilities of the Audit Committee

4

Fraud responsibilities and
representations

23

Our audit explained

5

Independence and fees

25

Continuous communication and reporting

6

Our approach to quality

27

Covid-19

7

Materiality

8

Scope of work and approach

9

Significant risks

11

Value for Money

14

Audit quality

15

Purpose of our report

16

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

2

Introduction
The key messages in this report
We have pleasure in presenting our planning report to the Audit Committee for the audit of the year ending 31 March
2022. We would like to draw your attention to the key messages set out in this audit plan.
Audit quality is our
number one priority. We
plan our audit to focus on
audit quality and have set
the following audit quality
objectives for this audit:

Page 37

•

A robust challenge of
the key judgements
taken in the
preparation of the
financial statements.

•

A strong understanding
of your internal control
environment.

•

A well planned and
delivered audit that
raises findings early
with those charged
with governance.

Audit Scope
Our principal audit objective is to obtain sufficient,
relevant and reliable audit evidence to enable us to
express an opinion on the statutory accounts of the
Council prepared in accordance with the Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting (“the Code”)
issued by CIPFA for the period ending 31 March 2022.
We will conduct our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs UK”)
as adopted by the UK Auditing Practices Board (“APB”)
and Code of Audit Practice issued by the National Audit
Office.

Key Risks
We have taken an initial view as to the significant audit
risks for our audit, these are detailed on pages 13 and
14.
Regulatory Change
CIPFA is currently undertaking a consultation on the
operational property, plant and equipment valuation
approach and deferral of the implementation of IFRS
16, Leases. Responses were required by 3 March 2022
but to date no information in relation to any proposed
changes has been communicated.

Our responsibilities as auditor, and the responsibilities
of the Council, are set out in the ‘PSAA Statement of
responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies: Principal
Local Authorities and Police Bodies’ published by Public
Sector Audit Appointments Limited.

The Department for Levelling Up, Housing and
Communities has extended the deadline for publishing
audited local authority accounts to 30 November 2022
for 2021/22 accounts, then 30 September for six years,
beginning with the 2022/23 accounts.

Audit Plan

We have reported on other regulatory changes in our
accompanying sector developments section, on pages
21 to 24.

We have updated our understanding of the Council,
including discussion with management and review of
relevant documentation from across the Council.
Based on these procedures, we have developed this
plan in collaboration with the Council to ensure that we
provide an effective audit service that meets your
expectations and focuses on the most significant areas
of importance and risk to the Council.

Our Commitment to Quality
We are committed to providing the highest quality
audit, with input from our market leading specialists,
sophisticated data analytics and our wealth of
experience.

Nicola Wright
Audit Partner
Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

3

Responsibilities of the Audit Committee
Helping you fulfil your responsibilities
The primary purpose of the
auditor’s interaction with the
Audit Committee:
•

Clearly communicate the
planned scope of the
financial statements audit

•

Provide timely observations
arising from the audit that
are significant and relevant
to the Audit Committee’s
responsibility to oversee the
financial reporting process

Page 38

•

In addition, we seek to
provide the Audit
Committee with additional
information to help fulfil
your broader responsibilities

As a result of regulatory change in recent years, the role of the Audit Committee has significantly
expanded. We set out here a summary of the core areas of Audit Committee responsibility to provide a
reference in respect of these broader responsibilities and highlight throughout the document where there is
key information which helps the Audit Committee in fulfilling its remit.
- At the start of each annual audit
cycle, ensure that the scope of the
external audit is appropriate.

Oversight of
external audit

- Make recommendations as to the
auditor appointment.
- Implement a policy on use of the
external auditor for non-audit
services and approve if arise.

- Review the internal control and
risk management systems.
- Explain what actions have been,
or are being, taken to remedy any
significant failings or weaknesses.

- Ensure that appropriate
arrangements are in place for the
proportionate and independent
investigation of any concerns that
are raised by staff in connection
with improprieties.

Integrity of
reporting

Internal controls
and risks

Oversight of
internal audit

Whistle-blowing
and fraud

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

- Make an impact assessment of key
judgements and the level of
management challenge.
- Review the external audit findings,
key judgements and level of
misstatements.
- Assess the quality and capacity of the
internal team, their incentives and the
need for supplementary skill sets.
- Assess the completeness of
disclosures, including consistency with
disclosures on business model and
strategy and, where requested, provide
advice in respect of the fair, balanced
and understandable statement.
- Assess and advise on the
appropriateness of the Annual
Governance Statement, including
conclusion on value for money.
- Consider annually whether the scope
of the internal audit programme is
adequate.
- Monitor and review the effectiveness
of the internal audit activities.

4

Our audit explained
We tailor our audit to your business and your strategy
Identify changes in your business and
environment
We have spent time with management,
understanding the current year matters to
assist with the preparation of our risk
assessment for the audit. The two main
matters in the current year are the
continued impact from COVID-19 and
preparation for the Local Government
Reorganisation. We will continue to keep this
under review throughout the audit process.

Page 39

Identify
changes
in your
business and
environment

Determine
materiality

Scoping
Our work will be carried out in
accordance with the Code of
Audit Practice and supporting
auditor guidance notes issued
by the NAO.
More detail is given on page
10.

Scoping

Significant
risk
assessment

In our final report
In our final report to you we will conclude on
the significant risks identified in this paper,
report to you our other findings, and detail
those items we will be including in our audit
report.

Conclude on
significant
risk areas

Other
findings

Our audit
report

Quality and Independence
Determine materiality
We have determined preliminary materiality for
the group and Council only to be £21.4m
(2020/21 £21.8m) and £21.2m (2020/21 £21.7m)
respectively. This is based on 2% of gross
expenditure per the 2020/21 financial statements.
We will report to you any misstatements above
£1.0m (2020/21 £1.0m). We will also report to
you any misstatements below this threshold if we
consider them to be material by nature.

Significant risk assessment
The significant risks identified for
2021/22 are the same as those
identified for 2020/21. More details on
the significant risks for the current
year are given on pages 12 to 15.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

We confirm all Deloitte network firms
and engagement team members are
independent of North Yorkshire
County Council. We take our
independence and the quality of the
audit work we perform very
seriously. Audit quality is our number
one priority.

5

Continuous communication and reporting
Planned timing of the audit
Planning
• Planning meetings to
inform risk assessment
and identify judgemental
accounting issues.
• Update understanding of
key business cycles and
changes to financial
reporting.

Page 40

• Document design and
implementation of key
controls.

Interim audit

Year end fieldwork

• Update on value for
money responsibilities.

• Substantive testing of all
areas.

• Year-end closing
meetings.

• Scoping of components
for the group audit.

• Finalisation of work in
support of value for
money responsibilities.

• Reporting of significant
control deficiencies.

• Review of Council
accounting policies and
skeleton set of financial
statements.

• Detailed review of annual
accounts and report,
including Annual
Governance Statement.
• Review of final internal
audit reports and opinion.

• Review of key Council
documents including
Cabinet, Council and Audit
Committee minutes.

• Completion of testing on
significant audit risks.

• Planning work for value for
money responsibilities.

• Signing audit reports in
respect of financial
statements.
• Issue final Audit
Committee paper.
• Issue Annual Auditor’s
Report (including
narrative commentary on
arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in the use of
resources).
• Whole of Government
Accounts reporting
(depending on guidance).

2021/22 Audit Plan
February - March 2022

Reporting

Final report to the Audit Committee
June-July 2022

August – October 2022

November 2022

Ongoing communication and feedback
Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

6

COVID-19 pandemic and its impact on our audit
Requirements

CIPFA has issued guidance highlighting the importance of considering the impact of COVID-19 in preparation of the financial
statements, including communicating risks and governance impacts in narrative reporting. This is consistent with the Financial
Reporting Council’s guidance to organisations on the importance of communicating the impact of COVID-19 and related
uncertainties, including their impact on resilience and going concern assessments. Although we are now in a new phase of the
pandemic following the roll-out of vaccinations and removal of legal restrictions, there remains a significant impact in 2021/22 on
organisations. It therefore remains important to continue to consider the impact of COVID-19 in reporting.
Entity-specific explanations of the current and expected effects of COVID-19 and the Council’s plans to mitigate those effects
should be included in the narrative reporting (including where relevant the Annual Governance Statement), including in the
discussion on Principal Risks and Uncertainties impacting an organisation.
As well as the
the impact on
management,
and resilience

Actions

effects upon reserves, financial performance and financial position, examples of areas highlighted by CIPFA include
service provision, changes to the workforce and how they are deployed, impacts upon the supply chain, cash flow
and plans for recovery. Risks highlighted include those relating to subsidiaries and investments, capital programmes,
of the community including partner organisations and charities.

Page 41

We therefore expect a thorough assessment of the current and potential future effects of the COVID-19 pandemic including:
• A detailed analysis across the Council’s operations, including on its income streams, supply chains and cost base, and the
consequent impacts on financial position and reserves;
• The economic scenario or scenarios assumed in making forecasts and on the sensitivities arising should other potential scenarios
materialise (including different funding scenarios); and
• The effect of events after the reporting date, including the nature of non-adjusting events and an estimate of their financial
effect, where possible.

Impact on the Council
We will consider the key impacts
on the business such as:

Impact on statement of accounts

Impact on our audit

We have considered the main impact of the outbreak on the statement of
accounts to be in the following areas:

We have considered the impact on the
audit including:

• Principal risk disclosures

•

Resource planning

•

Interruptions to service
provision
Supply chain disruptions

•
•

Timetable of the audit
Impact on our risk assessment

•

Unavailability of personnel

• Impact on property, plant and equipment
• Valuation of commercial or investment properties

Reductions in income

• Impact on pension fund investment measurement and impairment

•

•

Logistics including meetings with
entity personnel

•

The closure of facilities and
premises

•

• Going concern assessment
• Events after the reporting period and relevant disclosures
• Bad debts provision policy
• Narrative reporting
• Impairment of non-current assets
• Allowance for expected credit losses
Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

7

Materiality
Our approach to materiality
Basis of our materiality benchmark
•

•

Reporting to those charged with governance

Page 42

We have determined preliminary materiality for the group and
• We will report to you all misstatements found in excess of £1.0m
Council only of £21.4m (2020/21 £21.8m) and £21.2m (2020/21
(2020/21 £1.0m).
£21.7m) respectively, based on professional judgement, the
• We will report to you misstatements below this threshold if we
requirements of auditing standards and the financial measures
consider them to be material by nature.
most relevant to users of the financial statements.
Reporting on Group Accounts
We have used 2% of gross expenditure based on the audited
2020/21 accounts as the benchmark for determining our
• Based on our understanding of the expected year end position,
preliminary materiality. We will update our materiality
we have identified that we will need to undertake detailed
calculation once the year end outturn is available.
testing on the subsidiary balances which are material to the
group financial statements. See the group audit scope on page
9.

Council Materiality

Gross Expenditure
£1,071m

Gross Expenditure

Materiality £21.2m

Although materiality is the
judgement of the audit
partner, the Audit
Committee must satisfy
themselves that the level of
materiality chosen is
appropriate for the scope of
the audit.

Audit Committee reporting
threshold £1.0m

Materiality

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

8

Scope of work and approach
We have four key areas of responsibility
Financial statements

Group audit

We will conduct our audit in accordance with the Code of Audit
Practice and supporting guidance issued by the National Audit Office
(“NAO’’) and International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”)
as adopted by the UK Auditing Practices Board (“APB”). The Council
will prepare its accounts under the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting (“the Code”) issued by CIPFA and LASAAC.

We are undertaking our scoping of the components for the group
audit and will perform direct testing of the subsidiary balances which
are material to the group financial statements. In the prior year, we
noted the main subsidiary companies in the context of the group
audit were NYnet Limited and Yorwaste Limited. For the current year
we expect there to be an additional component consolidated into the
group accounts which will require testing, with NY Highways now
being operational. However, due to their size none of the noted
subsidiaries were considered to be significant components.

We report on whether the financial statements:

Page 43

•

Give a true and fair view of the financial position and income and
expenditure; and

•

Are prepared in line with the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting (“the Code’’).

Value for Money

Annual Governance Statement

The National Audit Office’s 2020 Code of Audit Practice revised the
scope of the required work of the auditor on bodies’ arrangements
to secure value for money, moving away from a binary conclusion
on arrangements in the audit report to a narrative commentary in
an “Auditor’s Annual Report” (which replaces the Annual Audit
Letter).
To perform this work, we are required to:
• Obtain an understanding of the Council’s arrangements sufficient
to support our risk assessment and commentary;
• Assess whether there are risks of a significant weakness in the
Council’s arrangements, and perform additional procedures if a
risk is identified. If a significant weakness is identified, we report
this and an accompanying recommendation;
• Report in our audit opinion if we have identified any significant
weaknesses; and
• Issue a narrative commentary in our Annual Auditor’s Report on
the arrangements in place.
This is consistent with the scope of work which applied in the prior
year.

We are required to report on whether other information published
with the audited financial statements is consistent with the financial
statements.
Other information includes information included in the Statement of
Accounts, in particular the Narrative Report. It also includes the
Annual Governance Statement which the Council is required to
publish alongside the Statement of Accounts.
In reading the information given with financial statements, we take
into account our knowledge of the Council, including that gained
through work in relation to the Council’s arrangements for securing
value for money through economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its
use of resources.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

9

Scope of work and approach
Our approach
Liaison with internal audit

Promoting high quality reporting to stakeholders

The Auditing Standards Board’s version of ISA (UK) 610 “Using the work
of internal auditors” prohibits use of internal audit to provide “direct
assistance” to the audit. Our approach to the use of the work of
internal audit has been designed to be compatible with these
requirements.

We view the audit role as going beyond reactively checking
compliance with requirements: we seek to provide advice on
evolving good practice to promote high quality reporting.

We will review their reports and meet with them to discuss their work.
We will discuss the work plan for internal audit, and where they have
identified specific material deficiencies in the control environment, we
consider adjusting our testing so that the audit risk is covered by our
work.

Page 44

Using these discussions to inform our risk assessment, we can work
together with internal audit to develop an approach that avoids
inefficiencies and overlaps, therefore avoiding any unnecessary
duplication of audit requirements on the Council's staff.

We recommend the Council complete the Code checklist during
drafting of their financial statements.
We would welcome early discussion on the planned format of the
financial statements, and whether there is scope for simplifying or
streamlining disclosures (including consideration of the recent CIPFA
publication on streamlining local government accounts), as well as
the opportunity to review a skeleton set of financial statements and
an early draft of the narrative report ahead of the typical reporting
timetable to feedback any comments to management.

Approach to controls testing
Our risk assessment procedures will include obtaining an
understanding of controls considered to be ‘relevant to the audit’.
This involves evaluating the design of the controls and determining
whether they have been implemented (“D&I”).
The results of our work in obtaining an understanding of controls
and any subsequent testing of the operational effectiveness of
controls will be collated and the impact on the extent of substantive
audit testing required will be considered.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

10

Significant risks
Our risk assessment process
Principal risks and uncertainties

We consider a number of factors when deciding on
the significant audit risks. These factors include:
•

The principal risks and uncertainties previously
reported in the statement of accounts;

•

The IAS 1 critical accounting estimates previously
reported in the statement of accounts;
The disclosures made by the Audit Committee in
their previous Audit Committee report;

•
•

Our assessment of materiality; and

•

The changes that have occurred in the business
and the environment it operates in since the last
statement of accounts.

•
•

Resource management
Information governance

•

Devolution

•

Ability to secure commercial
opportunities

•
•

Underachievement of savings
Health & Safety

IAS 1 Critical accounting estimates

• Future funding levels
• Property valuations

Page 45

• Recognition of schools fixed assets
• Pension liabilities
• Valuation of investments

Deloitte view
Management must carefully consider the principal
risks, uncertainties and accounting estimates of the
Council.

• Provisions and contingencies
• Accounting for grant income
Changes in your business and
environment
•
•

Impacts of COVID-19
Continued overspends in Children &
Young People’s Services

•

Overspend in Health and Adult
Services

•

Increasing income generation from
more commercial activities

•

Local government reorganisation

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

• Classification of leases

11

Significant risks
Risk 1 – Completeness of Accrued Expenditure
Risk identified

Under UK auditing standards, there is a presumed risk of revenue recognition due to fraud. We have
rebutted this risk inline with our approach in the prior year, and instead believe that a fraud risk lies with
the completeness of expenditure (as well as management override of controls as detailed on page 15). In
the current year, we have identified the risk as relating specifically to year end accruals.
For North Yorkshire County Council, there is therefore an inherent risk that it may materially misstate its
expenditure through the understatement of accruals in an attempt to report a more favourable year end
position.

Our response

Our work in this area will include the following:

Page 46

•

We will update our understanding of, and test the design and implementation of, the key controls in place
in relation to recording of accruals; and

•

We will perform focused testing in relation to the completeness of accruals through testing of a sample of
accruals recorded in the ledger and post-year end payments made.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

12

Significant risks
Risk 2 – Management override of controls
Risk identified

In accordance with ISA 240 (UK), management override of controls is a significant risk due to fraud for all entities.
This risk area includes the potential for management to use their judgement to influence the financial statements as
well as the potential to override the Council's controls for specific transactions.
The key judgements in the financial statements include those which we have selected to be the significant audit risks,
(completeness of accrued expenditure) and any one off and unusual transactions where management could show bias.
These are inherently the areas in which management has the potential to use their judgment to influence the financial
statements.

Our response

In considering the risk of management override, we plan to perform the following audit procedures that directly
address this risk:

Page 47

•

We will test the design and implementation of key controls in place around journal entries and key management
estimates;

•

We will risk assess journals and select items for detailed testing. The journal entries will be selected using computerassisted profiling based on areas which we consider to be of increased interest;
We will review accounting estimates for biases that could result in material misstatements due to fraud; and,

•
•

We will obtain an understanding of the business rationale of significant transactions that we become aware of that
are outside of the normal course of business for the Council, or that otherwise appear to be unusual, given our
understanding of the entity and its environment.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

13

Value for Money
Areas of focus
We are required to consider the Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources. Under the
revised requirements of the Code of Audit Practice 2020 and related Auditor Guidance Note 03, we are required to:
•

Perform work to understand the Council’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources against each of
the three reporting criteria:
•

Financial sustainability: How the body plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services.

•
•

Governance: How the body ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks.
Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: How the body uses information about its costs and performance to improve the way it
manages and delivers its services.

Undertake a risk assessment to identify whether there are any risks of significant weaknesses in arrangements.

•

If any risks of significant weaknesses are identified, perform procedures to determine whether there is in fact a significant weakness in
arrangements, and if so to make recommendations for improvement.

•

Issue a narrative commentary in the Auditor’s Annual Report, setting out the work undertaken in respect of the reporting criteria and our
findings, including any explanation needed in respect of judgements or local context for findings. If significant weaknesses are identified, the
weaknesses and recommendations will be included in the reporting, together with follow-up of previous recommendations and whether they
have been implemented. Where relevant, we may include reporting on any other matters arising we consider relevant to VfM arrangements,
which might include emerging risks or issues.

•

Where significant weaknesses are identified, report this by exception within our financial statement audit opinion.

Page 48

•

AGN03 requires auditors to set out the results of their risk assessment as part of the audit planning report. Due to the timing of this meeting, this
has not been possible to complete prior to the issue of this paper, and we will report to a later Audit Committee on any matters arising from this
work. Although we have not fully completed our planning work, based on our existing understanding of the Council and the wider sector, the
specific areas that we expect to focus on in understanding the Council’s arrangements include:

Governance

Financial Sustainability

Our 2021/22 work on arrangements will include consideration of how
the Council is planning on adapting its internal governance
arrangements and the processes it is following in year to put in place
the appropriate governance structures for the new Council following the
planned local government reorganisation.

We will review the Council’s financial performance throughout the year
and achievement of savings, as well as the governance structures that
are in place to support the Council’s actions in delivering a balanced
budget.
The processes and structures that the Council has put in place to
monitor and manage the local government reorganisation to help
ensure that the proposed benefits are realised.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

14

Audit Quality
Our commitment to audit quality

Page 49

Our objective is to deliver a distinctive, quality audit to you. Every Engagement Quality Control Review
member of the engagement team will contribute, to achieve the
We have developed a tailored Engagement Quality Control
highest standard of professional excellence.
approach. Our dedicated Professional Standards Review (PSR)
function will provide a 'hot' review before any audit or other
In particular, for your audit, we consider that the following steps
opinion is signed. PSR is operationally independent of the audit
will contribute to the overall quality:
team, and supports our high standards of professional scepticism
and audit quality by providing a rigorous independent challenge.
• We will apply professional scepticism in all areas of our audit
but with specific focus on any material issues or significant
judgements made by the Council.
We will obtain a deep understanding of your business, its
environment and of your processes, enabling us to develop a riskfocused approach tailored to North Yorkshire County Council.
Our engagement team is selected to ensure that we have the
right subject matter expertise and industry knowledge. We will
involve information technology, pension and property valuation
specialists to support the audit team in our work on the IT
environment, the pension balances and the property valuations
respectively when required.
In order to deliver a quality audit to you, each member of the
core audit team has received tailored learning to develop their
expertise in audit skills and more specifically public sector audit,
delivered by senior members of our public sector audit team.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

15

Purpose of our report and responsibility statement
Our report is designed to help you meet your governance duties

Page 50

What we report

What we don’t report

Our report is designed to
establish our respective
responsibilities in relation to
the financial statements
audit, to agree our audit
plan and to take the
opportunity to ask you
questions at the planning
stage of our audit. Our
report includes:

As you will be aware, our
audit is not designed to
identify all matters that
may be relevant to the
Council.

• Our audit plan, including
key audit judgements
and the planned scope;
and
• Key regulatory and
corporate governance
updates, relevant to you.

Also, there will be further
information you need to
discharge your governance
responsibilities, such as
matters reported on by
management or by other
specialist advisers.
Finally, the views on
internal controls and
business risk assessment in
our final report should not
be taken as comprehensive
or as an opinion on
effectiveness since they will
be based solely on the audit
procedures performed in
the audit of the financial
statements and the other
procedures performed in
fulfilling our audit plan.

Other relevant
communications

What we don’t report

We will update you if there
are any significant changes
to the audit plan.
In the prior year, we
communicated audit
findings and control
recommendations to
management, and these
will be followed up as part
of our audit visits to assess
how these have been
addressed in the current
year.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss our report with
you and receive your feedback.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

This report has been
prepared for the Audit
Committee, as a body, and
we therefore accept
responsibility to you alone
for its contents. We accept
no duty, responsibility or
liability to any other
parties, since this report
has not been prepared, and
is not intended, for any
other purpose. Except
where required by law or
regulation, it should not be
made available to any other
parties without our prior
written consent.

Nicola Wright
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Newcastle upon Tyne| 10 March 2022
16

Appendices

Page 51
Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

17

Sector Developments
Page 52
Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

18

CIPFA Consultation
CIFPA emergency proposals on the 2021/22 Code
Issue
CIPFA has issued an emergency consultation on potential measures that could be taken regarding the preparation of the 2021/22 financial
statements to help alleviate the delays that have occurred in the publication of the audited financial statements, with only 9% of local authority
accounts in England for the year ended 31 March 2021 meeting the audit publication deadline of 30 September 2021.
In December 2021, the Department for Levelling-up, Housing and Communities asked CIPFA to consider changes to the Code that may help
with the delays and, following initial consideration, CIPFA issued a consultation in relation to two proposals:
• An adaptation to the Code to allow local authorities to pause professional valuations for operational property, plant and equipment for a
period of up to two years (though the initial proposal is for the 2021/22 financial year); this approach also explores the use of an index to be
used to increase or reduce that valuation; and
• Deferring the implementation of IFRS 16 Leases for a further year and reversing the planned changes to the 2022/23 Code to implement that
standard.
Responses to the consultation were required to be submitted by 3 March 2022 and have therefore now closed, and we expect any changes to be
communicated imminently.

Page 53

In addition, as part of Deloitte’s response to the consultation, we also submitted a series of wider recommendations that we believe CIPFA could
take to help reduce the burden on both finance and audit teams.

Next steps
Councils should be aware that, even if the proposals are accepted, there will still be actions in relation to these areas that the Council will need
to make:
• Property Valuations – the Council will need to consider whether any potential impairment indicators have been identified in relation to the
assets held by the Council.
• IFRS 16 – the change is a delay in implementation of the new standard and so work will need to continue to ensure the Council is in a good
position to be ready for adoption in the following year.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services

19

Conflict between Russia and Ukraine
Potential impact on financial matters
Issue
The conflict between Russia and Ukraine is having a number of impacts on the global economy including inflationary pressures and the
availability of commodities such as oil and gas, it is also impacting upon global financial markets, which is having a direct impact on the
investment assets held by both Local Government bodies and LGPS Pension Funds. To date the assets most significantly affected have been
those directly linked to Russia and Ukraine – government bonds issued by those countries and companies based there or with significant
operations there.
Key considerations from the markets:
Any holdings denominated in Rubles have lost 30% of their value versus USD since 25th February (based on 1 March rates);
Although trading of Russian government bonds remains technically possible, at times the bid-offer spread has widened to more than 50%;

•

Russian government bonds have lost their investment grade rating from many of the major ratings agencies, primarily reflecting concerns
that, although a formal default is unlikely, sanctions may make it impossible for holders to receive interest or principal repayments;

•

Overseas institutions have been banned from selling Russian securities on the Moscow Exchange (MOEX) and the operation of the exchange
has been suspended;

•

Trading in overseas listings of Russian companies have in many cases been suspended, including on the LSE and Deutsche Borse;

•

Even if investors are able to find a willing counterparty to a transaction and are able to arrange the settlement process, investors outside of
Russia may struggle to receive any proceeds from the sales now that many Russian banks have been barred from Swift – the global banking
messaging system; and
Due to the above issues, many funds with significant exposure to Russian assets – notably all Russian equity index tracker funds – have
suspended redemptions.

Page 54

•
•

•

Next steps
The following matters should be considered:
• IAS 19 asset values – often IAS 19 asset values are provided to the actuary in advance of 31 March. Due to the potential for significant
market fluctuations between an earlier valuation date and the 31 March, actual values for the 31 March should be used for the 2022 IAS 19
valuation.
• Investment holdings – consideration of any investments that the Council holds in Russian or Ukrainian assets.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services

20

Climate change and the impact on public sector bodies
The NAO has published a guide for Audit and Risk Assurance
Committees on climate change risk
Issue
Climate action failure was ranked as the most concerning global risk in the World Economic Forum’s Global Risk Report 2021. Climate change
is not a future concern, and will only continue to escalate in significance in future. Climate change risks are impacting all government
organisations in some form and so it is vital that organisations engage now with climate related risks and opportunities.
The government has committed to achieving ‘net zero’ greenhouse gas emissions by 2050, and a challenge of this scale will require
transformative change to the UK economy. There are a number of departments across government that are central to government’s response
to climate change. However, the all-encompassing nature of achieving net zero means that all government bodies have a role to play.
The National Audit Office has published “Climate change risk: A good practice guide for Audit and Risk Assurance Committees”
(https://www.nao.org.uk/report/climate-change-risk-a-good-practice-guide-for-audit-and-risk-assurance-committees/) to help committees
recognise how climate change risks could manifest themselves and support them in challenging management on their approach to managing
climate change risks.

Page 55

There are specific risk management principles around governance and leadership, integration, collaboration and best information, risk
treatment, risk monitoring, risk reporting and continual improvement. Key climate change considerations are noted for each principle, along
with example questions which audit committees can ask management and illustrative examples.
In addition to several questions for consideration in drafting the annual report, specific questions on the financial statements impact include:
• Where climate change risks give rise to a material financial impact, is this appropriately and accurately reflected in the financial
statements? For example, an identified risk of rising sea levels and an increase in flooding could impact the valuation of buildings residing
near to a floodplain and may require significant impairments.
• Has management fully considered the areas within their financial statements which could be impacted by climate change risks?
• Has management clearly explained material assumptions and uncertainties relating to estimates affected by climate change? For example,
does it include relevant sensitivity analysis so users can appreciate the scale of impact.
• Where climate change has significantly affected the valuation of an organisation’s assets and liabilities, is this adequately disclosed?
• Where climate change could affect an organisation’s ability to continue to operate, is there adequate and appropriate disclosure in the
accounting policies on the organisation’s going concern status?
Next steps
• We recommend the Audit Committee review the guide and consider what assurance they need in this area, including whether financial
statement impact and disclosures have been appropriately considered by the Council. Additional guidance on the impact of climate change
for finance professionals is available in Deloitte’s free training materials prepared in partnership with the ICAEW at
https://deloitte.co.uk/climatechange/

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services

21

Recently published Deloitte briefings and articles
Deloitte briefings
Since March 2020, the UK’s government and public services have led radical, exhaustive and dynamic responses
to the coronavirus pandemic. This year’s State of the State finds them dealing with both the pandemic and its
wider repercussions on the public sector’s people, the services they deliver and the citizens they serve.
Looking beyond the pandemic, the UK Government has set out its ambition to ‘build back better’ through
infrastructure investment, levelling up economic outcomes across the regions and revitalising the UK’s place in the
world. At the same time, the policies and politics of Northern Ireland, Scotland and Wales continue to diverge from
Westminster. The State of the State explores all of these developments through exclusive research.

Page 56

The State of
the State
2021/22
Towards a new public
sector normal

For more information,
please visit:
https://www2.deloitte.co
m/uk/en/pages/publicsector/articles/the-stateof-the-state.html

The pandemic has fractured public
attitudes to tax and spending

The public expects the UK to build back,
but not necessarily better

This year, our survey finds the public
split evenly between those who would
welcome higher levels of tax and
spend, those who would like to
maintain the same levels as before the
pandemic, and those who would prefer
lower taxes and lower government
spending. This split in attitudes to tax
and spend appears to have deepened
over the last year. There has been a
drop in the those wanting higher
spending and a rise in those wanting
tax cuts since our last survey.

This Government has ambitious plans for
the UK and aims to ‘build back better’ from
the economic and social damage left by
coronavirus, and our survey asked whether
people expect those areas of UK life to
improve in the next few years. Our results
show that the pandemic has left the public
fairly pessimistic for the future. Just 13 per
cent believe inequalities between regions
are set to improve, and 39 per cent think
that the environmental damage caused by
carbon emissions could get worse not
better.

Levelling up is as much about
people as place
As the Government continues to
develop its levelling up programme,
our survey explored some nuances of
place-based thinking. Our citizen
survey explored the factors people
believe define our opportunities in life.
The findings show a complex set of
perceptions about social mobility in
the UK.
© 2022 Deloitte LLP. All rights reserved.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

22

Fraud responsibilities and representations
Responsibilities explained
Your Responsibilities:
The primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of
fraud rests with management and those charged with
governance, including establishing and maintaining internal
controls over the reliability of financial reporting, effectiveness
and efficiency of operations and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations.
Our Responsibilities:

Page 57

• We are required to obtain representations from your
management regarding internal controls, assessment of risk
and any known or suspected fraud or misstatement.

We will request the following to be
stated in the representation letter
signed on behalf of the Council:
•

We acknowledge our responsibilities for
the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control to prevent
and detect fraud and error.

•

We have disclosed to you the results of our
assessment of the risk that the financial
statements may be materially misstated
as a result of fraud.

•

We are not aware of any fraud or
suspected fraud / We have disclosed to
you all information in relation to fraud or
suspected fraud that we are aware of
and that affects the entity or group and
involves:
(i) management;
(ii) employees who have significant
roles in internal control; or
(iii) others where the fraud could have a
material effect on the financial
statements.

•

We have disclosed to you all information
in relation to allegations of fraud, or
suspected fraud, affecting the entity’s
financial statements communicated by
employees, former employees, analysts,
regulators or others.

• As auditors, we obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
that the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error.
• As set out in the significant risks section of this document, we
have identified the risk of fraud in expenditure accruals and
management override of controls as key audit risks for the
Council.
Fraud Characteristics:
• Misstatements in the financial statements can arise from either
fraud or error. The distinguishing factor between fraud and
error is whether the underlying action that results in the
misstatement of the financial statements is intentional or
unintentional.
• Two types of intentional misstatements are relevant to us as
auditors – misstatements resulting from fraudulent financial
reporting and misstatements resulting from misappropriation
of assets.
Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

23

Fraud responsibilities and representations
Inquiries
We will make the following inquiries regarding fraud:
Management
• Management’s assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated due to
fraud, including the nature, extent and frequency of such assessments.
• Management’s process for identifying and responding to the risks of fraud in the entity.
• Management’s communication, if any, to those charged with governance regarding its processes for
identifying and responding to the risks of fraud in the entity.
• Management’s communication, if any, to employees regarding its views on business practices and ethical
behaviour.
• Whether management has knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity.

Page 58

Internal audit
• Whether internal audit has knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity, and
to obtain its views about the risks of fraud.

Those charged with governance
• How those charged with governance exercise oversight of management’s processes for identifying and
responding to the risks of fraud in the entity and the internal control that management has established to
mitigate these risks.
• Whether those charged with governance have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud
affecting the entity.
• The views of those charged with governance on the most significant fraud risk factors affecting the
entity.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

24

Independence and fees

As part of our obligations under International Standards on Auditing (UK), we are required to report to you on the
matters listed below:

Page 59

Independence
confirmation

We confirm the audit engagement team, and others in the firm as appropriate, Deloitte LLP and,
where applicable, all Deloitte network firms are independent of the Council and will reconfirm our
independence and objectivity to the Audit Committee for the year ending 31 March 2022 in our
final report to the Audit Committee.

Fees

There are no non-audit fees for 2021/22 outside of those noted in the table on the following
page.

Non-audit
services

We continue to review our independence and ensure that appropriate safeguards are in place
including, but not limited to, the rotation of senior partners and professional staff and the
involvement of additional partners and professional staff to carry out reviews of the work
performed and to otherwise advise as necessary.

Relationships

We have no other relationships with the Council, its directors, senior managers and affiliates, and
have not supplied any services to other known connected parties.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

25

Independence and fees (continued)
The professional fees expected to be charged by Deloitte in the period from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022 are as
follows:
Current year
£

Prior year
£

72,757

72,757

TBC

TBC

Value for money [3]

20,000

20,000

Total audit

92,757

92,757

Teachers’ pension audit fee

4,500

4,500

Total assurance services

4,500

4,500

97,257

97,257

Financial statement audit including Whole of Government Accounts and procedures in
respect of Value for Money assessment [1]*
Fee for additional work to address COVID-19 impacts [2]*

Page 60

Total fees

[1] The fee reflected here is the scale fee. In line with recent PSAA correspondence that scale fees should be negotiated by individual
s151 officers based on the individual circumstances of each body, we will be looking to discuss with the Council the current level of
fee.
[2] Addressing the required changes to our audit approach due to the impact of Covid-19, this will be discussed and agreed with
management.
[3] We expect the fee for the work under the new Value for Money arrangements to be in the range of £15-25k. We will finalise the
prior year figures once the work is complete and the AAR issued.
* All additional fees are subject to agreement with PSAA.

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

26

Our approach to quality
AQR team report and findings
Executing high quality audits remains our number one priority.
We are committed to our critical public interest role and
continue to embed our culture of quality and excellence into all
of our people. This includes using new technology and tools to
continue to transform our audit approach.
In July 2021 the Financial Reporting Council (“FRC”) issued
individual reports on each of the seven largest firms, including
Deloitte, on Audit Quality Inspections providing a summary of
the findings of its Audit Quality Review (“AQR”) team for the
2020/21 cycle of reviews.

Page 61

We greatly value the FRC reviews of our audit engagements
and firm wide quality control systems, a key aspect of
evaluating our audit quality.

welcome the good practice points raised, including in respect of
impairment and revenue where individual findings continue to
occur.
Overall, we are pleased that there have been no significant
findings over our firm wide processes and controls over the last
three inspection cycles in the areas subject to rotational review
by the FRC. However, we are continually enhancing our
processes and controls across our business and such changes
will directly or indirectly affect audit quality.
All the AQR public reports are available on its website.
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditors/audit-quality-review/auditfirm-specific-reports

In that context, overall FRC inspection results, showing an
improvement since last year from 76% to 79% of all
inspections assessed as good or needing limited improvement,
reflect the progress we are making. The overall profile of our
ICAEW inspections and our internal inspection programme also
show a similar overall improvement since last year.
The results for the inspections of FTSE 350 entities fell short of
our overall scores, reflecting specific findings on those
particular audits rather than issues pervasive across other
audits. Our objective continues to be for all of our audits to be
assessed as good or needing limited improvement and we know
we still have work to do in order to meet this standard.
We agree with and accept the FRC’s findings on the individual
inspections. The FRC has recognised improvements following
the actions and programmes for previous years and we

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

27

Our approach to quality
AQR team report and findings
The AQR’s 2020/21 Audit Quality Inspection Report on
Deloitte LLP

Page 62

“We reviewed 19 individual audits this year and assessed 15
(79%) as requiring no more than limited improvements. Of
the 11 FTSE 350 audits we reviewed this year, we assessed
eight (73%) as achieving this standard”.

“The firm has taken steps to address the key findings in our
2019/20 public report, with actions that included increasing
the extent of consultations, and enhanced learning, coaching
and support programmes.

“Our key findings related primarily to the need to:

We have identified improvements, for example, in the extent
of challenge of management by audit teams in respect of the
estimates used for model testing. This was identified as a key
finding last year.

• Improve the evaluation and challenge of management’s key
assumptions of impairment assessments of goodwill and
other assets.
• Enhance the consistency of group audit teams’ oversight of
component audit teams.
• Strengthen the effectiveness and consistency of the testing
of revenue.“

We also identified good practice in a number of areas of the
audits we reviewed (including robust procedures relating to
going concern and evidence to support the challenge of
management in areas of key judgement) and in the firm-wide
procedures (including establishing a centre of excellence
focused on credit for banking audits to encourage the
consistent application of the firm’s methodology and
guidance).“

Deloitte Confidential: Public Sector

28

Page 63
This document is confidential and it is not to be copied or made available to any other party. Deloitte LLP does not
accept any liability for use of or reliance on the contents of this document by any person save by the intended
recipient(s) to the extent agreed in a Deloitte LLP engagement contract.
If this document contains details of an arrangement that could result in a tax or National Insurance saving, no such
conditions of confidentiality apply to the details of that arrangement (for example, for the purpose of discussion with tax
authorities).
Deloitte LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registered number OC303675 and its
registered office at 1 New Street Square, London, EC4A 3HQ, United Kingdom.
Deloitte LLP is the United Kingdom affiliate of Deloitte NSE LLP, a member firm of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a
UK private company limited by guarantee (“DTTL”). DTTL and each of its member firms are legally separate and
independent entities. DTTL and Deloitte NSE LLP do not provide services to clients. Please see www.deloitte.com/about
to learn more about our global network of member firms.
© 2022 Deloitte LLP. All rights reserved.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 65
Issued on 10 March 2022
Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

Agenda Item 8

North Yorkshire Pension Fund
Planning report to the Audit Committee on the 2022 audit

Contents
01 Planning Report

02 Topical Matters
3

New powers to block suspicious pension transfers

21

Responsibilities of the Audit Committee

4

Pensions related fraud

22

Continuous communication and reporting

5

Materiality

6

Your control environment

7

03 Appendices

8

ISA 240 - The Auditor's Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an
Audit of Financial Statements

26

Page 66

Partner introduction

Significant audit risks

11

Fraud responsibilities and representations

27

Audit focus areas

13

Independence and fees

29

Our approach to quality

18

Purpose of our report and responsibility statement

19

Scoping

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

2

Partner introduction
The key messages in this report
I have pleasure in presenting our Planning Report to the Audit Committee for the 2022 audit of the North Yorkshire Pension Fund (the ‘Fund’). We would like to
draw your attention to the key messages in this paper.

Audit quality is
our number one
priority

Changes in the year

We plan our audit
to focus on audit
quality and have
set the following
audit quality
objectives for this
audit:

•

Page 67

A robust challenge
of the key
judgements taken
in the preparation
of the financial
statements.
A strong
understanding of
your internal
control
environment.
A well planned
and delivered audit
that raises findings
early with those
charged with
governance.

Based on our discussions with the finance team, we have been made aware of the following significant developments:
Further investment transfers to Borders to Coast Pension Partnership (‘BCPP’) (circa £414m). We will review the transfer of assets,
as well as the internal control reports of BCPP and the investment custodian, Bank of New York Mellon (‘BNYM’), to ensure the
accuracy of the transactions.

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2021/22 (“the 2021/22 Code”) applies in the current year.
There have been no major regulatory changes to the accounting requirements of the Fund in the current year.
The Russian invasion of Ukraine is impacting upon global financial markets. To date the assets most significantly affected have been
those directly linked to Russia and Ukraine – government bonds issued by those countries and companies based there or with
significant operations there. Whilst at this time we do not believe the impact on the Fund to be significant, we will be mindful of these
developments during the course of our audit with a particular focus on valuation and liquidity risk, reputational risk and disclosure.
Significant audit risk
As part of our audit planning procedures and based on planning discussions held, we have created a risk assessment so that our plan
reflects those areas which we believe have a greater chance of leading to material misstatement of the financial statements.
Our significant area of audit risk is management override of controls.
Our scoping decisions and proposed approach to testing this area is outlined on page 12.
Non-compliance with laws and regulations, including fraud
As noted within our quality objectives on this page, we are committed to delivering a robust challenge of the key judgements and
control environment. Our core team will be supplemented by IT specialists in order to support us in our testing of the IT controls.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

Nicola Wright
Audit Partner
3

Responsibilities of the Audit Committee
Helping you fulfil your responsibilities
The primary purpose of the
auditor’s interaction with the
Audit Committee:
To communicate audit
scope

To provide timely and
relevant observations

Page 68

To provide additional
information to help
you fulfil your broader
responsibilities

Provide assurance over
the financial
statements

As a result of regulatory change in recent years, the role of the Audit Committee has significantly expanded. We set out
here a summary of the core areas of Audit Committee responsibility to provide a reference in respect of these broader
responsibilities and highlight where there is key information which helps those charged with governance in fulfilling their
remit.

•

Review of external audit findings, key
judgements, and level of
misstatements.

•

Assess the quality of the Fund advisors
where activities have been delegated
by the Audit Committee.

•

Assess the completeness of
disclosures, including consistency with
disclosures required under the Code
of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the UK.

• Consider annually whether there is a
need for an internal audit function and
any testing to be performed over
pension activities.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

Oversight of external
audit

• At the start of each annual audit
cycle, ensure the scope of the
external audit is appropriate.
• Implement a policy on the
engagement of the external auditor
to supply non-audit services.

Integrity of reporting

Internal controls and
risk

Oversight of internal
audit

Whistle-blowing and
fraud

• Review the internal control reports
and risk management systems for
Fund advisors.
• Explain what actions have been, or
are being taken to remedy any
significant failings or weaknesses.

• Ensure that appropriate
arrangements are in place for the
proportionate and independent
investigation of any concerns that are
raised by staff in connection with
improprieties.

4

Continuous communication and reporting
Planned timing of the audit
As the audit plan is executed throughout the year, the results will be analysed continuously and conclusions (preliminary and otherwise) will be drawn and initial comments from the
interim and final visits will be shared with management as required. The following sets out the expected timing of our reporting to, and communication with, you.

Planning
• Planning discussions
• Discussion of fraud risk
assessment

Page 69

• Audit team presents
planning report to the
Audit Committee

Interim fieldwork
• Document design and
implementation of key controls and
update understanding of key
business cycles
• Substantive testing of limited areas
including benefits, contributions
and expenditure

Year end fieldwork
• Audit of Annual Report and Financial
Statements
• Year-end audit field work visit
• Year-end closing meetings with
management
• Completion of testing on significant audit
risks

Post reporting activities
• Issue year end report to the Audit
Committee and presentation of
report and attendance at
Committee meeting
• Audit de-brief on the 2022 audit
• Reporting of significant control
deficiencies
• Signing audit reports in respect of
Financial Statements
• Planning considerations for 2023
audit

Planning

Verbal update

Continuous reporting to Management

Final report to the Audit Committee
and any additional reporting as
required

February 2022 – March
2022

March 2022 – April 2022

June 2022 – September 2022

Deadline 30 November 2022

Ongoing communication and weekly calls during the year end fieldwork phase

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

5

Materiality
Our approach to materiality
We will use 1% of Fund net assets as the benchmark for determining
our materiality levels for 2022.

•

The audit partner has estimated financial statement materiality as
£49.2m (2021: £45.1m), based on professional judgement, the
requirements of auditing standards and the net assets of the Fund.
These figures are based on the 31 December 2021 investment assets
valuation.

•

We will determine current year materiality figures and reporting to
those charged with governance figures for the Fund on receipt of the
draft 2022 financial statements.

Although materiality is the judgement of the audit partner, the Audit Committee members must
be satisfied the level of materiality chosen is appropriate for the scope of the audit.

Page 70

•

Materiality calculation

Net assets
(31/12/2021)

The basis for our materiality calculations is the same as the previous year.

£4,928.5m

Reporting to those charged with governance
•

We will report to you on any misstatements above our reporting
threshold (“RT”) which is 5% of the materiality level.

•

Misstatements below these thresholds will be reported if we consider
them to be material by nature.

5 % Reporting Threshold

1%

Financial Statement Materiality

Basis of our materiality benchmark

£49.2m

£2.45m

£xx

£xx
Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

6

Your control environment
What we consider when we plan the audit
We expect management and those charged with governance to recognise the importance of a strong control environment and take proactive steps to deal with
deficiencies identified on a timely basis.
Responsibilities of management

Responsibilities of the Audit Committee

Auditing standards require us to only accept or continue with an audit
engagement when the preconditions for an audit are present. These preconditions
include obtaining the agreement of management and those charged with
governance that they acknowledge and understand their responsibilities for,
amongst other things, internal control as is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

As explained further in the Responsibilities of the Audit Committee on page 4, the
Audit Committee is responsible for:
•

Overseeing the internal control and risk management systems; and

•

Overseeing and understanding what actions management have been, or will
be, taking to remedy any significant failings or weaknesses.

Page 71

As stakeholders tell us that they to wish to understand how external audit challenges and responds to the quality of an entity’s control environment, we are seeking to
enhance how we plan and report on the results of the audit in response. We will be placing increased focus on how the control environment impacts the audit, from our
initial risk assessment, to our testing approach and how we report on misstatements and control deficiencies.

Reliance on controls

We test the design and implementation of identified controls in respect of journal entries and financial reporting, contributions and
investments, retirements and transfers but not the operating effectiveness. We identify and test the operating effectiveness of relevant
controls for a material account balance or class of transactions more significant than revenue to the financial statements. In the current
year this entails the further investment transfers to Borders to Coast Pension Partnership - we will seek signed authorisations as well as
transition reports in order to gain comfort over the transfer process as well as the controls in place throughout the transition.

Performance materiality

We set performance materiality as a percentage of materiality (typically 70%) to reduce the probability that, in aggregate, uncorrected
and undetected misstatements exceed materiality. We determine performance materiality, with reference to factors such as the quality
of the control environment and the historical error rate. Where we are unable to rely on controls, we may use a lower level of
performance materiality.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

7

Scoping
Summary of account balances (Fund Account)
Below we have considered each of the Fund’s account balances. We will report factually on the key audit risks that have the biggest impact on the audit, explaining
why the risk is relevant within the specific circumstances of the Fund and clearly document the specific procedures we will perform to address the key audit risk. The
estimated account balances below are based on the prior year signed financial statements. We will report control observations and other findings in our final report
to the Audit Committee on work performed on other account balances.

FUND ACCOUNT BALANCES
31/03/2021

Contributions – 2021: £133m
This is a material balance. We have considered the risk in respect of accuracy as well as
timeliness on page 14.

Page 72

Benefits payable and transfers out – 2021: £129.9m
Benefits payable and transfers consists of material pensions payable, lump sums and
transfers out. We have considered the risk in respect of retirement lump sums and
individual transfers. As there is little complexity involved and there have not been any
significant issues in prior years, this balance will be subject to audit testing as a normal
risk.

£141.6m
£70.2m

£492.4m

£118.3m
£336.1m
£129.9m

Management expenses – 2021: £31.4m
These relate to administration and investment expenses. As there is little complexity
involved and there have not been any significant issues in prior years, this balance will be
subject to audit testing as a normal risk.

£31.4m
£4.2m
£285.0m

Investment income – 2021: £4.2m
This balance is net of interest expense. As the balance is not material, this will not be
subject to audit testing.

£754.3m

£51.7m
£982m
£240.1m

Change in market value (CIMV) – 2021: £982m
CIMV has been included within the graph due to the significance of its size. As this is
manually recalculated as part of our investment reconciliation, the balance will be subject
to audit testing as a normal risk, however it has been included as an area of audit focus
within “accuracy of investment transactions including transition to BCPP” on page 16.

£133m

£298.7m

£285.5m

£285.0m
Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

8

Scoping
Summary of account balances (Statement of Net Assets)
Investment Assets – 2021: £4,493.8m
• Bonds and Quoted Equities – As these balances are considered routine in nature and not complex, they will be subject to audit procedures as a normal risk.
We will use our pricing vendors to test the valuation of a sample of bonds and equities.
• Pooled Investment Vehicles (“PIVs”) - The majority of PIVs consist of the private equity portfolio, which are an area of audit focus. They will therefore be
subject to enhanced audit procedures which have been discussed on pages 15 and 16.
• Pooled Property – As pooled property forms part of the PIVs, we have included audit procedures on pages 15 and 16. As these balances are considered
routine in nature and not complex, they will be subject to audit procedures as a normal risk.
• AVCs/cash/other investments – As these balances are considered routine in nature and not complex, they will be subject to audit procedures as normal
risks. We will substantively test a sample of each balance.

Statement of net asset balances (£m)

Page 73

Other investment balances
Cash
Pooled property
PIVs

Fixed interest securities
Equities
0.0

500.0

1,000.0

1,500.0

2,000.0

2,500.0

3,000.0

3,500.0

4,000.0

Current assets and long term debtors – 2021: £23.7m
We will agree the year-end cash balance to an independent confirmation as well as testing the bank reconciliations. All other current asset balances are
immaterial and therefore will be scoped out of testing.
Current liabilities – 2021: £7.5m
We will also review the post year end bank statements for evidence of any unrecorded liabilities. All other current liability balances are immaterial and
therefore will be scoped out of testing.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

9

Page 74

Significant
audit risk
Significant
Significant
audit
auditrisks
risk

Significant
audit risks
10

Significant audit risks
Our risk assessment process
Significant risks are defined as risks which require a tailored, elevated audit response in terms of the nature, timing and extent of audit testing. Significant
risks are based on professional judgement and the results of the risk assessment procedures we have performed.
We consider a number of factors when deciding on the significant audit risks. These factors include:
• the significant risks and uncertainties previously reported in the annual report and financial statements;
•

the disclosures made by the Audit Committee in their previous Audit Committee report;

•
•

our assessment of materiality; and
the changes that have occurred in the Fund and the environment it operates in since the last annual report and financial statements.

We have rebutted the risk of revenue recognition as there is little incentive or opportunity for revenue (including investment income, transfers and
contributions) to be fraudulently misstated and therefore there is limited risk of material misstatement arising due to fraud. The risk of fraud in revenue
recognition has therefore not been identified as a significant fraud risk.

Page 75
Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

11

Significant risk
Management override of controls
Risk identified
In accordance with ISA 240 (UK), management override is always a significant risk for financial statement audits. The primary risk areas surrounding the management override
of internal controls are over the processing of journal entries and the key assumptions and estimates made by management.
Response of those charged with
governance

Deloitte response to significant risk identified

The Audit Committee has regular oversight
of the financial reporting process and there
is an adequate level of segregation of duties
in place.

In order to address the significant risk we will perform the following audit procedures:

Page 76



Use Spotlight, our data analytics software, in our journals testing to interrogate 100% of journals posted across the Fund. This
uses intelligent algorithms that identify higher risk and unusual items;



Substantively test the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the general ledger and other adjustments made in the
preparation of the financial statements. As part of our work in this area, we perform an analysis of journal entries which
enable us to focus on journals meeting specific pre-determined parameters determined during our audit planning;



Make inquiries of individuals involved in the financial reporting process about inappropriate or unusual activity relating to the
processing of journal entries and other adjustments;



Perform a walkthrough of the financial reporting process to identify the controls over journal entries and other adjustments
posted in the preparation of the financial statements;



Ensure that there is an appropriate level of segregation of duties over processing journal entries to the financial statements
throughout the year;



Test the design and implementation of controls around the journals process and investment and disinvestment of cash
during the year;



Review of related party transactions and balances to identify if any inappropriate transactions have taken place; and



Review the accounting estimates for bias, that could result in material misstatement due to fraud, including whether any
differences between estimates best supported by evidence and those in the financial statements, even if individually
reasonable, indicate a possible bias on the part of management.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

12

Page 77

Significant
audit focus
risk
Audit
areas
Audit focus
areas
13

Audit focus areas
Other areas of focus
#

Area of Focus

Risk and procedures

1

Accuracy and
completeness of
contributions

There is some complexity surrounding the accuracy and completeness of employee and employer contributions received by the Fund.
The employer primary and secondary contribution rates are dictated by the actuarial valuation and these vary between the
contributing employers. Employee contributions are based on varying percentages of employee pensionable pay, this can vary month
to month and the Fund has no oversight of the individual employer payrolls.
As a result of this we would expect the accuracy and completeness of contributions to be an area of audit focus.

Page 78

Our procedures to address this risk include:
• Review the design and implementation of key controls over the contribution process;
• Perform an analytical review of the employer and employee normal contributions received in the year, basing our expectation on
the prior year audited balance, adjusted for the movement in active member numbers, contribution rate changes and any average
pay rise awarded in the year;
• For a sample of active members, we will recalculate individual contribution deductions to ensure these are being calculated in
accordance with the rates stipulated in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations for employee contributions and
the recommendations of the actuary for employer contributions respectively;
• Test the reconciliation of the total number of active members between the membership records and the employer payroll records;
• Test that the correct definition of pensionable salary is being used per the LGPS Regulations to calculate contribution deductions;
and
• For a sample of monthly contributions paid, check that they have been paid within the due dates per the LGPS Regulations.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

14

Audit focus areas
Other areas of focus
#

Area of Focus

Risk and procedures

2

Valuation of
alternative
investments

Within this portfolio is a range of alternative investments, including private equity and debt funds as well as limited partnerships and
hedge funds. These funds do not have publicly available prices and are often infrequently priced increasing the risk of stale pricing. As
a result of this we consider the completeness and valuation of these to be an area of audit focus.

Page 79

Our procedures to address this risk include:
• Review the design and implementation of key controls by obtaining the investment manager internal control reports (where
available) and evaluating the implications for our audit of any exceptions noted;
• Review the design and implementation of any key controls performed in-house;
• Review the internal controls report for BCPP and perform walkthroughs to independent evidence for key transactions and
investments;
• Agree the year end valuations as reported in the financial statements to the reports received independently from the investment
managers;
• Perform independent valuation testing for a sample of year end alternative fund holdings by rolling forward the valuation as per
the latest audited accounts using cashflows and an appropriate index as a benchmark;
• Obtain the custodian pricing comparison to investment manager prices and review to understand pricing differences; and
• Ensure appropriate stale price adjustments have been posted to the financial statements.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

15

Audit focus areas
Other areas of focus
#

Area of Focus

Risk and procedures

3

Accuracy of
investment
transactions
including
transition to
BCPP

The Fund holds a diverse portfolio of PIVs including equities, bonds, standard PIVs and property PIVs. The volume of transactions and
different holdings could lead to a risk of incomplete or inaccurate reporting of transactions or balances at the year-end.

Page 80

Our procedures to address this risk include:
• Review the design and implementation of key controls by obtaining the investment manager and custodian internal control reports
(where available) and evaluating the implications for our audit of any exceptions noted;
• Review the design and implementation of key internal controls around investments;
• Review the internal controls report for BCPP and perform walkthroughs to independent evidence for key transactions and
investments;
• Obtain independent confirmation of transactions during the Fund year from the investment managers;
• Obtain and audit a unit reconciliation in which the opening investment balances and unit quantities are reconciled to the closing
investment balances and unit quantities by taking into account the movement that occurred during the year (i.e. sales, purchases,
change in market value); and
• Test a sample of purchases and sales by tracing items from the custodian report to the relevant investment manager confirmation.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

16

Page 81

Maintaining
Maintaining
Maintaining
Maintaining
audit
audit
auditquality
quality
audit
quality
quality
17

Our approach to quality
AQR team report and findings
Executing high quality audits remains our number one priority. We are committed to
our critical public interest role and continue to embed our culture of quality and
excellence into all of our people. This includes using new technology and tools to
continue to transform our audit approach.
In July 2021 the Financial Reporting Council (“FRC”) issued individual reports on each
of the seven largest firms, including Deloitte, on Audit Quality Inspections providing
a summary of the findings of its Audit Quality Review (“AQR”) team for the 2020/21
cycle of reviews.
We greatly value the FRC reviews of our audit engagements and firm wide quality
control systems, a key aspect of evaluating our audit quality.

Page 82

In that context, overall FRC inspection results, showing an improvement since last
year from 76% to 79% of all inspections assessed as good or needing limited
improvement, reflect the progress we are making. The overall profile of our ICAEW
inspections and our internal inspection programme also show a similar overall
improvement since last year.
The results for the inspections of FTSE 350 entities fell short of our overall scores,
reflecting specific findings on those particular audits rather than issues pervasive
across other audits. Our objective continues to be for all of our audits to be assessed
as good or needing limited improvement and we know we still have work to do in
order to meet this standard.
We agree with and accept the FRC’s findings on the individual inspections. The FRC
has recognised improvements following the actions and programmes for previous
years and we welcome the good practice points raised, including in respect of
impairment and revenue where individual findings continue to occur.
Overall, we are pleased that there have been no significant findings over our firm
wide processes and controls over the last three inspection cycles in the areas subject
to rotational review by the FRC. However, we are continually enhancing our
processes and controls across our business and such changes will directly or
indirectly affect audit quality.
All the AQR public reports are available on its website.
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditors/audit-quality-review/audit-firm-specific-reports
Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

The AQR’s 2020/21 Audit Quality Inspection Report on Deloitte
LLP
“We reviewed 19 individual audits this year and assessed 15 (79%)
as requiring no more than limited improvements. Of the 11 FTSE
350 audits we reviewed this year, we assessed eight (73%) as
achieving this standard”.
•

“Our key findings related primarily to the need to:

•

Improve the evaluation and challenge of management’s key
assumptions of impairment assessments of goodwill and other
assets.

•

Enhance the consistency of group audit teams’ oversight of
component audit teams.

•

Strengthen the effectiveness and consistency of the testing of
revenue.“

“The firm has taken steps to address the key findings in our
2019/20 public report, with actions that included increasing the
extent of consultations, and enhanced learning, coaching and
support programmes.
We have identified improvements, for example, in the extent of
challenge of management by audit teams in respect of the
estimates used for model testing. This was identified as a key
finding last year.
We also identified good practice in a number of areas of the audits
we reviewed (including robust procedures relating to going
concern and evidence to support the challenge of management in
areas of key judgement) and in the firm-wide procedures (including
establishing a centre of excellence focused on credit for banking
audits to encourage the consistent application of the firm’s
methodology and guidance).“

Purpose of our report and responsibility statement
Our report is designed to help you meet your governance duties
What we report
Our report is designed to establish our respective responsibilities in
relation to the financial statements audit, to agree our audit plan and to
take the opportunity to ask you questions at the planning stage of our
audit. Our report includes:
•
•

Our audit plan, including key audit judgements and the planned scope;
and
Key regulatory updates, relevant to you.

Page 83

Other relevant communications
• Our technical updates provide the Audit Committee with some insight
in to relevant topical events in the pensions industry.
• We will update you if there are any significant changes to the audit
plan.

This report has been prepared for the Audit Committee, as a body, and we
therefore accept responsibility to you alone for its contents. We accept no
duty, responsibility or liability to any other parties, since this report has not
been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. Except where
required by law or regulation, it should not be made available to any other
parties without our prior written consent.

What we don’t report
• As you will be aware, our audit is not designed to identify all matters that
may be relevant to the Audit Committee.
• Also, there will be further information you need to discharge your
governance responsibilities, such as matters reported on by management
or by other specialist advisers.
• Finally, the views on internal controls and Fund risk assessment in our
final report should not be taken as comprehensive or as an opinion on
effectiveness since they will be based solely on the audit procedures
performed in the audit of the financial statements and the other
procedures performed in fulfilling our audit plan.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss our report with you and receive
your feedback.

Nicola Wright
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Newcastle upon Tyne | 10 March 2022

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

19

Page 84

Topical
Topicalmatters
matters
Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

Topical matters
New powers to block suspicious pension transfers
Pension providers and Trustees have the power to block pension transfer requests if they suspect a member is being scammed, under measures that came into
force. New rules from 30 November 2021 will give Trustees and pension providers the power to block or pause a member’s transfer out request if they have
serious concerns about the destination of the transfer value.
Under the new powers, Trustees and administrators are able to intervene in a transfer if the information they have gathered from the receiving scheme or any
scheme member triggers a “red” or “amber” flag. These flags are detailed below.
Guy Opperman, minister for pensions said “We are tackling the scourge of pension scams in practical terms to safeguard pensioners’ hard-earned savings. These
measures will provide better protection for savers.” The new powers are therefore widely seen as a way for Trustees to protect their members and prevent any
future scams going forward. Under the rules, all transfers to master trusts, collective defined contribution (CDC) schemes and funded public sector schemes are
effectively exempt as they are regarded as safe destinations.

Page 85

•
•
•

•

The member has not responded to a request for information in
relation to a suspicious transfer.
The member indicates they have received financial advice from a
company without the appropriate regulatory permissions.
The member has requested the transfer following an unsolicited
approach from an individual or firm they had no existing
relationship with.
The member has been pressured, or indicated they felt pressured,
to make the transfer.

When an amber flag is raised, Trustees and their administrators are required to
direct them to Pension Wise guidance and confirm the member has received
that guidance before letting the transfer go ahead.
Amber flags would be raised where:
• There are high-risk or unregulated investments included in the scheme the
person is transferring to.
• The fees charged by the receiving scheme are unclear or high.
• The proposed investment structures are complicated or unorthodox The
receiving scheme includes overseas investments.

*Red and amber flags source AJ Bell

Deloitte response: The Audit Committee should engage with the administration at the Fund to ensure that processes have
been put in place to ensure that the new rules were implemented from 30 November 2021 and that these further steps
have been implemented to protect members against pension scams.
Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

Topical matters
Pensions related fraud
Pension schemes are attractive to fraudsters. Large sums of money being held for beneficiaries, who, in most cases, have very little involvement in overseeing
their accumulation, stretched over a long time period, presents a fertile opportunity. It is surprising, that even with the amount of cases that are prevalent, fraud
and scams are often at the bottom of a Trustee’s list when it comes to considering risks to their schemes. Please refer below few instances of pensions related
fraud and some other useful information which we believe would be helpful for Trustees in risk-assessment.
Investment and misappropriation risks
A trustee was removed by the sponsoring employer for claiming fictitious
expenses on account of attending Trustee meetings and other related
expenses.
A fraudulent fishing email resulted in disinvestment of pension scheme
funds and routed the cash to fraudsters bank accounts.

Page 86

In January 2019, the former head of the Westminster City Council pension
fund was jailed for seven years. He had been found guilty of stealing over £1
million from the fund by diverting monies earmarked for investments for his
own personal use.
In February 2019, an accountant took over £280,000 from a pension
scheme, for which he was a Trustee, to invest in one of his failing businesses.
He falsified details of a meeting that approved it.
In November 2018, a Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Trustee of a pension
scheme was banned from being a Trustee after a whistle-blower highlighted
he was planning to invest £1.2 million of the pension fund in the firm he was
CEO of and a major shareholder in.
A pension fund based in Norfolk, UK covering 90,000 members largely from
the local council, was part of a successful case to sue Los Angeles-based
Puma Biotechnology and its CEO, who had made false claims which led to
artificially inflating the share price. This resulted in a £50,000 loss to the
pension fund (and a £100 million loss across all Defendants).

Cifas is an independent, not-for-profit organisation working to reduce
fraud and related financial crime in the UK. As per their records identity
fraud rose by nearly 20% in 2019, accounting for the largest number of
cases recorded by Cifas members at 61%. People aged over 31 were
specifically targeted by this type of fraudulent conduct, with victims aged
60 and over on the rise. The highest number of victims (68%) were
recorded in the South East region.

Victims of Impersonation by age group
50000
45000
40000
35000
30000
25000
20000
15000
10000
5000

An overnight loan was granted to a related party without appropriate
approval. However the loan was returned subsequently and did not cause
any significant financial loss to the Scheme.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

0
< 21

21-30

31-40
2018

41-50
2019

51-60

61 +

Topical matters
Pensions related fraud
Opportunistic pension fraud

Pension Liberations

• In 2013, The Sun newspaper, using an undercover reporter, was
able to secure a death certificate and an official Indian record of
death. Such records are available for as little as £300 from
corrupt officials.

In recent years, the pension liberation reforms have stimulated an increase in frauds
targeting those with pensions. This has, in turn led to an increase in the action by
authorities to tackle this problem. However, the media focus on ‘pension liberation
frauds’ has masked a range of opportunities for fraud in the wider pensions sector.
These include frauds by those running pensions schemes, inappropriate investments
and the targeting of pension schemes by external fraudsters, sometimes those
involved in organised crime. These risks have received less attention.

• In Russia in 2010, the wife of the ‘deceased’ presented a Russian
death certificate to the British embassy to enable various frauds
to take place.
• In 2014, a man was jailed for attempting to claim a £1 million life
insurance policy using false death certificates from India.

Page 87

• In 2019, a woman was convicted of continuing to claim her
father’s war pension and other benefits after his death in 2004
amounting to a £740,000 loss.
• A daughter continued to claim her mother’s pension for two
years after her death, defrauding the pension scheme of over
£7,500.

National Fraud Initiative (NFI):
Evidence from the National Fraud Initiative (NFI), where details of the deceased are
matched against those receiving benefits, also illustrates this continues to be a
significant problem. The most recent NFI report identified £55.5m million of
payments to persons claiming the pensions of dead persons, whilst the total number
of cases were 2,876 claiming average £19,289 per annum.

Incompetent or corrupt pension administrators

Comparison of pension related overpayments 2012/13 to 2018/19

• An employee of the pension Scheme administrator was
terminated by the scheme administrator for diverting benefits of
dead pensioners to his spouse bank account. A similar case of
creating a fictitious pensioner on the payroll was also noted.
• Due to non adherence with employee conflict of interest policies
at a Scheme administrator, it was noted that a married couple
were preparing and reviewing the bank reconciliations of pension
schemes. The incident causes more concerns as it was identified
during COIVD times when all employees were working from
home.

2012/13

Average
outcome
per case

2014/15

2016/17

2018/19

Number
of cases

£m

Number
of cases

£m

Number
of cases

£m

Number
of cases

£m

2,990

75.9

3,592

85.1

3,763

136.9

2,876

55.5

£25,385

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

£23,692

£36,381

£19,289

Topical matters
Pensions related fraud
Cyber-security risk

Research has estimated that there are over 1.6 million ‘lost’ individual pension funds
worth around £20 billion Pension schemes make millions of payments each year and
there are a variety of risks of fraud in this area. There are risks from internal fraud
where corrupt staff use their knowledge to facilitate a variety of frauds. Given some of
the potential weaknesses in the counter fraud processes of pension administrators
combined with the large sums available, the risk of such fraud is high. There is
significant evidence that shows identity fraud has been increasing in prevalence for the
last 10 years. Cifas, a fraud prevention service in the UK, produces statistics each year
on the number of cases of identity fraud. Cifas define identity fraud as “when a criminal
abuses personal data to impersonate an innocent party or creates a fictitious identity to
open an account. Their statistics shows a sharp increase since last five years.

The data pension scheme administrators hold would be very
useful to fraudsters. There are a wide variety of risks that
emerge as a result of increasing use of digital technologies to
administer pension schemes. These include:

Page 88

Identity fraud

Cifas: Cases of Identity Fraud

250,000
200,000

223,163
169,592

172,918

174,523

189,108

• impersonation of legitimate beneficiaries to divert payments
• hacking of systems to alter records for the purpose of fraud
• hacking of systems to secure the personal information of
pension holders.
There are many other examples of cybercrime involving
sophisticated hackers or corrupt insiders. Any organisation
with large amounts of money and sensitive personal data is a
potential target for fraudsters.
A UK man based in Berkshire hacked into the Orange County
Employee Retirement Scheme in the USA and diverted
payments from some members to accounts he had set up in
their name. Over £15,000 in pension payments per month
were at risk from his fraud.

150,000

In 2018, Equifax was hacked exposing 143 million accounts
worldwide and 400,000 in the UK.

100,000

System super-users access rights granted to few employees of
a Pension Scheme administrator to edit their own member
records and those of each other. It was noted that Super-users
edited their and each other’s activity and no second formal
review process or other mitigating controls were in place.

50,000
0

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

Page 89

Appendices
Key audit matters

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

Appendices
25

Appendix 1: ISA 240 – The Auditor's Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an
Audit of Financial Statements
The primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the Scheme and management. It is important that
management, with the oversight of those charged with governance, place a strong emphasis on fraud prevention, which may reduce opportunities for fraud to take place, and
fraud deterrence, which could persuade individuals not to commit fraud because of the likelihood of detection and punishment. This involves a commitment to creating a culture of
honesty and ethical behaviour which can be reinforced by an active oversight by those charged with governance. Oversight by those charged with governance includes considering
the potential for override of controls or other inappropriate influence over the financial reporting process.
Auditors Responsibility
An auditor conducting an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK) is responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements taken as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements of the financial
statements may not be detected, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with the ISAs.
As part of our partner lead planning process, as an audit team we have considered the possible avenues of fraud within the Scheme and have outlined our approach to each
consideration below.
Consideration

Approach

Page 90

Fraudulent posting of journal entries – the
purposeful misstatement of the financial
statements

We have outlined our approach to the mitigation of this risk on page 12.

Fraudulent valuation of investment assets incentive to overstate assets value

We have outlined our approach to the mitigation of this risk on page 15.

Misappropriation of cash - disinvestments not
processed in accordance with the investment
mandate

In response to this risk we will perform a walkthrough of the disinvestment process and assess the
design and implementation of the identified controls. We will inspect the investment mandate in place
and the signed disinvestment instruction to ensure it has been processed appropriately. We then track
the disinvestment proceeds to the Fund bank account.

Creation of fictional pensioner records and
payments to non Scheme members

In response to this risk we will perform a walkthrough of the process and assess the design and
implementation of controls around pensioner set up and amendments to existing records to ensure there
are appropriate controls and enforced segregation of duties. In addition, we will perform design and
implementation testing of controls associated with payments made from the Fund bank account to
ensure they are authorised in accordance with payment limits and only on inspection of information
received from the member.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

26

Appendix 2: Fraud responsibilities and representations
Responsibilities explained

Page 91

Your Responsibilities:
The primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with
management and the Audit Committee, including establishing and maintaining
internal controls over the reliability of financial reporting, effectiveness and
efficiency of operations and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

We will request the following to be stated in
the representation letter signed on behalf of the
Audit Committee:
•

We acknowledge our responsibilities for the
design, implementation and maintenance of
internal control to prevent and detect fraud and
error.

Our Responsibilities:

•

We have disclosed to you the results of our
assessment of the risk that the financial
statements may be materially misstated as a
result of fraud.

•

We are not aware of any fraud or suspected
fraud / We have disclosed to you all
information in relation to fraud or suspected
fraud that we are aware of and that affects
the Fund and involves:
(i) management;

•

We are required to obtain representations from your management regarding
internal controls, assessment of risk and any known or suspected fraud or
misstatement.

•

As auditors, we obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error.

•

As set out in the significant risk section of this document, we have identified
management override as a key audit risk for the Fund.

(ii)

employees who have significant roles in
internal control; or
(iii) others where the fraud could have a
material effect on the financial
statements.

Fraud Characteristics:
•

•

Misstatements in the financial statements can arise from either fraud or
error. The distinguishing factor between fraud and error is whether the
underlying action that results in the misstatement of the financial statements
is intentional or unintentional.
Two types of intentional misstatements are relevant to us as auditors –
misstatements resulting from fraudulent financial reporting and
misstatements resulting from misappropriation of assets.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

•

We have disclosed to you all information in
relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected
fraud, affecting the Fund’s financial
statements communicated by employees,
former employees, analysts, regulators or
others.

27

Appendix 2: Fraud responsibilities and representations (continued)
Inquiries
We will make the following inquiries regarding fraud:
Management

Page 92

•

Management’s assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated due to fraud, including the nature, extent and
frequency of such assessments.

•

Management’s process for identifying and responding to the risks of fraud in the Fund.

•
•

Management’s communication, if any, to the Audit Committee regarding its processes for identifying and responding to the risks of fraud in
the Fund.
Management’s communication, if any, to employees regarding its views on business practices and ethical behaviour.

•

Whether management has knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the Fund.

•

We plan to involve management from outside the finance function in our inquiries.

Internal audit
•

Whether internal audit has knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the Fund, and to obtain its views about the risks of
fraud.

The Audit Committee
•

How the Audit Committee exercises oversight of management’s processes for identifying and responding to the risks of fraud in the Fund and
the internal control that management has established to mitigate these risks.

•

Whether the Audit Committee has knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the Fund.

•

The views of the Audit Committee on the most significant fraud risk factors affecting the Fund.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

28

Appendix 3: Independence and fees
A Fair and Transparent Fee
As part of our obligations under International Standards on Auditing (UK), we are required to report to you on the matters listed below:

Independence
confirmation

Page 93

Fees

We confirm the audit engagement team, and others in the firm as appropriate, Deloitte LLP and, where applicable, all Deloitte
network firms are independent of the Fund and will reconfirm our independence and objectivity to the Audit Committee for the year
ending 31 March 2022 in our final report to the Audit Committee.
In considering the requirements of Auditor Guidance Note 01 (issued by the National Audit Office) and the Ethical Standard 2019 to
report all significant facts and matters that may bear upon our integrity, objectivity and independence, though not meeting the
defined criteria for an affiliate of an audited entity, we will take account of the tax and internal audit services provided to BCPP by
Deloitte. To this effect we have documented our assessment on the threats and safeguards concerned with the delivery of services
to, and the receipt of fees from, BCPP, along with our assessment on the opinion of a reasonable and informed third party on these
services.
Our initial audit fee for the year ending 31 March 2022 is £19,206 for the Fund. The fee reflected here is the scale fee. In line with
recent PSAA correspondence that scale fees should be negotiated by individual s151 officers, we are in discussion with the Fund
regarding the current level of fee which we deem to be too low given the size and complexity of the body.
The above fee also excludes the cost of providing IAS 19 letters to other local authorities that will be recharged by the Fund to the
other local authorities. This fee is in the process of being quantified and will be discussed with management.
The above fees exclude VAT.

Non audit services

In our opinion there are no inconsistencies between the FRC’s Ethical Standard and the Fund’s policy for the supply of non-audit
services or any apparent breach of that policy.
We continue to review our independence and ensure that appropriate safeguards are in place including, but not limited to, the
rotation of senior partners and professional staff and the involvement of additional partners and professional staff to carry out
reviews of the work performed and to otherwise advise as necessary.

Ethical Standard 2019

Under the Ethical Standard released by the FRC in 2019, the standard classes pension schemes as 'other entities of public interest '
where assets are greater than £1bn and there are more than 10,000 members. As a result, non-audit services will be limited
primarily to reporting accountant work, audit related and other regulatory and assurance services. All other advisory services to
these entities, their UK parents and world-wide subs will be prohibited.

Deloitte Confidential: Government and Public Services – For Approved External Use Only

29

Page 94
Deloitte LLP does not accept any liability for use of or reliance on the contents of this document by any person save by the intended recipient(s) to
the extent agreed in a Deloitte LLP engagement contract.
If this document contains details of an arrangement that could result in a tax or National Insurance saving, no such conditions of confidentiality apply
to the details of that arrangement (for example, for the purpose of discussion with tax authorities).
Deloitte LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registered number OC303675 and its registered office at 1 New
Street Square, London, EC4A 3HQ, United Kingdom.
Deloitte LLP is the United Kingdom affiliate of Deloitte NSE LLP, a member firm of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK private company limited
by guarantee (“DTTL”). DTTL and each of its member firms are legally separate and independent entities. DTTL and Deloitte NSE LLP do not provide
services to clients. Please see www.deloitte.com/about to learn more about our global network of member firms.
© 2022 Deloitte LLP. All rights reserved.

Agenda Item 9
NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
AUDIT COMMITTEE
22 MARCH 2022
PROGRESS ON 2021/22 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN
Report of the Head of Internal Audit

1.0

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To inform Members of the progress made to date in delivering the 2021/22 internal
audit programme of work and the other related services delivered to the County
Council by Veritau (information governance and counter fraud). The report also
highlights any issues likely to impact on the programme of work throughout the
remainder of the year.

2.0

BACKGROUND

2.1

The internal audit programme for 2021/22 totalled 950 (plus 1,226 days for other
work including counter fraud and information governance). It is important that audit
resources are used effectively and focus on those areas which add the most value.
The programme of work is therefore designed to be flexible so that as new risks are
identified or priorities change it can be updated. This is particularly important this
year as the County Council recovers from the Covid-19 pandemic and begins the
process to create a new single council for North Yorkshire.

2.2

This report provides details of the work completed in 2021/22 to date, current work
ongoing and the priorities for the remainder of the year.

3.0

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRAMME OF WORK (TO 31 JANUARY 2022)

3.1

The programme of internal audit work was prepared on the basis of a risk
assessment and planned to ensure there was sufficient coverage of the framework
of governance, risk management and internal control. We have also defined the
following as areas where assurance is required in order to provide an evidence
based opinion:











Strategic planning
Organisational governance
Financial governance
Risk management
Information governance
Performance management and data quality
Procurement and contract management
People management
Asset management
Programme and project management

Page 95


3.2

ICT governance

The requirement for providing assurance across all of these areas is taken into
account when prioritising work. The programme of work has been subject to
ongoing review and has been adjusted in response to changes in the County
Council’s activities, risks, operations, systems and controls. During the year,
planned work has been prioritised on the basis of:




Do first – work of the highest value, priority, or urgency
Do next – work to be started after current audit work is completed
Do later – work scheduled for consideration later in the year (or in the future)

3.3

Changes in the priority of work are agreed with council officers. Individual audit
assignments can also move between the categories as required. For example a
project audit classed as “do now” because it represents an area of high importance
to the County Council may move from “do now” to “do next” or “do later”, if the
project slips or planned work cannot be undertaken until a specific point is reached.
Towards the end of the year, audits classed as “do later” are likely to be deferred
until the next year.

3.4

Appendix 1 provides details of the internal audits completed or currently in
progress. Appendix 2 provides details of the work scheduled to be undertaken
next.
Counter Fraud Work

3.5

Veritau continues to investigate cases of suspected fraud or malpractice. Such
assignments are carried out in response to issues raised by staff or members of the
public via the whistleblower hotline, or as a result of management raising concerns.
Since the start of the current financial year, 43 cases of suspected fraud or
malpractice have been referred to Veritau for investigation, compared to 33 cases
received in the corresponding period in 2020/21. For the current year, 11 of the
cases relate to internal fraud, 11 relate to adult social care and 11 relate to external
fraud, blue badge misuse, debt recovery, or abuse of the council’s financial
assistance scheme. A further 10 cases relate to applications for a school place. A
number of these investigations are still ongoing.

3.6

The Counter Fraud team has also reviewed the Council’s creditor payment
processes in response to an increased threat from organised criminal gangs
attempting to defraud public sector bodies through mandate or payment diversion
fraud.
Information Governance

3.7

Veritau’s Information Governance Team (IGT) continues to handle a significant
number of information requests received in accordance with the Freedom of
Information Act 2000 (FOI) and Data Protection Act 2018 (DPA). The number of
FOI requests received between 1 April 2021 and 31 January 2022 was 985
compared with 803 requests received during the corresponding period in 2020/21.
The number of requests received in 2001/22 and answered within 20 working days
is currently 89%. The IGT also coordinates the County Council’s subject access
requests (SARs) and has received 264 such requests between 1 April 2021 and 31

Page 96

January 2022 compared to 302 requests received during the corresponding period
in 2020/21.
3.8

Veritau acts as the County Council’s Data Protection Officer and provides advice
and support to the County Council on all aspect of data protection. The IGT also
reviews compliance with the legislation and liaises with the regulator, the
Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO). Other work includes reviewing data
protection impact assessments, preparing data sharing agreements, recording data
security incidents and investigating serious data security incidents. Further details
about the work completed in the year are included in the annual information
governance report which is a separate item on this agenda.
Follow Up of Agreed Audit Actions

3.9

4.0

Veritau follows up all agreed actions on a regular basis, taking account of the
timescales previously agreed with management for implementation. An escalation
process is in place for when agreed actions are not implemented or where
management fail to provide adequate information to enable an assessment to be
made. At this stage in the year, there are no actions which have needed to be
escalated. On the basis of the follow up work undertaken during the year to date,
the Head of Internal Audit is satisfied with the progress that has been made by
management to implement previously agreed actions necessary to address
identified control weaknesses.

RECOMMENDATION
Members are asked to note the progress made in delivering the 2021/22 Internal
Audit programme of work and the other assurance related services provided by
Veritau.

Report prepared and presented by Max Thomas, Head of Internal Audit
Max Thomas
Head of Internal Audit
Veritau Limited
County Hall
Northallerton
15 February 2022

Background Documents: Relevant audit reports kept by Veritau

Page 97

Appendix 1
2021/22 INTERNAL AUDIT WORK PROGRAMME
FINAL AUDITS ISSUED
Audit / Activity

Month

Assurance Level

North Yorkshire Highways - Opening
Balances

June 2021

No opinion given

Developing Stronger Families June
2021 return

June 2021

No opinion given

Developing Stronger Families
September 2021 return

September 2021

No opinion given

Domiciliary Care Payments and
Contract Management - Royal Mencap
Society

October 2021

Limited Assurance

Continuing Healthcare

October 2021

Reasonable Assurance

Server Administration and Security

October 2021

Substantial Assurance

Carlton Endowed School

November 2021

No opinion given

Firewalls

November 2021

Substantial Assurance

Main Accounting System

December 2021

Substantial Assurance

Early Years

December 2021

No opinion given

Brompton Hall School

December 2021

No opinion given

Developing Stronger Families
September 2021 return

December 2021

No opinion given

AUDITS IN PROGRESS
Audit / Activity

Status

Harrogate Day Services

Draft Report

Symology

Draft Report

Payroll

Fieldwork completed

Learning Disability and Autism

Fieldwork completed

Visits to Care Providers - Wilf Ward, Pickering

Fieldwork completed

Risk Management

Fieldwork in progress

Deferred Payment Agreements

Fieldwork in progress

Page 98

Appendix 1
Audit / Activity

Status

Registration Services

Fieldwork in progress

Schools Thematic Review – Lettings

Fieldwork in progress

Schools Thematic Review – Schools Financial
Value Standard (SFVS)

Fieldwork in progress

East Ayton School

Fieldwork in progress

Hutton Rudby School

Fieldwork in progress

Responsive Repairs

Fieldwork in progress

Pension Fund Expenditure

Fieldwork in progress

Pension Fund Investments

Fieldwork in progress

Financial Assessments

Planning

Transitions from Children’s to Adult’s Social Care

Planning

NY Highways performance management

Planning

Fleet Management

Planning

ICT Cyber Security / Cyber Readiness

Planning

ICT Capacity Management

Planning

Page 99

Appendix 2
2021/22 INTERNAL AUDIT WORK PROGRAMME – CURRENT
PRIORITIES
Audit / Activity
Ongoing

Status
Do next

Do later

Local Government Reorganisation (LGR)
preparedness and other related activities







Post Covid-19 recovery and response
plans





Strategic, corporate & cross cutting
risks

HR and workforce planning



Payroll



Performance management / data quality
Risk Management




Project Management



Business Continuity / Disaster Recovery



Climate change



Council owned companies



Health and Adult Services (HAS)
Learning Disability and Autism



Income from health



S117 aftercare (Mental Health Act 1983)
and Transferring of Care Programme



Liberty Protection Standards



Court of Protection



Financial assessments



Deferred Payment Agreements



Emergency Duty Team



Visits to Care Providers



Public Health




Page 100

Audit / Activity
Transitions from Children’s to Adult’s
Social Care (also CYPS)

Ongoing


Status
Do next

Do later

Business and Environmental
Services (BES)
NY Highways performance management



Ringway Contract Demobilisation



Waste Management



Planning Services



Fleet Management



Central Services (CS)
Financial Systems redesign and
modernisation support review



Debt management and Income collection
Registration Services








Children’s and Young People
Services (CYPS)
Household Support Fund



High Needs



Developing Stronger Families





Locality Boards




Maintained schools themed audits



Individual school audits







Computer Audit
Strategy and governance



ICT Cyber Security



ICT Information security



ICT Capacity Management



ICT Disaster Recovery



Page 101

Audit / Activity
Ongoing

Status
Do next

Do later

Procurement and Contract Audit
Responsive Repairs



Contract Waivers



Supporting new procurement and
contract management arrangements



Transparency in supply chains



Public Procurement and Health
Procurement Regulations



North Yorkshire Pension Fund
Pension Fund Expenditure



Pension Fund IT system



Pension Fund Investments



Attendance at Pension Fund Board



Page 102

Agenda Item 10
NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
AUDIT COMMITTEE
21 MARCH 2022
2022/23 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN CONSULTATION
Report of the Head of Internal Audit

1.0

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To seek Members’ views on the priorities for internal audit in 2022/23, to help
inform the focus of internal audit work.

2.0

BACKGROUND

2.1

In accordance with professional standards1 and the County Council’s Audit
Charter, internal audit work must be risk based and take into account the
requirement to produce an evidence based annual internal audit opinion.
Audit work should be reviewed and adjusted in response to changes in the
business, risks, operations, programmes, systems and controls.

2.2

The Head of Internal Audit’s annual opinion is based on an objective
assessment of the effectiveness of the framework of risk management,
governance and internal control. Our planned audit work for 2022/23 will
therefore cover all three areas.

2.3

Responsibility for effective governance, risk management and control
arrangements remains with the Council. The Head of Internal Audit cannot
be expected to prevent or detect all weaknesses or failures in internal
control, nor can audit work cover all areas of risk across the organisation.

3.0

CONSULTATION ON 2022/23 INTERNAL AUDIT WORK PROGRAMME

3.1

A new, flexible, approach to audit planning was introduced last year. With
this new approach, an indicative long list of work is developed at the start
of the year. Actual audits are then selected throughout the year based on
an ongoing assessment of risks and priorities. This approach allows us to
keep upcoming work under review, to ensure we are targeting audit
resources to those areas most needed. It also builds in flexibility, by

1

As set out in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and specific guidance on the application
of those standards for local government, issued by CIPFA.

Page 103

enabling us to respond quickly to emerging issues or to commence work
on other areas of importance when risks and priorities change.
3.2

This flexibility is particularly important in 2022/23 due to local government
reorganisation North Yorkshire. From 1 April 2023, a new North Yorkshire
Council will be created when the existing councils in North Yorkshire are
combined to form a single county wide unitary authority. The process of
change will however create a number of challenges and risks. A large
proportion of the internal audit work programme will therefore be focused
on providing assurance to the project and the related work streams. As a
result, the work programme itself is likely to be significantly different to
previous years.

3.3

We have also defined 11 key areas where we require assurance during
the course of the year in order to provide an evidence based opinion, as
follows:












Strategic planning
Organisational governance
Financial governance
Risk management
Information governance
Performance management and data quality
Procurement and contract management
People management
Asset management
Programme and project management
ICT governance

3.4

In practice the indicative programme of work will be structured into a
number of directorate sections. The table at Appendix A includes some
areas for consideration for audit in 2022/23. These are included to prompt
discussion and are not intended to be a definitive or complete list of areas
that could be subject to audit.

3.5

Consultation with Members is an essential part of the risk assessment
process. As in previous years, the Audit Committee is therefore being
asked to identify any specific areas which should be considered a priority
for review. The Committee will be asked to approve the work programme
at the next meeting in June. However, it should be noted some work will
need to commence before this.

Page 104

4.0

RECOMMENDATION

4.1

Members are requested to consider and comment on the draft Internal
Audit Plan for 2021/22 and to identify any specific areas which should
be considered a priority for audit review.

Report prepared and presented by Max Thomas, Head of Internal Audit
Max Thomas
Head of Internal Audit
Veritau Limited
County Hall
Northallerton
24 February 2022
Background Documents: None

Page 105

Appendix A
NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRAMME OF WORK 2022/23
Area
Local Government
Reorganisation

Potential areas of activity
Project governance and assurance
Compliance with statutory obligations
Support and advice to relevant work-streams
Effective closure and transfer of services and
functions to the new council
Internal control, data quality and other consultative
support
Assurance work to maintain business as usual and
continuation of the existing control environment

Strategic, Corporate &
cross cutting risks

Post Covid-19 recovery and response plans
HR and workforce planning
Performance management
Risk management
Project management
Partnerships
Business continuity and disaster recovery
Climate change
Health and safety
Asset management
Council owned companies

Health and Adult
Services (HAS)

Partnership working with the NHS and new health
structures
S117 aftercare (Mental Health Act 1983) and
Transferring of Care Programme
Continuing Health Care (CHC)
Court of Protection
Liberty protection safeguards
Public Health
Emergency duty team
Visits to care providers

Page 106

Area
Business and
Environmental
Services (BES)

Potential areas of activity
NY Highways (client function)
Waste management (client function)
Planning services
Devolution opportunities

Central Services

Financial systems redesign and modernisation
support review
Debt management and income collection

Children’s and Young
People Services
(CYPS)

Early Years
High Needs
Special Education Needs and Disability (SEND)
Themed audits for maintained schools
Children’s social care
Locality boards

Computer Audit

Strategy and governance
ICT cyber security
ICT information security
ICT disaster recovery

Procurement and
Contract Audit

Targeted contract management and procurement
reviews
Supporting new procurement and contract
management arrangements
Contract waivers
Public Procurement and Health Procurement
Regulations

North Yorkshire
Pension Fund

Pension Fund expenditure
Pension Fund income
Pension Fund investments

Page 107

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11
NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

AUDIT COMMITTEE
21 March 2022
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Report of the Corporate Director – Strategic Resources

1.0

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To note there are no changes, at present, to the County Council’s Accounting
Policies for the current financial year 2021/22

1.2

To note potential changes in the pipeline that are likely to impact on future year’s
Accounting Policies and the Statement of Final Accounts.

2.0

BACKGROUND

2.1

Under his delegated decision making powers in the Officers’ Delegation Scheme in
the Council’s Constitution, the Chief Executive Officer has power, in cases of
emergency, to take any decision which could be taken by the Council, the
Executive or a committee.

2.2

Following on from the expiry of the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings)
(England and Wales) Regulations 2020 (“the 2020 Regulations”), which allowed for
committee meetings to be held remotely, the County Council resolved at its meeting
on 5 May 2021 (before the expiry of the Regulations) that, for the present time, in
light of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic circumstances, remote live-broadcast
committee meetings should continue as informal meetings of the committee
Members, with any formal decisions required being taken by the Chief Executive
Officer under his emergency decision making powers and after consultation with
other Officers and Members as appropriate and after taking into account any views
of the relevant Committee Members and all relevant information. This approach
has been periodically reviewed since that time and will be further reviewed by full
Council at its May 2022 meeting.

2.3

Part of the Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference is to review changes in
accounting policy.

2.4

The County Council’s accounting policies are set out in the annual Statement of
Final Accounts (SOFA) and have been developed to comply with the Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom issued by the
1

Page 109
OFFICIAL

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). An updated Code
of Practice, applicable for 2021/22 was issued in April 2021.
2.5

In addition to considering required changes to the County Council’s accounting
policies for 2021/22, there are further changes which CIPFA have been consulting
with local authorities which are in the pipeline for future years (2022/23 and beyond)
to bring to the Committee’s attention.

3.0

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY FOR 2021/22

3.1

The need for changes in accounting policy can arise from:
(i)

mandatory changes under the annual Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting which require a new or revised accounting policy to be adopted by
all local authorities

(ii)

changes within the overall framework of the Code of Practice but where the
policy to be adopted is discretionary and is dependent upon interpretation of
local circumstances

3.2

Any changes required to the County Council’s accounting policies for 2021/22
would therefore usually arise as a result of the updated Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting issued by CIPFA in April 2021.

3.3

At present, there are no changes to the Code of Practice that impact on the County
Council’s 2021/22 Accounting Policies. However, on the 3 February 2022 CIPFA
issued an exceptional consultation on time limited changes to the Code of Practice
to help alleviate delays to the publication of audited financial statements. The
consultation proposes the following:
(i)

an adaptation to the code to allow local authorities to pause professional
valuations for operational property, plant and equipment for a period of up to
two years (from 2021/22) with an index to be used to increase or reduce the
valuations;

(ii)

deferring the implementation of IFRS 16 Leases for a further year and
reversing the planned changes to the 2022/23 code to implement that
standard

3.4

The consultation closed on the 4 March 2022 however any decision on whether to
adopt either of the above proposals and therefore amend the 2021/22 Code of
Practice will not be communicated to local authorities until late March 2022 at the
earliest.

3.5

Deferring the implementation of IFRS 16 Leases will not have an impact on the
County Council’s accounting policies, however adapting the Code to pause
professional valuations for operation property, plant and equipment would require
changes to the County Council’s accounting policies in this area

2

Page 110
OFFICIAL

3.6

The Accounting Policies ultimately determined for 2021/22 will be reported to
Members on 28 November 2022 as part of the report accompanying the SOFA for
2021/22. At this stage, therefore, Members are asked to note the current position.

4.0

OTHER KEY CHANGES TO THE 2021/22 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.1

Changes reflected in the 2021/22 updated Code may be required to be
incorporated into the County Council’s accounts but may not necessarily impact on
the County Council’s accounting policies. This is because the changes are
principally around additional or changed disclosure notes, points of clarification and
additional guidance etc.

4.2

The 2021/22 SOFA will again include disclosure notes to explain the financial
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the County Council.

5.0

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS TIMETABLE 2021/22 AND 2022/23

5.1

Published in September 2020, the Redmond review on the effectiveness of external
audit and transparency of financial reporting in local authorities recommended that
the deadline for publishing audited local authority accounts should be extended.

5.2

In the Government’s response, Ministers committed to amending the accounts
publication deadline as recommended for 2 years, subject to review.

5.3

In December 2021 a statement issued by Department of Levelling-up Housing and
Communities (DLUHC), ‘Measures to Improve Local Audit Delays’, referenced the
above review and recommended extending the deadline for publishing audited local
authority accounts to 30 November 2022 for the 2021/22 accounts then 30
September for 6 years commencing in 2022/23. Although it has not yet been
confirmed, it is anticipated that the deadline for the publication of draft local
authority accounts will continue to be 31 July 2022, as in the previous two years.

5.4

A number of efficiencies have been identified in the Statement of Accounts process
through the earlier accounts timetable introduced in 2017/18, enabling a more
effective use of resources. As a result, the intention is to continue to produce the
draft Statement of Accounts in line with an earlier timetable (31 May). It is therefore,
anticipated that the Draft SOFA will be reported to the Audit Committee on 27 June
2022.

5.5

In addition, following consultation with the external auditor, the external audit is
expected to be undertaken between July and November and the final SOFA will
reported to this Committee in line with the proposed revised timetable on 28
November 2022.

6.0

POTENTIAL CHANGES IN THE PIPELINE FOR FUTURE YEARS

6.1

CIPFA have recently consulted on a draft Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting for 2022/23 and provisional changes for future years beyond 2022/23,
with the key potential changes set out in Appendix A.
3

Page 111
OFFICIAL

6.2

The extent to which future changes will actually be fully implemented by CIPFA
remains uncertain however and will be subject to further confirmation and guidance.

7.1

RECOMMENDATION

7.2

That Members:
(i)

note there are no changes at present to the accounting policies for 2021/22
(paragraph 3.3).

(ii)

note the changes to the Statement of Accounts Timetable for 2022
(paragraph 5.5)

(ii)

note potential changes to the SOFA and accounting policies which are in the
pipeline for future years (2022/23 onwards) (paragraph 6.1 and Appendix A).

GARY FIELDING
Corporate Director – Strategic Resources
County Hall
Northallerton
4 March 2022

4

Page 112
OFFICIAL

APPENDIX A
POTENTIAL CHANGES TO THE CODE OF PRACTICE ON LOCAL AUTHORITY
ACCOUNTING POLICIES IN THE PIPELINE
FOLLOWING RECENT CIPFA CONSULTATION:
1.0

CIPFA have consulted on and confirmed proposed changes to the 2021/22 Code of
Practice which was published in April 2021 and have also provided indications of
further potential changes that are likely to be reflected in updates to the 2022/23
Code and beyond.

1.1

In addition, the outcome of CIPFA’s exceptional consultation in February 2022
described in paragraphs 3.3 to 3.6 may also impact on the 2022/23 Code of
Practice.

2.0

Leases

2.1

CIPFA’s current intention is to adopt IFRS 16 – Leases from 2022/23. However
this may be delayed until 2023/24 as a result of CIPFA’s current exceptional
consultation described in paragraphs 3.3 to 3.6.

2.2

It was anticipated that CIPFA would instruct local authorities to adopt the
requirements of IFRS 16 from 2019/20, but this was deferred by 12 months due to
issues raised by Central Government. The adoption of IFRS 16 was again delayed
until 2022/23 due to the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on local authorities’
planning and preparedness for the new standard.

2.3

IFRS 16 extends the current definition of a finance lease to cover all leases, from
the lessee’s position. An operational lease will no longer exist from a lessee’s
perspective. The change will result in accounting implications as the value of the
lease needs to be capitalised and recorded as a ‘Right of Use’ asset on the
lessee’s balance sheet. A corresponding liability must also be recognised on the
balance sheet, extending over the life of the lease, to reflect the lease payments
still to be made.

2.4

IFRS 16 will have an impact on all the main statements in the SOFA including the
balance sheet, comprehensive income and expenditure statement and cash flow
statement. A number of new disclosure notes will also be required to be published
in the SOFA.

2.5

Further changes as a result of adopting IFRS 16 relate to assets being leased
under a ‘peppercorn’ agreement coming on balance sheet, the measurement of
liabilities from leases, PFI and service concession arrangements which include an
element of annual indexation.

2.6

Exceptions may be granted for leases of small value assets and for very short term
leases, but an increased number of existing operating leases will need to be
reclassified and reported on the County Council’s balance sheet, which could
potentially have prudential borrowing implications.

5

Page 113
OFFICIAL

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12
NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
INFORMAL REMOTE MEETING OF AUDIT COMMITTEE
21 MARCH 2022
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY
Report of the Corporate Director – Strategic Resources

1.0

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To review the 2022/23 Treasury Management Strategy and to consider whether
any comments should be proposed to the Chief Executive Officer, under his
emergency delegated decision making powers, for onwards recommendation to
the Executive.

2.0

In its scrutiny role of the County Council’s Treasury Management policies,
strategies and day-to-day activities, the Audit Committee receives regular Treasury
Management reports. These reports provide Audit Committee Members with details
of the latest Treasury Management developments, both at a local and national level
and enable them to review Treasury Management arrangements and consider
whether they wish to make any recommendations to the Executive.

2.1

As the County Council is required to approve an up to date Annual Treasury
Management before the start of the new financial year, it is therefore not realistic for
the Audit Committee to review this document in advance of its submission to
Executive and the subsequent consideration by County Council on 16 February
2022.

2.2

As in recent years it is therefore proposed that the Treasury Management Strategy
2022/23 (Annex1) is submitted for review by the Audit Committee on 21 March
2022. Any resulting proposals for change would then be considered at a
subsequent meeting of the Executive. If any such proposals were accepted and
required a change to the (by then) recently approved Strategy document the
Executive would submit a revised document to the County Council at its meeting on
18 May 2022.

2.3

Under his delegated decision making powers in the Officers’ Delegation Scheme in
the Council’s Constitution, the Chief Executive Officer has power, in cases of
emergency, to take any decision which could be taken by the Council, the
Executive or a committee.

2.4

Following on from the expiry of the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings)
(England and Wales) Regulations 2020 (“the 2020 Regulations”), which allowed for
committee meetings to be held remotely, the County Council resolved at its meeting
1

Page 115
OFFICIAL

on 5 May 2021 (before the expiry of the Regulations) that, for the present time, in
light of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic circumstances, remote live-broadcast
committee meetings should continue as informal meetings of the committee
Members, with any formal decisions required being taken by the Chief Executive
Officer under his emergency decision making powers and after consultation with
other Officers and Members as appropriate and after taking into account any views
of the relevant Committee Members and all relevant information. This approach
has been periodically reviewed since that time and will be further reviewed by full
Council at its May 2022 meeting.

3.0

RECOMMENDATION

3.1

That Members review the 2022/23 Treasury Management Strategy and consider
whether any comments should be proposed to the Chief Executive Officer, under
his emergency delegated decision making powers, for onwards recommendation to
the Executive.

GARY FIELDING
Corporate Director – Strategic Resources
March 2022

2

Page 116
OFFICIAL

ANNEX 1
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2022/23
1.0

Introduction and Context

1.1 2022/23 is the final year for establishing a Treasury Management Strategy for the County
Council given the new unitary council for North Yorkshire will come into effect from 1 April
2023. The production of an emerging “shadow” strategy for the new unitary council, an
aggregation of the future projections of all 8 councils, will become the start position for the
new unitary North Yorkshire Council.
1.2 The County Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that
cash raised during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of the treasury management
operation is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with cash being available
when it is needed. Surplus monies are invested in low risk counterparties or instruments
commensurate with the County Council’s low risk appetite, providing adequate liquidity
initially before considering investment return.
1.3 The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the County
Council’s capital plans. These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the
County Council, essentially the longer-term cash flow planning, to ensure that the County
Council can meet its capital spending obligations. This management of longer-term cash
may involve arranging long or short-term loans, or using longer-term cash flow surpluses.
On occasion, when it is prudent and economic, any debt previously drawn may be
restructured to meet County Council risk or cost objectives.
1.4 The contribution the treasury management function makes to the authority is critical, as the
balance of debt and investment operations ensure liquidity or the ability to meet spending
commitments as they fall due, either on day-to-day revenue or for larger capital projects.
The treasury operations will see a balance of the interest costs of debt and the investment
income arising from cash deposits affecting the available budget. Since cash balances
generally result from reserves and balances, it is paramount to ensure adequate security
of the sums invested, as a loss of principal will in effect result in a loss to the General Fund
Balance.
1.5 Whilst any commercial initiatives or loans to third parties will impact on the treasury
function, these activities are generally classed as non-treasury activities, (arising usually
from capital expenditure), and are separate from the day to day treasury management
activities.
1.6 CIPFA defines treasury management as:
“The management of the local authority’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, its banking,
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with
those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.”

1

Page 117

2.0 Reporting requirements
Reporting arrangements in place relating to Treasury Management activities are
highlighted below:
2.1 Capital Strategy
2.1.1 The CIPFA 2017 Prudential and Treasury Management Codes require all local authorities
to prepare a capital strategy report which will provide the following:




a high-level long term overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and
treasury management activity contribute to the provision of services
an overview of how the associated risk is managed
the implications for future financial sustainability

2.1.2 Whilst acknowledging 2022/23 will be the final year for North Yorkshire County Council,
the aim of this capital strategy is to ensure that all elected members on the County Council
fully understand the overall long-term policy objectives and resulting capital strategy
requirements, governance procedures and risk appetite. Any subsequent changes in policy
objectives etc following elections to the new council in May 2022 will be factored into the
new council’s first capital strategy, effective from April 2023.
2.1.3 This Capital Strategy [Appendix D] is reported separately from the Treasury Management
Strategy Statement; non-treasury investments will be reported through the former. This
ensures the separation of the core treasury function under security, liquidity and yield
principles, and the policy and commercialism investments usually driven by expenditure
on an asset.
2.1.4 Where the County Council has borrowed to fund any non-treasury investment, there should
also be an explanation of why borrowing was required and why the DLUHC Investment
Guidance and CIPFA Prudential Code have not been adhered to.
2.1.5 If any non-treasury investment sustains a loss during the final accounts and audit process,
the strategy and revenue implications will be reported through the same procedure as the
capital strategy.
2.1.6 To demonstrate the proportionality between the treasury operations and the non-treasury
operation, high-level comparators are shown throughout this report.
2.2 Treasury Management reporting
2.2.1 The County Council is currently required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main
treasury reports each year, which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and actuals.
a)

Treasury Management Strategy (this report) – again acknowledging the
implementation of a new unitary council in North Yorkshire from 1 April 2023 and
aggregation of all 8 councils’ spending plans, the first, and most important report is
forward looking and covers:
 the capital plans, (including prudential indicators);

Page2 118

 a minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy, (how residual capital expenditure is
charged to revenue over time);
 the treasury management strategy, (how the investments borrowings are to be
organised), including treasury indicators; and
 an investment strategy, (the parameters on how investments are to be managed).
b)

A mid-year treasury management report – This is primarily a progress report and
will update members on the capital position, amending prudential indicators as
necessary, and whether any policies require revision. In addition, the County Council
will receive quarterly update reports.

c)

An annual treasury report – This is a backward looking review document and
provides details of a selection of actual prudential and treasury indicators and actual
treasury operations compared to the estimates within the strategy.

3.0 Scrutiny
3.1 Treasury Management reports are required to be adequately scrutinised before being
recommended to the County Council. The scrutiny role is undertaken by the Audit
Committee.

4.0 Treasury Management Strategy 2022/23
4.1 The Treasury Management strategy for 2022/23 covers two main areas:
a.

Capital issues
 the capital expenditure plans and the associated prudential indicators; and
 the minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy.

b.

Treasury management issues
 the current treasury position;
 treasury indicators which limit the treasury risk and activities of the County Council;
 prospects for interest rates;
 the borrowing strategy;
 policy on borrowing in advance of need;
 debt rescheduling;
 the investment strategy;
 creditworthiness policy; and
 the policy on use of external service providers.

4.2 These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the CIPFA
Prudential Code, DLUHC MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury Management Code and
DLUHC Investment Guidance.

3
Page
119

5.0 Training
5.1 The CIPFA Code requires the Section 151 Officer to ensure that members with
responsibility for treasury management receive adequate training in treasury management.
This especially applies to members responsible for scrutiny. Member training has been
provided by Treasury Management Consultants, Link Group (Link) and further training will
be provided as required.

6.0 Treasury management consultants
6.1 The County Council uses Link Group, as its external treasury management advisors.
6.2 The County Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions
remains with the organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not placed
upon the services of our external service providers. All decisions will be undertaken with
regards to all available information, including, but not solely, our treasury advisers.
6.3 It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury management
services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources. The County Council will
ensure that the terms of their appointment and the methods by which their value will be
assessed are properly agreed and documented, and subjected to regular review.

Page4 120

APPENDIX A
CAPITAL PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2022/23 – 2024/25
Acknowledging the requirements for the transition to the new unitary council but ensuring
continuity of services, the following indicators and MRP Policy are based upon the County
Council’s capital plan for 2022/23 and the current planned expenditure for 2023/24 and
2024/25. Beyond 2022/23, spending plans and the associated Prudential Indicators will be
subject to review but in order to assist in the planning for the new council indicators for
2023/24 and beyond provide a useful ‘benchmark’.
1.0 Capital Expenditure
1.1 The County Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury management
activity. The output of the capital expenditure plans are reflected in the prudential
indicators, which are designed to assist members’ overview and confirm capital
expenditure plans.
1.2 This prudential indicator is a summary of the County Council’s capital expenditure plans,
both those agreed previously, and those forming part of this budget cycle. The table below
summarises the above capital expenditure plans and how these plans are being financed
by capital or revenue resources. Any shortfall of resources results in a funding borrowing
need.
2020/21
Actual
£m
Capital Expenditure:
Health & Adult Services
Business & Environmental
Services
Children & Young People’s
Services
Central Services
Total
Financed by:
Capital Grants &
Contributions
Direct Revenue Funding
Capital Receipts
Capital Borrowing
Requirement

2021/22
2022/23
2023/24
2024/25
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
£m
£m
£m
£m

0.1
89.9

3.9
81.5

0.4
45.8

1.0
20.8

0.0
20.6

20.2

30.7

28.4

10.9

4.6

9.4
119.6

26.7
142.8

8.6
83.2

1.3
34.0

1.2
26.4

-104.7

-101.1

-67.1

-29.1

-22.4

-7.1
-5.7
2.1

-12.5
-15.6
13.6

-6.1
-3.3
6.7

-3.6
-6.0
-4.7

-2.9
-13.1
-12.0

5
Page
121

1.3 The net financing need for commercial activities / non-financial investments included in the
above table against expenditure is shown below:
Commercial activities /
non-financial
investments
Capital Expenditure
Financing costs
Net financing need for
the year
Percentage of total net
financing need %

2020/21
Actual
£m
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

2021/22
2022/23
2023/24
2024/25
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
£m
£m
£m
£m
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

As the above table shows, the County Council’s Capital Plan does not include any plans
to purchase commercial assets primarily for yield.
2.0 The Borrowing Need (the Capital Financing Requirement)
2.1 The second prudential indicator is the County Council’s Capital Financing Requirement
(CFR). The CFR is the total historic outstanding capital expenditure which has not yet
been paid for from either revenue or capital resources. It is essentially a measure of the
Council’s indebtedness and so its underlying borrowing need. Any capital expenditure
above, which has not immediately been paid for through a revenue or capital resource, will
increase the CFR.
2.2 The CFR does not increase indefinitely, as the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) is a
statutory annual revenue charge which broadly reduces the indebtedness in line with each
assets life, and so charges the economic consumption of capital assets as they are used.
2.3 The CFR includes any other long-term liabilities (e.g. PFI schemes, finance leases). Whilst
these increase the CFR, and therefore the County Council’s borrowing requirement, these
types of scheme include a borrowing facility by the PFI, PPP lease provider and so the
County Council is not required to separately borrow for these schemes.
£m

2020/21
2021/22
2022/23
2023/24
2024/25
Actual
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Capital Financing Requirement
Capital Borrowing
303.7
276.6
282.0
279.4
265.5
Loans to Limited
-15.0
15.0
6.2
-5.6
-13.1
Companies
Investment Properties
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
Other Long Term
151.6
176.2
170.6
165.4
159.9
Liabilities (PFI / Leases)
Commercial activities /
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
non-financial
investments
Total CFR
440.3
467.8
458.8
439.2
412.3
Movement in CFR
27.5
-9.0
-19.6
-26.9

Page6 122

Movement in CFR represented by
Net financing need for
the year (above)
Less Long Term
Liabilities Movements
Less MRP/VRP and
other financing
movements
Movement in CFR

13.6

6.7

-4.6

-12.0

24.5

-5.6

-5.3

-5.5

-10.6

-10.1

-9.7

-9.4

27.5

-9.0

-19.6

-26.9

2.4 A key aspect of the regulatory and professional guidance is that elected members are
aware of the size and scope of any commercial activity in relation to the authority’s overall
financial position. The capital expenditure figures shown in 1.2 and the details above
demonstrate the scope of this activity and, by approving these figures; consider the scale
proportionate to the County Council’s remaining activity.
3.0 Core funds and expected investment balances
3.1 The application of resources (capital receipts, reserves etc.) to either finance capital
expenditure or other budget decisions to support the revenue budget will have an ongoing
impact on investments unless resources are supplemented each year from new sources
(asset sales etc.). Detailed below are estimates of the year-end balances for each
resource and anticipated day-to-day cash flow balances.
Forecasted Year end
2020/21
Cash Position
Actual
£m
£m
Reserves and Balances
General Working
27.9
Balance
Strategic Capacity
68.5
Reserve
Schools Reserve
14.4
Other Earmarked
160.5
Reserves
Total Reserves and
271.3
Balances
Provisions
16.1
Cashflow (Inc Debtors,
48.3
Creditors)
Personal Estates
10.5
Sub Total
74.9
- Commercial Property
- Loans to Limited
Companies
- Remaining Capital
Borrowing Requirement
Total Internal Capital
Financing
Total Cash Available
to Invest

2021/22
Estimate
£m

2022/23
2023/24
Estimate Estimate
£m
£m

2024/25
Estimate
£m

28.0

28.0

28.0

28.0

73.4

51.6

33.2

33.2

-4.2
134.6

-4.2
131.2

-4.2
128.8

-4.2
128.3

231.8

206.6

185.8

185.3

16.0
49.7

16.0
54.7

16.0
54.7

16.0
54.7

11.0
76.7

11.5
82.2

12.0
82.7

12.0
82.7

-11.9
-8.3

-11.9
-8.5

-11.9
-14.8

-11.9
-9.4

-11.9
3.5

-32.3

-50.6

-54.0

-44.1

-35.6

-52.5

-71.0

-80.7

-65.4

-44.0

293.7

237.5

208.1

203.1

224.0

*Working capital balances shown are estimated year-end; these may be higher mid-year
7
Page
123

4.0 Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy statement
4.1 The County Council is required to pay off an element of the accumulated General Fund
capital spend each year (the CFR) through a revenue charge (the Minimum Revenue
Provision - MRP), although it is also allowed to undertake additional voluntary payments if
required (Voluntary Revenue Provision - VRP).
4.2 DLUHC regulations have been issued which require the County Council to approve an
MRP Statement in advance of each year. A variety of options are provided to councils, so
long as there is a prudent provision. The County Council is recommended to approve the
following MRP Statement.
a)

for all capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008, MRP will be based on 4% of
the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) at that date;

b)

for capital expenditure incurred after 1 April 2008 which is supported by Government
Borrowing approvals, MRP to be based on 4% of such sums as reflected in
subsequent CFR updates;

c)

for locally agreed Prudential Borrowing on capital expenditure incurred after 1 April
2008, MRP will be calculated using the asset life method based on equal annual
instalments over the estimated useful life of the asset for which the borrowing is
undertaken:

d)

In the case of long term debtors from loans, the amounts paid out are classed as
capital expenditure for capital financing purposes. The expenditure is therefore
included in the calculation of the County Council’s Capital Financing Requirement.
When the County Council receives the repayment of an amount loaned, the income
will be classified as a capital receipt. Where the capital receipts will be applied to
reduce the Capital Financing Requirement, there will be no revenue provision made
for the repayment of the debt liability (i.e. unless the eventual receipt is expected to
fall short of the amount expended).
Where expenditure is incurred to acquire and/or develop properties for resale, the
Capital Financing Requirement will increase by the amount expended. Where the
County Council will subsequently recoup the amount expended via the sale of an
asset, the income will be classified as a capital receipt. Where the capital receipts will
be applied to reduce the Capital Financing Requirement, there will be no revenue
provision made for the repayment of the debt liability (i.e. unless the fair value of the
properties falls below the amount expended).
Where expenditure is incurred to acquire properties meeting the accounting definition
of investment properties, the Capital Financing Requirement will increase by the
amount expended. Where the County Council will subsequently recoup the amount
expended (e.g. via the sale of an asset), the income will be classified as a capital
receipt. Where the capital receipts will be applied to reduce the Capital Financing
Requirement, there will be no revenue provision made for the repayment of the debt
liability (i.e. unless the fair value of the properties falls below the amount expended).
This approach also allows the County Council to defer the introduction of an MRP
charge for new capital projects/land purchases until the year after the new asset

Page8 124

becomes operational rather than in the year borrowing is required to finance the
capital spending. This approach is beneficial for projects that take more than one
year to complete and is therefore included as part of the MRP policy.
e)

for “on balance sheet” PFI schemes, MRP will be equivalent to the “capital repayment
element” of the annual service charge payable to the PFI Operator and for finance
leases, MRP will be equivalent to the annual rental payable under the lease
agreement.

4.3 Therefore the County Council’s total MRP provision will be the sum of (a) + (b) + (c) + (d)
(as defined above) which is considered to satisfy the prudent provision requirement. Based
on this policy, total MRP in 2022/23 will be about £10.1m (including PFI and finance
leases).

9
Page
125

APPENDIX B
1.0

BORROWING STRATEGY

1.1 The capital expenditure plans set out in Appendix A provide details of the service activity
of the County Council. The treasury management function ensures that the County
Council’s cash is organised in accordance with the relevant professional codes, so that
sufficient cash is available to meet this service activity and the County Council’s capital
strategy. This will involve both the organisation of the cash flow and, where capital plans
require, the organisation of appropriate borrowing facilities. The strategy covers the
relevant treasury / prudential indicators, the current and projected debt positions and the
annual investment strategy.
2.0 Current portfolio position
2.1 The overall treasury management portfolio as at 31 March 2021 and for the position as at
31 December 2021 are shown below for both borrowing and investments.
TREASURY PORTFOLIO
Actual - 31/03/21
£m
%
Treasury Investments
Banks
Building Societies
Local Authorities
Money Market Funds
Certificates of Deposit
Total managed in house
Property Funds
Total Managed Externally
Total Treasury Pool Investments
Less Other Bodies Investments
Total NYCC Investments
Treasury External Borrowing
PWLB
LOBO’s
Total NYCC External Borrowing
Net Treasury Investments /
(Borrowing)

Current - 31/12/21
£m
%

282.4
0.0
191.0
0.0
0.0
473.4
5.9
5.9
479.3
197.3
282.0

59
0
40
0
0
99
1
1
100

273.2
0.0
62.0
0.0
0.0
335.2
5.9
5.9
341.1
115.0
226.1

80
0
18
0
0
98
2
100
100

216.0
20.0
236.0
46.0

92
8

207.6
20.0
227.6
(1.5)

91
9

10
Page
126

2.2 The County Council’s current forward projections for borrowing are summarised below.
The table shows the actual external debt, against the underlying capital borrowing need,
(the Capital Financing Requirement - CFR), highlighting any over or under borrowing.
£m

2020/21
Actual

External Debt
Debt at 1 April
Less Expected
change in Debt
Debt at 31 March
Other long-term
liabilities (OLTL)
Total Long Term
Liability
Less
Capital Financing
Requirement
Under / (over)
borrowing

2021/22
2022/23
2023/24
2024/25
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

263.1
-27.1

236.0
-14.2

221.8
-13.3

208.5
0.0

208.5
0.0

236.0
151.6

221.8
176.2

208.5
170.6

208.5
165.4

208.5
159.9

387.6

398.0

379.1

373.9

368.4

440.3

467.8

458.8

439.2

412.3

52.7

69.8

79.7

65.3

43.9

2.3 Within the range of prudential indicators there are a number of key indicators to ensure
that the County Council operates its activities within well-defined limits. One of these is
that the County Council needs to ensure that its gross debt does not, except in the short term,
exceed the total of the CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for
2022/23 and the following two financial years. This allows some flexibility for limited early
borrowing for future years, but ensures that borrowing is not undertaken for revenue or
speculative purposes.
2.4 The Corporate Director – Strategic Resources reports that the County Council complied
with this prudential indicator in the current year and does not envisage difficulties for the
future. This view takes into account current commitments, existing plans, and the
proposals in this budget report.

3.0 Treasury Indicators: limits to borrowing activity
3.1 The operational boundary. This is the limit beyond which external debt is not normally
expected to exceed. In most cases, this would be a similar figure to the CFR, but may be
lower or higher depending on the levels of actual debt and the ability to fund underborrowing by other cash resources.
Operational boundary £m
Debt
Other long term liabilities
Commercial activities/ non-financial
investments
Total

2021/22
2022/23
2023/24
2024/25
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
370.0
375.7
403.4
300.7
176.2
170.6
165.4
159.9
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
546.2

11
Page
127

546.3

568.8

460.6

3.2 The authorised limit for external debt. This is a key prudential indicator and represents
a control on the maximum level of borrowing. This represents a legal limit beyond which
external debt is prohibited, and this limit needs to be set or revised by the [full Council]. It
reflects the level of external debt which, while not desired, could be afforded in the short
term, but is not sustainable in the longer term.
3.3 This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 2003.
The Government retains an option to control either the total of all councils’ plans, or those
of a specific council, although this power has not yet been exercised.
3.4 The County Council is asked to approve the following authorised limit:
Authorised limit £m
Debt
Other long term liabilities
Commercial activities/ non-financial
investments
Total

2021/22
2022/23
2023/24
2024/25
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
390.0
395.7
423.4
320.7
176.2
170.6
165.4
159.9
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
566.2

12
Page
128

566.3

588.8

480.6

4.0 Prospects for interest rates
4.1 The County Council has appointed Link Group as its treasury advisor and part of their
service is to assist the County Council to formulate a view on interest rates. The following
table shows their view on future interest rates.

4.2 Over the last two years, the coronavirus outbreak has done huge economic damage to the
UK and to economies around the world. After the Bank of England took emergency action
in March 2020 to cut Bank Rate to 0.10%, it left Bank Rate unchanged at its subsequent
meetings until raising it to 0.25% at its meeting on 16th December 2021.
4.3 As shown in the forecast table above, the forecast for Bank Rate now includes five
increases, one in December 2021 to 0.25%, then quarter 2 of 2022 to 0.50%, quarter 1 of
2023 to 0.75%, quarter 1 of 2024 to 1.00% and, finally, one in quarter 1 of 2025 to 1.25%.
4.4 It is not expected that Bank Rate will go up fast after the initial rate rise as the supply
potential of the economy is not likely to have taken a major hit during the pandemic: it
should, therefore, be able to cope well with meeting demand after supply shortages
subside over the next year, without causing inflation to remain elevated in the mediumterm, or to inhibit inflation from falling back towards the MPC’s 2% target after the spike up
to around 5%. The forecast includes five increases in Bank Rate over the three-year
forecast period to March 2025, ending at 1.25%. However, these forecasts may need to
be revised due to uncertainties around economic recovery, rising utility prices, and the risk
from new Covid variants.
4.5 It should also be borne in mind that Bank Rate being cut to 0.10% was an emergency
measure to deal with the Covid crisis hitting the UK in March 2020. At any time, the MPC
could remove that final emergency cut from 0.25% to 0.10% on no other grounds than it
being no longer being warranted and as a step forward in the return to normalisation. In
addition, any Bank Rate under 1% is both highly unusual and highly supportive of economic
growth.
4.6 Bond yields / PWLB rates.
Since the start of 2021, there has been a lot of volatility in gilt yields, and hence PWLB
rates, and this is likely to continue.

13
Page
129

4.7

As the interest forecast table for PWLB certainty rates above shows, there is likely to be a
steady rise over the forecast period, with some degree of uplift due to rising treasury yields in
the US.

5.0 Investment and borrowing rates
5.1 Investment returns are expected to improve in 2022/23. However, while markets are pricing
in a series of Bank Rate hikes, actual economic circumstances may see the MPC fall short of
these elevated expectations.
5.2 Borrowing interest rates fell to historically very low rates as a result of the COVID crisis and
the quantitative easing operations of the Bank of England and still remain at historically low
levels.
5.3 On 25 November 2020, the Chancellor announced the conclusion to the review of margins over
gilt yields for PWLB rates; the standard and certainty margins were reduced by 1% but a
prohibition was introduced to deny access to borrowing from the PWLB for any local authority
which had purchase of assets for yield in its three year capital programme.
6.0 Borrowing strategy
6.1 The County Council is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position. This means that
the capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement), has not been fully funded
with loan debt as cash supporting the County Council’s reserves, balances and cash flow
has been used as a temporary measure. This strategy is prudent as investment returns
are low and counterparty risk is still an issue that needs to be considered.
6.2 Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution will be adopted
with the 2022/23 treasury operations. The Corporate Director – Strategic Resources will
monitor interest rates in financial markets and adopt a pragmatic approach to changing
circumstances:
 if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in borrowing rates, (e.g. due to
a marked increase of risks around relapse into recession or of risks of deflation), then
borrowing will be postponed.
 if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in borrowing rates than
that currently forecast, perhaps arising from an acceleration in the rate of increase in central
rates in the USA and UK, an increase in world economic activity, or a sudden increase in
inflation risks, then the portfolio position will be re-appraised. Most likely, fixed rate funding
will be drawn whilst interest rates are lower than they are projected to be in the next few
years.
6.3 The internal borrowing position will be carefully reviewed and monitored on an ongoing
basis in order to consider any changes to borrowing rates as well as current and future
cash flow constraints.

14
Page
130

6.4 Further long term external borrowing may be undertaken, in excess of the current
forecasts, in the event that it is not possible or desirable to sustain the anticipated internal
borrowing position.
6.5 The external borrowing requirement will be kept under review, and long term external loans
will be secured within the parameters established by the authorised limit and operational
boundary for external debt).
6.6 Opportunities to generate savings by refinancing or prematurely repaying existing long
term debt will also be kept under review. Potential savings will be considered in the light of
the current treasury position and the costs associated with such actions.
6.7 Any decisions will be reported to the appropriate decision making body at the next available
opportunity.

7.0 Policy on borrowing in advance of need
7.1 The County Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs purely in order to
profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in advance
will be within forward approved Capital Financing Requirement estimates, and will be
considered carefully to ensure that value for money can be demonstrated and that the
Council can ensure the security of such funds.
Borrowing in advance will be made within the constraints that:


there is a clear business case for doing so for the current Capital Plan;



it will be used finance future debt maturity repayments;



it will offer value for money can be demonstrated; and



the County Council can ensure the security of such funds which are subsequently
invested.

7.2 Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to prior appraisal
and subsequent reporting through the mid-year or annual reporting mechanism.

8.0 Debt rescheduling
8.1 Rescheduling of current borrowing in our debt portfolio is unlikely to occur as there is still
a very large difference between premature redemption rates and new borrowing rates,
even though the general margin of PWLB rates over gilt yields was reduced by 100 bps in
November 2020.
8.2 If rescheduling was done, it will be reported to the Executive and Audit Committee as part
of the quarterly Treasury Management Reports.

15
Page
131

APPENDIX C
ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY
1.0 Investment policy – management of risk
1.1 The DLUHC and CIPFA have extended the meaning of ‘investments’ to include both
financial and non-financial investments. This report deals solely with financial investments,
(as managed by the treasury management team). Non-financial investments, essentially
the purchase of income yielding assets, are covered in the Capital Strategy, (APPENDIX
D).
1.2 The County Council’s investment policy has regard to the following:  DLUHC’s Guidance on Local Government Investments (“the Guidance”);
 CIPFA Treasury Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral
Guidance Notes 2017 (“the Code”); and
 CIPFA Treasury Management Guidance Notes 2018.
The County Council’s investment priorities will be security first, portfolio liquidity second and
then yield, (return).
1.3 The above guidance from the DLUHC and CIPFA place a high priority on the management
of risk. The County Council has adopted a prudent approach to managing risk and defines
its risk appetite by the following means: a)

Minimum acceptable credit criteria are applied in order to generate a list of highly
creditworthy counterparties. This also enables diversification and thus avoidance of
concentration risk. The key ratings used to monitor counterparties are the short term
and long-term ratings.

b)

Other information: ratings will not be the sole determinant of the quality of an
institution; it is important to continually assess and monitor the financial sector on
both a micro and macro basis and in relation to the economic and political
environments in which institutions operate. The assessment will also take account of
information that reflects the opinion of the markets. To achieve this consideration, the
County Council will engage with its advisors to maintain a monitor on market pricing
such as “credit default swaps” and overlay that information on top of the credit ratings.

c)

Other information sources used will include the financial press, share price and other
such information pertaining to the financial sector in order to establish the most robust
scrutiny process on the suitability of potential investment counterparties.

d)

The County Council has defined the list of types of investment instruments that the
treasury management team are authorised to use.
 Specified investments are those with a high level of credit quality and subject to
a maturity limit of one year.

16
Page
132

 Non-specified investments are those with less high credit quality, may be for
periods in excess of one year, and/or are more complex instruments which require
greater consideration by members and officers before being authorised for use.
Once an investment is classed as non-specified, it remains non-specified all the
way through to maturity i.e. an 18 month deposit would still be non-specified even
if it has only 11 months left until maturity.
e)

Non-specified investments limit. The County Council has determined that it will
limit the maximum total exposure to non-specified investments as being 20% of the
total investment portfolio, (£40m).

f)

Lending limits, (amounts and maturity), for each counterparty will be set.

g)

The County Council will set a limit for the amount of its investments which are
invested for longer than 365 days,

h)

Investments will only be placed with counterparties from countries with a specified
minimum sovereign rating,

i)

The County Council has engaged external consultants, to provide expert advice on
how to optimise an appropriate balance of security, liquidity and yield, given the risk
appetite of the County Council in the context of the expected level of cash balances
and need for liquidity throughout the year.

j)

All investments will be denominated in sterling.

k)

As a result of the change in accounting standards for 2022/23 under IFRS 9, this
authority will consider the implications of investment instruments which could result
in an adverse movement in the value of the amount invested and resultant charges
at the end of the year to the General Fund. (In November 2018, the DLUHC, formally
the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government, concluded a
consultation for a temporary override to allow English local authorities time to adjust
their portfolio of all pooled investments by announcing a statutory override to delay
implementation of IFRS 9 for five years ending 31 March 2023.

1.4 However, the County Council will also pursue value for money in treasury management
and will monitor the yield from investment income against appropriate benchmarks for
investment performance. Regular monitoring of investment performance will be carried out
during the year.

2.0

Changes in risk management policy from last year

2.1 The above criteria are unchanged from last year.
3.0 Creditworthiness policy
3.1 The County Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by the Link Group. This
service employs a sophisticated modelling approach utilising credit ratings from the three
17
Page
133

main credit rating agencies - Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s. The credit ratings of
counterparties are supplemented with the following overlays:
 “watches” and “outlooks” from credit rating agencies;
 CDS spreads that may give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings; and
 sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy countries.
This modelling approach combines credit ratings, and any assigned Watches and Outlooks in
a weighted scoring system which is then combined with an overlay of CDS spreads. The end
product of this is a series of colour coded bands which indicate the relative creditworthiness of
counterparties. These colour codes are used by the County Council to determine the suggested
duration for investments.
3.2 The Link Group creditworthiness service uses a wider array of information other than just
primary ratings. Furthermore, by using a risk weighted scoring system, it does not give
undue preponderance to just one agency’s ratings.
3.3 Typically, the minimum credit ratings criteria the County Council use will be a short term
rating (Fitch or equivalents) of F1 and a long term rating of A-. There may be occasions
when the counterparty ratings from one rating agency are marginally lower than these
ratings but may still be used. In these instances, consideration will be given to the whole
range of ratings available, or other topical market information, to support their use.
3.4 All credit ratings will be monitored daily. The County Council is alerted to changes to ratings
of all three agencies through its use of the Link Group creditworthiness service.
3.5 If a downgrade results in the counterparty / investment scheme no longer meeting the
County Council’s minimum criteria, its further use as a new investment will be withdrawn
immediately.
3.6 In addition to the use of credit ratings the County Council will be advised of information in
movements in Credit Default Swap (CDS) spreads against the iTraxx European Financials
benchmark and other market data on a daily basis via its Passport website, provided
exclusively to it by Link Group. Extreme market movements may result in downgrade of an
institution or removal from the County Council’s lending list.
3.7 Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service. In addition, the County
Council will also use market data and market information, as well as information on any
external support for banks to help support its decision making process.
3.8 Significant levels of downgrades to Short and Long-Term credit ratings have not
materialised since the crisis in March 2020. In the main, where they did change, any
alterations were limited to Outlooks. However, as economies are beginning to reopen,
there have been some instances of previous lowering of Outlooks being reversed.
3.9 Although bank CDS prices, (these are market indicators of credit risk), spiked upwards at
the end of March / early April 2020 due to the heightened market uncertainty and ensuing
liquidity crisis that affected financial markets, they have returned to more average levels
18
Page
134

since then. However, sentiment can easily shift, so it will remain important to undertake
continual monitoring of all aspects of risk and return in the current circumstances.
4.0 Country limits
4.1 Due care will be taken to consider the exposure of the County Council’s total investment
portfolio to non-specified investments, countries, groups and sectors.
4.2 Non-specified investment limit. The County Council has determined that it will limit the
maximum total exposure to non-specified investments as being 20% of the total investment
portfolio.
4.3 Country limit. The County Council has determined that it will only use approved
counterparties from the UK and from non-UK countries with a minimum sovereign credit
rating of AA- from Fitch. The list of countries that qualify using these credit criteria as at the
date of this report is shown in Schedule 5. This list will be added to, or deducted from, by
officers should ratings change in accordance with this policy

5.0 Investment strategy
5.1 In-house funds. Investments will be made with reference to the core balance and cash
flow requirements and the outlook for short-term interest rates (i.e. rates for investments
up to 12 months). Greater returns are usually obtainable by investing for longer periods.
While most cash balances are required in order to manage daily cash flow requirements,
where cash sums can be identified that could be invested for longer periods, the value to
be obtained from longer term investments will be carefully assessed.
 if it is thought that Bank Rate is likely to rise significantly within the time horizon being
considered, then consideration will be given to keeping most investments as being short
term or variable; or
 conversely, if it is thought that Bank Rate is likely to fall within that time period,
consideration will be given to locking in higher rates currently obtainable, for longer
periods.
5.2

Investment returns expectations. The current interest rate forecast includes a forecast
for a first increase in Bank Rate in May 2022.

5.3 The suggested budgeted investment earnings rates for returns on investments placed for
periods up to about three months during each financial year are as follows:
Year
2022/23
2023/24
2024/25

Budget
%
0.30
0.65
0.90

19
Page
135

5.4 The overall balance of risks to economic growth in the UK is now to the downside, including
residual risks from Covid and its variants - both domestically and their potential effects
worldwide.
6.0 Investment performance / risk benchmarking
6.1

The County Council will use an investment benchmark to assess the investment performance
of its investment portfolio of Bank of England Base Rate.

7.0 End of year investment report
7.1 At the end of the financial year, the County Council will report on its investment activity as
part of its Annual Treasury Report.

20
Page
136

APPENDIX D
CAPITAL STRATEGY
1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

As highlighted with the Treasury Management Strategy, 2022/23 is the final year for
establishing a Capital Strategy for the County Council given that the new unitary council for
North Yorkshire will come into effect from 1 April 2023. The production of an emerging
“shadow” strategy for the new unitary council, an aggregation of the future projections of all 8
councils will become the start position for the new unitary North Yorkshire Council.

1.2

The purpose of the Capital Strategy is to demonstrate that the County Council takes capital
expenditure and investment decisions in line with corporate and service objectives and properly
takes account of stewardship, value for money, prudence, sustainability and affordability. It
sets out the long term context in which capital expenditure and investment decisions are made
and gives due consideration to both risk and reward and impact on the achievement of priority
outcomes.

1.3 The Capital Strategy comprises a number of distinct, but inter-related, elements as follows:
a)

Capital Expenditure (Section 2)
This section includes an overview of the governance process for approval and
monitoring of capital expenditure, including the County Council’s policies on
capitalisation, and an overview of its capital expenditure and financing plans.

b)

Capital Financing and Borrowing (Section 3)
This section provides a projection of the County Council’s capital financing
requirement, how this impacted by capital expenditure decisions and how it will be
funded and repaid. It therefore sets out the County Council’s borrowing strategy and
explains how it will discharge its duty to make prudent revenue provision for the
repayment of debt.

c)

Alternative Investments (Section 4)
This section provides an overview of those of the County Council’s current and
proposed alternative investment activities that count as capital expenditure, including
processes, due diligence and defining the County Council’s risk appetite in respect of
these.

d)

Chief Financial Officer’s (Section 151) statement (Section 5)
This section contains the Chief Financial Officer’s views on the deliverability,
affordability and risk associated with the capital strategy

21
Page
137

2.0 CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
Capitalisation Policy
2.1 Expenditure is classified as capital expenditure when it results in the acquisition or
construction of an asset (e.g. land, buildings, roads and bridges, vehicles, plant and
equipment etc.) that:
 will be held for use in the delivery of services, for rental to others, investment or for
administrative purposes; and
 are of continuing benefit to the County Council for a period extending beyond one
financial year.
2.2 Subsequent expenditure on existing assets is also classified as capital expenditure if these
two criteria are met.
2.3 There may be instances where expenditure does not meet this definition but would be
treated as capital expenditure, including:
 where the County Council has no direct future control or benefit from the resulting
assets, but would treat the expenditure as capital if it did control or benefit from the
resulting assets; and
 where statutory regulations require the Council to capitalise expenditure that would not
otherwise have expenditure implications according to accounting rules.
2.4 The County Council operates de-minimis limits for capital expenditure. This means that
items below these limits are charged to revenue rather than capital. The limits are
currently as follows:
 General Limit:
 Schools Limit:

£20,000
£ 2,000

Governance
2.5 Capital expenditure is a necessary element in the development of the County Council's
services since it generates investment in new and improved assets. Capital expenditure is
managed through the Capital Plan – a three year capital budget set annually as part of the
budget setting process and reviewed quarterly as part of performance monitoring
arrangements.
2.6 The County Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and the Asset Management Planning
Framework provide a framework for the preparation and appraisal of schemes proposed
for inclusion in the Capital Plan, appropriate authorisations for individual schemes to
proceed and facilitate the overall management of the Capital Plan within defined resource
parameters.
2.7 The Corporate Director –Strategic Resources shall determine the format of the Capital Plan
and the timing of reports relating to it. The approved Capital Plan will comprise a number
of individual schemes each of which will be quantified in overall project terms or on an
22
Page
138

annualised basis, as appropriate. Each Director shall prepare a draft Capital Plan for their
service, in consultation with the Corporate Director – Strategic Resources, for submission
to the Executive. The Capital Plan should identify planned expenditure, and funding, at
proposed individual scheme or programme level.
2.8 The Corporate Director – Strategic Resources is responsible for preparing an overall
Capital Plan for consideration by the Executive, and approval by the County Council, the
funding of which shall be compatible at all times with the Treasury Management Policy
Statement of the County Council. Individual schemes shall only be included in the Capital
Plan following a project appraisal process undertaken in accordance with the guidelines
defined in the Asset Management Planning Framework and in accordance with the
Property Procedure Rules.

Capital Expenditure and Funding Plans
2.9 The County Council’s capital expenditure plans as per the Capital Plan are set out in
Appendix B.
2.10 When expenditure is classified as capital expenditure for capital financing purposes, this
means that the County Council is able to finance that expenditure from any of the
following sources:
a)

capital grants and contributions - amounts awarded to the County Council in
return for past or future compliance with certain stipulations;

b)

capital receipts – amounts generated from the sale of assets and from the
repayment of capital loans, grants or other financial assistance;

c)

revenue contributions – amounts set aside from the revenue budget in the
Reserve for Future Capital Funding; and

d)

borrowing - amounts that the Council does not need to fund immediately from cash
resources, but instead charges to the revenue budget over a number of years into
the future.

The implications of financing capital expenditure from ‘borrowing’ are explained in section
3 below.

23
Page
139

3.0

CAPITAL FINANCING REQUIREMENT AND BORROWING
Context

3.1 The County Council is required to comply with the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital
Finance in Local Authorities (referred to as the ‘Prudential Code’) when assessing the
affordability, prudence and sustainability of its capital investment plans.
3.2 Fundamental to the prudential framework is a requirement to set a series of prudential
indicators. These indicators are intended to collectively build a picture that demonstrates
the impact over time of the County Council’s capital expenditure plans upon the revenue
budget and upon borrowing and investment levels, and explain the overall controls that
will ensure that the activity remains affordable, prudent and sustainable.
3.3 A summary of the actual prudential indicators for 2020/21, and the estimates for 2021/22
through to 2024/25, are provided in Appendix B
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)
3.4 When capital expenditure is funded from borrowing, this does not result in expenditure
being funded immediately from cash resources, but is instead charged to the revenue
budget over a number of years. It does this in accordance with its policy for the repayment
of debt, which is set out in Appendix B.
The forward projections of the CFR reflect:
 additional capital expenditure from borrowing or further credit arrangements resulting
in an increase to the CFR and
 revenue budget provision being made for the repayment of debt, which results in a
reduction to the CFR).
3.5 The actual CFR for 2020/21 and forward projections for the current and forthcoming years
are as follows:

Capital Borrowing
Loans to Limited
Companies
Investment Properties
Other Long Term
Liabilities
Total
Capital Financing
Requirement

2020/21
2021/22
2022/23
2023/24
2024/25
Actual
Probable Estimate Estimate Estimate
£m
£m
£m
£m
£m
303.7
276.6
282.0
279.4
265.5
-15.0
15.0
6.2
-5.6
-13.1
0.0
151.6

0.0
176.2

0.0
170.6

0.0
165.4

0.0
159.9

440.3

467.8

458.8

439.2

412.3

24
Page
140

3.6 The forecast reduction in the CFR is a result of the annual provision for the repayment of
debt each year being in excess of the amount of capital expenditure that it is intended to
finance from borrowing based on the current capital programme up to 2024/25. The CFR
may potentially increase dependent on the level of capital investment undertaken.
3.7 The CFR may potentially increase dependent on the level of capital investment
undertaken. The investments in commercial property are classed as capital expenditure.
As commercial investments are funded from core cash balances, the investments are
effectively funded from internal borrowing for capital accounting purposes. As a result,
expenditure on commercial property investments are included in the calculation of the
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). When the County Council ultimately disinvests
and sells the properties, the income will be classed as a capital receipt and applied to
reduce the CFR. The County Council will not borrow to fund commercial investment
through loans from PWLB or money markets.

External Borrowing Limits
3.8 The County Council is only permitted to borrow externally (including via credit
arrangements) up to the level implied by its Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). To
ensure that external borrowing does not exceed the CFR, other than in the short term,
limits are established for external debt, as follows:


Authorised limit – this defines the maximum amount of external debt permitted
by the Council, and represents the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of
the Local Government Act 2003.



Operational boundary – this is an estimate of the probable level of the Council’s
external debt, and provides the means by which external debt is managed to
ensure that the ‘authorised limit’ is not breached.

3.9 The proposed limits make separate provision for external borrowing and other long-term
liabilities, and are based upon an estimate of the most likely but not worst case
scenarios. They allow sufficient headroom for fluctuations in the level of cash balances
and in the level of the CFR.
3.10 Alternative investment activities are likely to be classed as capital expenditure. The
Alternative Investments Strategy is still evolving though and, in the event that major
initiatives are proposed, in excess of those already in the Capital Programme, it may be
necessary to review the current borrowing limits.

25
Page
141

3.11 The agreed Operational Boundary and Authorised Limits for external debt are as
follows:

Debt outstanding at start of year
+ External borrowing
requirements
Capital borrowing requirement
Replacement borrowing
MRP charged to Revenue
Borrowing b/fwd from 2019/20
Internally funded variations
Sub-total
- External debt repayment
Forecast Debt Outstanding
+ Other ‘IFRS’ long term liabilities
PFI / Leases
Total Debt Outstanding
+ Provision for
Debt rescheduling
Potential capital receipts slippage
New borrowing taking place
before principal repayments
made
Operational Boundary for year
+ Provision for cash movements
Authorised Limit for year

2021/22
2022/23
2023/24
2024/25
Probable Estimate Estimate Estimate
£m
£m
£m
£m
263.1
335.8
342.4
383.4

13.6
14.2
-10.6
0.0
69.7
86.9
-14.2
335.8

6.7
13.3
-10.1
0.0
10.0
19.9
-13.3
342.4

-4.7
0.0
-9.7
0.0
55.4
41.0
0.0
383.4

-12.0
0.0
-9.4
-0.0
-81.3
-102.7
0.0
280.7

176.2
512.0

170.6
513.0

165.4
548.8

159.9
440.6

15.0
5.0
14.2

15.0
5.0
13.3

15.0
5.0
0.0

15.0
5.0
0.0

546.2
20.0
566.2

546.3
20.0
566.3

568.8
20.0
588.8

460.6
20.0
480.6

Borrowing Strategy
3.12 The County Council’s Borrowing Strategy is set out in Appendix B.
3.13 The County Council is currently maintaining an under borrowed position. This means the
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) has not been fully funded from long-term external
borrowing as cash supporting the authority’s reserves and balances has been used as a
short term measure.
The use of internal borrowing has been an effective strategy in recent years as:
 it has enabled the County Council to avoid significant external borrowing costs; and
 it has mitigated significantly the risks associated with investing cash in what has often
been a volatile and challenging market.
3.14 The internal borrowing position will be carefully reviewed and monitored on an ongoing
basis in order to consider any changes to borrowing rates as well as current and future
cash flow constraints.

26
Page
142

3.15 Further long term external borrowing may be undertaken, in excess of the current
forecasts, in the event that it is not possible or desirable to sustain the anticipated internal
borrowing position.
3.16 The external borrowing requirement will be kept under review, and long term external
loans will be secured within the parameters established by the authorised limit and
operational boundary for external debt).
3.17 Opportunities to generate savings by refinancing or prematurely repaying existing long
term debt will also be kept under review. Potential savings will be considered in the light
of the current treasury position and the costs associated with such actions.
Minimum Revenue Provision
3.18 The County Council sets cash resources aside from the Revenue Budget each year to
repay the borrowing. This practice is referred to as the Minimum Revenue Provision
(MRP) for the repayment of debt.
3.19 The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) provides a measure of the amount of capital
expenditure which has been financed from borrowing that the County Council yet to fund
from cash resources.
3.20 Statutory guidance requires MRP to be provided annually on a prudent basis. In
accordance with the requirement to make a prudent ‘revenue provision for the repayment
of debt’, the County Council ensures that debt is repaid over a period that is
commensurate with the period over which the capital expenditure provides benefit. The
revenue budget provision for MRP charges in 2022/23 has been compiled on a basis
consistent with this policy.
3.21 The DLUHC is currently conducting a consultation on amending MRP rules. Proposed
changes resulting from the consultation on MRP rules will be reflected in the 2023/24
Capital Strategy.
4.0 ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENTS
Introduction
4.1 The prolonged low interest rate environment has resulted in reduced returns on treasury
management investments. Moreover, the introduction of the general power of
competence has given local authorities far more flexibility in the types of activity they can
engage in. These changes in the economic and regulatory landscape, combined with
significant financial challenges, have led many authorities to consider different and more
innovative types of investment.
4.2 The CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice and Cross
Sectoral Guidance Notes (the Treasury Management Code) requires authorities to
incorporate all of the financial and non-financial assets held for financial return in
authorities’ annual capital strategies.

27
Page
143

4.3 Separately, The Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities Statutory
Guidance on Local Authority Investments also reinforces the need for Commercial
Activities to be included in the Capital Strategy.
4.4 In addition, Her Majesty’s Treasury introduced revised lending terms for borrowing from
the PWLB on 25 November 2020. Under the revised lending terms, the government has
now ended access to the PWLB for Local Authorities that wish to buy commercial assets
primarily for yield, as assessed by the statutory Section 151 officer. Local Authorities
remain free to buy commercial assets primarily for yield, but are not be able to take out
new loans from the PWLB in year where they have any plans to buy commercial assets
at any point over the following 3 year period (any loans taken out under the old system
are not be affected by this change). As a result, of the revised lending terms the
government has now cut PWLB lending rates.
4.5 More recently, CIPFA published updated Treasury Management and Prudential Codes
on 20 December 2021 – these updated Codes will need to be reflected in local authority
Treasury Management and Capital Strategies from 2023/24. The new CIPFA Codes
further tighten regulations around financing capital expenditure on investments in
commercial projects for yield.
4.6 The 2022/23 Capital Plan does not include any plans to purchase commercial assets
primarily for yield.
4.7 The 2022/23 Capital Plan does include £16.0m relating to expenditure on Alternative
Investments, but this specifically relates to Loans to the County Council’s Limited
Companies. Loans to subsidiary companies provide working capital/financial assistance
and are not commercial arrangements primarily for yield.
4.8 The County Council continues to review potential commercial investments, but will now
consider any potential investment opportunities alongside the implications for PWLB
borrowing going forward.
4.9 The County Council does not borrow to fund commercial investment through loans from
the PWLB or money markets.
4.10 All alternative investment activities are subject to approval in accordance with the County
Council’s governance framework for decision making. Any subsequent changes in
governance, policy objectives and approach following elections to the new council in May
2022 will be factored into the new council’s first capital strategy, effective from April 2023.

Alternative Investment Objectives
4.11 The primary objectives of alternative investment activities are:


Security – to protect the capital sums invested from loss; and



Liquidity – ensuring the funds invested are available for expenditure when needed.

28
Page
144

4.12 The generation of yield is distinct from these prudential objectives. However, once proper
levels of security and liquidity are determined, it is then reasonable to consider what yield
can be obtained consistent with these priorities.
4.13 Non-core activities and investments are primarily undertaken by the County Council in
order to generate income to support the delivery of a balanced budget. Such investments
are only entered following a full assessment of the risks and having secured expert
external advice (i.e. where it is relevant to do so).
4.14 An overall maximum exposure of £60m for alternative investments was approved by
Executive on 15 January 2019.

Commercial Investment Board
4.15 Given the technical nature of potential alternative investments and strong linkages to the
Council’s Treasury Management function, appropriate governance and decision making
arrangements are needed to ensure robust due diligence in order to make
recommendations for implementation. As a result, a Commercial Investment Board has
been established. All investments will be subject to consideration and where necessary
recommendations of the Commercial Investment Board.
4.16 The Board is not be a constituted body and therefore does not have formal decision
making powers. However, it is the chief means of identifying, reviewing and
recommending schemes for investment decisions. Formal decisions on investments will
be taken within the existing delegations namely through delegated authority to the
Corporate Director - Strategic Resources and further decisions as made by the
Executive.
4.17 The Board has delegated authority to approve individual investments up to a limit of
£2.5m per investment and up to a total of £10m in any one financial year (approved by
Executive 15 January 2019). Investments in excess of this will be submitted to the
Executive for approval.
4.18 The responsibilities of the Board also include:


to consider appropriate due diligence proportionate to the investment / risk / reward
proposed;



terminate investments should concerns be raised - to consider and recommend cases
for early termination of alternative investments;



to monitor returns against approved performance targets;



to report performance of alternative investments to the Executive on a quarterly basis;
and



to make recommendations to Executive on any proposed changes to the framework.

29
Page
145

Membership of the Board is as follows:


Lead Member for Finance (Chair)



Lead Member for Growth



Corporate Director Strategic Resources



Corporate Director Business and Environmental Services



Assistant Director Strategic Resources



Assistant Director BES - Growth, Planning and Trading Standards

Investment Properties
4.19 Options are continually reviewed the acquisition of land and buildings for investment
purposes, rather than for the supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Such assets will be classified as Investment Properties.
4.20 Investment properties are measured at their fair value annually (which will ensure the
valuation reflects the market conditions at the end of each reporting period). The fair
value measurement will enable the County Council to assess whether the underlying
assets provide security for capital investment. Where the fair value of the underlying
assets is no longer sufficient to provide security against loss, mitigating actions will be
considered, to ensure that appropriate action is taken to protect the capital sum invested.
Loans to Third Parties
4.21 Loans to third parties will be considered, as part of a wider strategy for local economic
growth, even though they may not all be seen as prudent if adopting a narrow definition
of prioritising security and liquidity.
4.22 Such loans will be considered when all of the following criteria are satisfied:


the loan is given towards expenditure which would, if incurred by the County
Council, be capital expenditure;



the purpose for which the loan is given is consistent with the County Council’s
corporate / strategic objectives and priorities;



due diligence is carried out that confirms the County Council’s legal powers to make
the loan, and that assesses the risk of loss over the loan term; and



a formal loan agreement is put in place which stipulates the loan period (which will
not exceed 25 years), repayment terms and loan rate (which will be set at a level
that seeks to mitigate any perceived risks of a loss being charged to the General

30
Page
146

Fund, and takes appropriate account of state aid rules) and any other terms that will
protect the County Council from loss;
The County Council does not currently have in place any loans with third parties.

Loans to Limited Companies
4.23 The County Council has made a number of loans in recent years for policy reasons and
will continue to monitor and review this position.
a)

the County Council’s general investment powers under this Annual Treasury
Management and Investment Strategy come from the Local Government Act 2003
(Section 12). Under this Act a local authority has the power to invest for any purpose
relevant to its functions or for the purpose of the prudent management of its financial
affairs;

b)

in addition to investment, the County Council has the power to provide loans and
financial assistance to Limited Companies under the Localisation Act 2011 (and also
formally under the general power of wellbeing in the Local Government Act 2000)
which introduced a general power of competence for authorities;

c)

any such loans to limited companies will not be classed as investments made by the
County Council. Instead they will be classed as capital expenditure and will be
approved, financed and accounted for accordingly; and

d)

at present the County Council has made several loans to companies in which it has
an equity investment. In all cases loan limits are set, and reviewed periodically, by
the Executive.

The County Council’s loans to limited companies are set out in paragraph 4.25.

Other Alternative Investments
4.24 Consideration of individual investment opportunities is subject to detailed business cases
and subject to review and approval by the Alternative Investment Board and Executive.
The Capital Strategy will be updated should further investment opportunities be developed
during 2022/23 and/or in the event that the statutory Guidance on Local Authority
Investments, when issued, requires further content to be included.
Current Alternative Investment Position
4.25 In order to manage risk appropriately, achieve targets for investment returns, deliver a
diverse portfolio and maintain a level of liquidity, the Commercial Investment Board has
established an investment framework. The investment framework provides a range of
investment options and investment limits for each option.

31
Page
147

The current investment framework and current alternative position is as follows:

Type of Investment

Risk

Maximum Maximum
Exposure
Term
£m
Years

Target
Rate
(above
BBR)
%

Invested
as at
31/12/21
£m

Rate
of
Return
%

Alternative treasury
instruments
Money Market Funds
Enhanced Cash Funds
Certificates of Deposit
Property Funds
Total Alternative
Treasury Instruments

20.0
20.0
20.0
20.0

1–5

Low Medium
Low
Medium

25.0

10

5.0
10.0

Medium
High

5.0
20.0

Low

0.0
0.0
0.0
5.9
5.9

0.00
0.00
0.00
3.38
3.38

4.00

26.9

5.94

7
20

4.00
3.00

0.0
0.0

0.00
0.00

20
10

7.00
5.00

0.0
11.9
38.7

0.00
2.28
4.82

>0.10

Other Alternative
Investments
Loans to Council
Companies
Spend to Save
Loans to Housing
Associations
Solar Farms (or similar)
Commercial Investments
Total Other Alternative
Investments *
* Total Alternative Investments capped at £60m

Loans to Council Companies are currently in excess of the overall maximum exposure limit.
All loans are within individual approval limits. As a result, the overall exposure limit in relation
to Alternative Investments will be reviewed by the Commercial Investment Board.
4.26 The County Council has the following loans to subsidiaries in place as at 31 December
2021.

Subsidiary
NYnet
Yorwaste – Loan 1
Yorwaste – Loan 2
Brierley Homes
First North Law
NY Highways
Total

Total
Loan
Agreed
£m
10.00
3.70
3.85
14.90
0.25
11.00

Loan
Advanced
£m
Overdraft
2017/18
2017/18
2017/18
2017/18
2020/21

32
Page
148

Loan
Terms
Years
n/a
10
10
2
10
10

Interest
Rate
%
3.0+Base
4.0+Base
4.0+Base
6.0+Base
4.0+Base
6.5+base

Loan
Balance
£m
0.0
3.7
2.3
12.8
0.1
8.0
26.9

4.27 The County Council has the following Commercial Property Investments in place as at 31
December 2021.

Property
Bank Unit in Stafford Town Centre
Harrogate Royal Baths
Co-op in Somercotes
Total

Amount
£m
0.9
9.5
1.5
11.9

Net Yield
%
6.05
1.45
5.32
2.28

5.0 CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’S (SECTION 151) STATEMENT
Background
5.1 The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code) plays
a key role in capital finance in local authorities. Local authorities determine their own
programmes for investment that are central to the delivery of quality public services. The
Prudential Code was developed by CIPFA as a professional code of practice to support
local authorities in taking their decisions. Local authorities are required by regulation to
have regard to the Prudential Code when carrying out their duties under Part 1 of the
Local Government Act 2003.
5.2 In financing capital expenditure, local authorities are governed by legislative frameworks,
including the requirement to have regard to CIPFA’s Treasury Management in the Public
Services: Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes.
5.3 In order to demonstrate that capital expenditure and investment decisions are taken in
line with service objectives and properly take account of stewardship, value for money,
prudence, sustainability and affordability, the Prudential Code requires authorities to have
in place a Capital Strategy that sets out the long term context in which capital expenditure
and investment decisions are made, and gives due consideration to both risk and reward
and impact on the achievement of priority outcomes.
5.4 The Prudential Code requires the Chief Financial Officer to report explicitly on the
affordability and risk associated with the Capital Strategy. The following are specific
responsibilities of the Section 151 Officer:


recommending clauses, treasury management policy/practices for approval,
reviewing regularly, and monitoring compliance;



submitting quarterly treasury management reports;



submitting quarterly capital budget reports;



reviewing the performance of the treasury management function;

33
Page
149



ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and the
effective division of responsibilities within the treasury management function;



ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit;



recommending the appointment of external service providers.



preparation of a capital strategy to include capital expenditure, capital financing,
non-financial investments and treasury management



ensuring that the capital strategy is prudent, sustainable, affordable and prudent in
the long term and provides value for money



ensuring that due diligence has been carried out on all treasury and non-financial
investments and is in accordance with the risk appetite of the authority



ensure that the authority has appropriate legal powers to undertake expenditure on
non-financial assets and their financing



ensuring the proportionality of all investments so that the authority does not
undertake a level of investing which exposes the authority to an excessive level of
risk compared to its financial resources



ensuring that an adequate governance process is in place for the approval,
monitoring and ongoing risk management of all non-financial investments and long
term liabilities



provision to members of a schedule of all non-treasury investments including
material investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, loans and financial guarantees



ensuring that members are adequately informed and understand the risk exposures
taken on by an authority



ensuring that the authority has adequate expertise, either in house or externally
provided



creation of Treasury Management Practices which specifically deal with how non
treasury investments will be carried out and managed

5.5 The Capital Strategy provides an overview of the governance process for approval and
monitoring of capital expenditure. These processes are well established and are highly
effective in ensuring delivery of the County Council’s capital investment plans. In addition,
the Capital Strategy and Prudential Indicators also demonstrates that the capital
expenditure, investment and financing plans of the County Council are robust, affordable
and sustainable.”

34
Page
150

SCHEDULES
1.

Treasury Management Policy Statement

2.

Prudential Indicators Update for 2022/23 to 2024/25

3.

Economic background

4.

Specified and Non Specified Investments

5

Approved Lending List

6.

Approved countries for investments

35
Page
151

SCHEDULE 1
NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
TREASURY MANAGEMENT POLICY STATEMENT

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND CONTEXT
1.1 2022/23 is the final year for establishing a Treasury Management Policy Statement for the
County Council given that the new unitary council for North Yorkshire will come into effect
from 1 April 2023. The production of an emerging “shadow” policy for the new unitary
council, an aggregation of the future projections of all 8 councils, will become the start
position for the new unitary North Yorkshire Council.
1.2 The County Council has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management
in the Public Services as updated in 2017. This Code sets out a framework of operating
procedures to reduce treasury risk and improve understanding and accountability
regarding the Treasury position of the County Council.
1.3 The CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management requires the County Council to
adopt the following four clauses of intent:
a)

the County Council will create and maintain as the cornerstone for effective Treasury
Management
i.

a strategic Treasury Management Policy Statement (TMPS) stating the policies,
objectives and approach to risk management of the County Council to its treasury
management activities;

ii.

a framework of suitable Treasury Management Practices (TMPs) setting out the
manner in which the County Council will seek to achieve those policies and
objectives, and prescribing how it will manage and control those activities. The
Code recommends 12 TMPs;

b)

the County Council delegates responsibility for the implementation and regular
monitoring of its Treasury Management policies and practices to the Executive and
for the execution and administration of Treasury Management decisions to the
Corporate Director – Strategic Resources who will act in accordance with the
Council’s TMPS, TMPs, as well as CIPFA’s Standard of Professional Practice on
Treasury Management;

c)

the County Council nominates the Audit Committee to be responsible for ensuring
effective scrutiny of the Treasury Management Strategies and Policies; and

d)

the County Council nominates the Audit Committee to be responsible for ensuring
effective scrutiny of the Treasury Management Strategies and Policies.

36
Page
152

1.4 The CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (updated in 2017)
and the terms of the Local Government Act 2003, together with ‘statutory’ Government
Guidance, establish further requirements in relation to treasury management matters,
namely
a)

the approval, on an annual basis, of a set of Prudential Indicators; and

b)

approval, on an annual basis, of an Annual Treasury Management Strategy, an
Annual Investment Strategy, an annual Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)
policy statement and a Capital Strategy with an associated requirement that each is
monitored on a regular basis with a provision to report as necessary both in-year and
at the financial year end.

1.5 This current Treasury Management Policy Statement (TMPS) was approved by County
Council on 16 February 2022.

2.0 TREASURY MANAGEMENT POLICY STATEMENT (TMPS)
2.1 Based on the requirements detailed above a TMPS stating the policies and objectives of
the treasury management activities of the County Council is set out below.
2.2 The County Council defines the policies and objectives of the treasury management
activities of the County Council as follows: a)

the management of the County Council’s investments and cash flows, its banking,
money market and capital market transactions, the effective control of the risks
associated with those activities, and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent
with those risks;

b)

the identification, monitoring and control of risk will be the prime criteria by which the
effectiveness of the treasury management activities will be measured. Accordingly,
the analysis and reporting of treasury management activities will focus on their risk
implications for the County Council and any financial instrument entered into to
manage these risks; and

c)

effective treasury management will provide support towards the achievement of the
business and service objectives of the County Council as expressed in the Council
Plan. The County Council is committed to the principles of achieving value for many
in treasury management, and to employing suitable comprehensive performance
measurement techniques, within the context of effective risk management.

2.3 As emphasised in the Treasury Management Code of Practice, responsibility for risk
management and control of Treasury Management activities lies wholly with the County
Council and all officers involved in Treasury Management activities are explicitly required
to follow Treasury Management policies and procedures.

37
Page
153

3.0 TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (TMPs)
3.1 The CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management requires a framework of Treasury
Management Practices (TMPs) which:
a)

set out the manner in which the County Council will seek to achieve the policies and
objectives; and

b)

prescribe how the County Council will manage and control those activities;

3.2 The CIPFA Code of Practice recommends 12 TMPs. A list of the 12 TMPs is as follows: TMP 1

Risk management

TMP 2

Performance measurement

TMP 3

Decision-making and analysis

TMP 4

Approved instruments, methods and techniques

TMP 5

Organisation, clarity and segregation of responsibilities, and dealing
arrangements

TMP 6

Reporting requirements and management information arrangements

TMP 7

Budgeting, accounting and audit arrangements

TMP 8

Cash and cash flow management

TMP 9

Money Laundering

TMP 10 Training and qualifications
TMP 11 Use of external service providers
TMP 12 Corporate governance

4.0 PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS
4.1 The Local Government Act 2003 underpins the Capital Finance system introduced on 1
April 2004 and requires the County Council to “have regard to” the CIPFA Prudential Code
for Capital Finance in Local Authorities. This Code which was last updated in
December 2017, requires the County Council to set a range of Prudential Indicators for the
next three years
a)

as part of the annual Budget process, and;

b)

before the start of the financial year;

38
Page
154

to ensure that capital spending plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable.
4.2 The Prudential Code also requires appropriate arrangements to be in place for the
monitoring, reporting and revision of Prudential Indicators previously set.
The required Prudential Indicators are as follows:

Capital Expenditure - Actual and Forecasts



estimated ratio of capital financing costs to the Net Revenue Budget



Capital Financing Requirement



Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement



authorised Limit for External Debt



operational Boundary for External Debt



Actual External Debt



Maturity Structure of Borrowing



Total Principal Sums Invested for periods longer than 365 days

4.3 The County Council will approve the Prudential Indicators for a three year period alongside
the annual Revenue Budget/Medium Term Financial Strategy at its February meeting each
year. The Indicators will be monitored during the year and necessary revisions submitted
as necessary via the Quarterly Performance and Budget Monitoring reports.
4.4 In addition to the above formally required Prudential Indicators, the County Council has
also set two local ones as follows:
a)

to cap Capital Financing costs to 10% of the net annual revenue budget; and

b)

a 30% limit on money market borrowing as opposed to borrowing from the Public
Works Loan Board.

5.0 ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENT STRATEGY
5.1 A further implication of the Local Government Act 2003 is the requirement for the County
Council to set out its Treasury Management Strategy for borrowing and to approve an
Annual Investment Strategy (which sets out the County Council’s policies for managing its
investments and for giving priority to the security and liquidity of those investments).
5.2 The Government’s guidance on the Annual Investment Strategy, updated in February
2018, states that authorities can combine the Treasury Management Strategy Statement
and Annual Investment Strategy into one report. The County Council has adopted this
combined approach.
39
Page
155

5.3 Further statutory Government guidance, last updated with effect from February 2018, is in
relation to an authority’s charge to its Revenue Budget each year for debt repayment. A
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy statement must be prepared each year and
submitted to the full Council for approval before the start of the financial year.
5.4 The County Council will approve this combined Annual Strategy alongside the annual
Revenue Budget/Medium Term Financial Strategy at its February meeting each year.

6.0 REVIEW OF THIS POLICY STATEMENT
6.1 Under Financial Procedure Rule 14, the Corporate Director – Strategic Resources is
required to periodically review this Policy Statement and all associated documentation. A
review of this Statement, together with the associated annual strategies, will therefore be
undertaken annually as part of the Revenue Budget process, together with a mid year
review as part of the Quarterly Treasury Management reporting process and at such other
times during the financial year as considered necessary by the Corporate Director –
Strategic Resources.

Approved by County Council
16 February 2022

40
Page
156

SCHEDULE 2
PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS UPDATE – FOR 2022/23 TO 2024/25
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE & EXTERNAL DEBT INDICATORS

1

Comment

Estimated Ratio of capital financing costs to the net Revenue Budget
(a) Formally required Indicator
This reflects capital financing costs (principal plus interest) on external debt plus PFI and
finance leasing charges less interest earned on the temporary investment of cash
balances.
The estimated ratios of financing costs to the net Revenue Budget for the current and
future years, and the actual figure for 2020/21 are as follows:
Year

Page 157

2020/21
2021/22
2022/23
2023/24
2024/25

(b)

Executive August 2021
Basis
%
Actual
10.4
Estimate
10.7
Estimate
10.6
Estimate
9.9
Estimate
-

2020/21
2021/22
2022/23
2023/24
2024/25

Executive August 2021
Basis
%
Actual
5.7
Estimate
5.5
Estimate
5.1
Estimate
4.7
Estimate
-

The updated estimates for 2021/22 to 2024/25 reflect the net effect of a
range of factors, principally
(a) savings being achieved through the ongoing policy of financing capital
borrowing requirements internally from cash balances

Update January 2022
Basis
%
Actual
10.4
Estimate
10.5
Estimate
9.8
Estimate
9.0
Estimate
8.5

(b) variations in the level of annual borrowing requirements resulting from
a range of factors, but principally capital expenditure slippage between
years

Local Indicator
This local Indicator reflects a policy decision to cap Capital Financing costs at 10% of
the net annual Revenue Budget. The Indicator is different to the formally required
Indicator at (a) above in that it only reflects the cost components of interest on external
debt plus lost interest on internally financed capital expenditure, together with a revenue
provision for debt repayment. Unlike the formally required PI it does not reflect interest
earned on surplus cash balances or PFI / finance leasing charges.
Year

The estimates of financing costs include current Capital Plan commitments
based on the latest 2021/22 Q3 Capital Plan.

Update January 2022
Basis
%
Actual
5.7
Estimate
5.2
Estimate
4.8
Estimate
4.5
Estimate
4.3

41

(c) variations in borrowing costs (interest plus a revenue provision for debt
repayment) reflecting latest interest rate forecasts to 2024/25
(d) variations in interest earned on cash balances resulting from
continuing current historically low interest rates but offset by
continuing higher levels of cash balances (formal Indicator only).

Prudential Indicator

2

Comment

Capital Expenditure - Actual and Forecasts
The actual capital expenditure that was incurred in 2020/21 and the latest estimates of
capital expenditure to be incurred for the current and future years are:
Year
2020/21
2021/22
2022/23
2023/24
2024/25

Executive August 2021
Basis
£m
Actual
119.6
Estimate
171.2
Estimate
38.3
Estimate
6.2
Estimate
-

Update January 2022
Basis
£m
Actual
119.6
Estimate
142.8
Estimate
83.2
Estimate
34.0
Estimate
26.4

This Indicator now reflects the Capital Outturn in 2020/21 and the Capital Plan
update for Q3 2021/22.
The variations are principally a result of:-

Page 158

(a)

additional provisions and variations to existing provisions which are selffunded from Capital Grants and Contributions, revenue contribution and
earmarked capital receipts

(b)

Capital expenditure re-phasing between years including slippage from
2020/21 outturn and Q3 2021/22 to later years

(c)

various other Capital approvals and refinements reflected in the latest
Capital Plan update

The above figures reflect the updated Capital Plan (Q3 2021/22) together with:(i)

expenditure on fixed assets funded directly from the Revenue Budget and not
included in the Capital Plan.

(ii)

an estimated allowance for future expenditure re-phasing between years.

42

Prudential Indicator

3

Comment

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)
Actuals and estimates of the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) at the defined year ends are as follows:

Date

Page 159

31 Mar 2021
31 Mar 2022
31 Mar 2023
31 Mar 2024
31 Mar 2025

Basis
Actual
Estimate
Estimate
Estimate
Estimate

Executive August 2021
Other
Long Term
Liabilities
Borrowing
(PFi etc)
£m
£m
288.7
151.6
293.1
176.2
269.9
170.6
256.3
165.4
-

Total
£m
440.3
469.2
440.5
421.6
-

Basis
£m
Actual
Estimate
Estimate
Estimate
Estimate

Update January 2022
Other
Long Term
Liabilities
Borrowing
(PFi etc)
£m
£m
288.7
151.6
291.6
176.2
288.2
170.6
273.8
165.4
252.4
159.9

The January 2021 figures were based on a
Capital Plan approved as at 31 December 2021.
The updated figures reflect the following
variations

Total
£m
440.3
467.8
458.8
439.2
412.3

The CFR measures the underlying need for the County Council to borrow for capital purposes. In accordance with best
professional practice, the County Council does not earmark borrowing to specific items or types of expenditure. The
County Council has an integrated treasury management approach and has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice for
Treasury Management. The County Council has, at any point in time, a number of cashflows, both positive and negative,
and manages its treasury position in terms of its overall borrowings and investments in accordance with its approved
Annual Treasury Management Strategy. In day to day cash management, no distinction is made between revenue and
capital cash. External borrowing arises as a consequence of all the financial transactions of the County Council as a
whole and not simply those arising from capital spending. In contrast, the CFR Indicator reflects the County Council's
underlying need to borrow for capital purposes only.

(a) re-phasing between years of expenditure
that is funded from borrowing including
slippage between years identified at 2020/21
outturn and Q3 2021/22
(b) capital receipts (including company loans)
slippage between years that affect year on
year borrowing requirements
(c) variations in the level of the Corporate Capital
Pot which is used in lieu of new borrowing
until the Pot is required
(d) additions and variations to schemes /
provisions approved that are funded from
Prudential Borrowing
(e) variations in the annual Minimum Revenue
Provision for debt Repayment which arise
from the above
(f) Other Long Term Liabilities now include the
Allerton Waste Recovery Park PFI Scheme

43

Prudential Indicator

4

Comment

Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement
The Prudential Code emphasises that in order to ensure that over the
medium term debt will only be for a capital purpose, the County Council
should ensure that debt does not, except in the short term, exceed the
total of the capital financing requirement in the previous year (2020/21),
plus the estimate of any additional capital financing requirement for the
current (2021/22) and next two financial years (2022/23 and 2023/24). If,
in any of these years, there is a reduction in the capital financing
requirement, this reduction should be ignored in estimating the
cumulative increase in the capital financing requirement which is used for
comparison with gross external debt.

Page 160

This Prudential Indicator is referred to as gross debt and the
comparison with the capital financing requirement (Indicator 3) and is
a key indicator of prudence.
The Corporate Director – Strategic Resources reports that the County
Council had no difficulty in meeting this requirement up to 2020/21 nor
are any difficulties envisaged for the current or future years of the Medium
Term Financial Strategy up to 2023/24. For subsequent years, however,
there is potential that the County Council may not be able to comply with
the new requirement as a result of the potential for the annual Minimum
Revenue Provision (MRP) reducing the Capital Financing Requirement
below gross debt. This potential situation will be monitored closely. This
opinion takes into account spending commitments, existing and
proposed Capital Plans and the proposals in the Revenue Budget
2021/22 and Medium Term Financial Strategy report.

This Prudential Indicator was changed in 2013/14 to reflect the comparison of gross
debt (external debt plus other long term liabilities) with the Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR). The comparator debt figure had previously been net debt
which was gross debt less investments.
The Prudential Code requires that where there is a significant difference between
the gross debt and the gross borrowing requirement, as demonstrated by the CFR,
then the risks and benefits associated with this strategy should be clearly stated in
the annual Treasury Management Strategy.
The County Council’s gross debt figure is currently significantly below the CFR
figures shown in Indicator 3 because of annual capital borrowing requirements
being funded internally from cash balances (i.e. running down investments) rather
than taking out new external debt.
This situation, however, could be reversed in future as a result of two key factors:
(i)

externalising some or all of the internally financed CFR together with

(ii)

the potential for the annual Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) for debt
repayment reducing the CFR below gross debt because the debt cannot
readily be prematurely repaid without incurring significant penalties
(premiums).

This potential situation will be monitored carefully by the Corporate Director –
Strategic Resources.

44

Prudential Indicator

5

Comment

Authorised Limit for External Debt
In respect of its external debt, it is recommended that the County Council approves the following Authorised
Limits for its total external debt for the next three financial years.
The Prudential Code requires external borrowing and other long term liabilities (PFI and Finance leases) to
be identified separately.
The authorised limit for 2021/22 will be the statutory limit determined under section 3(1) of the Local
Government Act 2003.

Page 161

Date
2021/22
2022/23
2023/24
2024/25

Executive August 2021
Other
Long Term
Liabilities
Borrowing
Total
(PFi etc)
£m
£m
£m
303.3
176.2
479.5
340.7
170.6
511.3
300.2
165.4
465.5
-

Update January 2022
Other
Long Term
Liabilities
Borrowing
Total
(PFi etc)
£m
£m
£m
390.3
176.2
566.2
395.7
170.6
566.3
423.4
165.4
588.8
320.7
159.9
480.6

The Corporate Director – Strategic Resources
confirms that these authorised limits are
consistent with the County Council’s current
commitments, updated Capital Plan and the
financing of that Plan, the 2021/22 Revenue
Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy and
with its approved Treasury Management Policy
Statement.
The Corporate Director – Strategic Resources
also confirms that the limits are based on the
estimate of most likely prudent, but not worst case,
scenario with sufficient headroom over and above
this to allow for operational issues (e.g. unusual
cash movements). To derive these limits a risk
analysis has been applied to the Capital Plan,
estimates of the capital financing requirement and
estimates of cashflow requirements for all
purposes.
The updated figures reflect a number of
refinements which are also common to the Capital
Financing Requirement (see Indicator 3) and
Operational Boundary for external debt (see
Indicator 6). Explanations for these changes are
provided under Indicators 3 and 6 respectively.

45

Prudential Indicator

6

Comment

Operational Boundary for External Debt
It is recommended that the County Council approves the following Operational Boundary for external
debt for the same period.
The proposed operational boundary for external debt is based on the same estimates as the Authorised
Limit (ie Indicator 5 above) but also reflects an estimate of the most likely prudent, but not worst case,
scenario without the additional headroom included within the Authorised Limit to allow for eg unusual
cash flows.

Page 162

Date
2021/22
2022/23
2023/24
2024/25

Executive August 2021
Other
Long Term
Liabilities
Borrowing
Total
(PFi etc)
£m
£m
£m
283.3
176.2
459.5
320.7
170.6
491.3
280.2
165.4
445.5
-

Update January 2022
Other
Long Term
Liabilities
Borrowing
Total
(PFi etc)
£m
£m
£m
370.0
176.2
546.2
375.5
170.6
546.3
403.4
165.4
568.8
300.7
159.9
460.6

46

The Operational Boundary represents a key management
tool for the in year monitoring of external debt by the
Corporate Director – Strategic Resources.
The updated figures reflect refinements which are common
to the Capital Financing Requirement (see Indicator 3
above), together with
(a)

relative levels of capital expenditure funded internally
from cash balances rather than taking external debt

(b)

loan repayment cover arrangements and the timing of
such arrangements

These two financing transactions affect external debt levels
at any one point of time during the financial year but do not
impact on the Capital Financing Requirement.

Prudential Indicator
7

Page 163
8

Comment

Actual External Debt
The County Council's external debt is set out below and consists of external borrowing from the PWLB
and money markets plus other long term liabilities such as PFI and finance leases which are classified
as external debt for this purpose.

Date
31 Mar 21
31 Mar 22
31 Mar 23
31 Mar 24
31 Mar 25

Actual
Estimate
Estimate
Estimate
-

Executive August 2021
Other
Long Term
Liabilities
Borrowing
(PFI etc)
£m
£m
236.0
151.6
221.8
176.2
208.5
170.6
208.5
165.4
-

Total
£m
387.6
398.0
379.1
373.9
-

Basis
Actual
Estimate
Estimate
Estimate
Estimate

Update January 2022
Other
Long Term
Liabilities
Borrowing
(PFI etc)
£m
£m
236.0
151.6
221.8
176.2
208.5
170.6
208.5
165.4
208.5
159.9

The updated estimates reflect refinements which
are common to the Capital Financing
Requirement (see Indicator 3 above) together
with the relative levels of capital expenditure
internally funded from cash balances rather than
taking external debt.
Total
£m
387.6
398.0
379.1
373.9
368.4

It should be noted that actual external debt is not directly comparable to the Authorised Limit (Indicator
5 above) and Operational Boundary (Indicator 6 above) since the actual external debt reflects a
position at one point in time.

Limit of Money Market Loans (Local Indicator)
Borrowing from the money market for capital purposes (as opposed to borrowing from the PWLB) is to
be limited to 30% of the County Council’s total external debt outstanding at any one point in time.
The actual position at 31 March 2021 was 8% (£20m out of a total of £236.0m) against an upper limit of 30%

47

This limit was introduced as a new Local
Prudential Indicator in 2009/10, although the
30% limit has featured as part of the Borrowing
Policy section of the County Council’s Annual
Treasury Management and Investment
Strategy for many years.

Prudential Indicator

9

Comment

Maturity Structure of Borrowing
The upper and lower limits for the maturity structure of County Council borrowings are
as follows:The amount of projected borrowing maturing in each period as a percentage of total
projected borrowing that is fixed rate:
Lower
Limit
%

Upper
Limit
%

under 12 months

0

50

6

6

12 months & within 24 months

0

25

6

6

24 months & within 5 years

0

50

4

7

5 years & within 10 years

0

75

3

3

10 years and within 25 years

0

100

7

8

25 years and within 50 years

0

100

74

70

100

100

Period

Memo item - actual at
1 April 21
1 April 22
%
%

Page 164

48

These limits are reviewed annually and have been updated to reflect
the current maturity structure of the County Council’s debt portfolio.

Prudential Indicator

10

Comment

Total Principal Sums Invested for periods longer than 365 days
The 2022/23 aggregate limit of £40m for ‘non specified’ investments longer than 365
days is based on a maximum of 20% of estimated ‘core cash funds’ up to 2024/25
being made available for such investments.
The purpose of this prudential limit for principal sums invested for longer than 365
days is for the County Council to contain its exposure to the possibility of loss that
might arise as a result of it having to seek early repayment or redemption of principal
sums invested.

No change to this limit is proposed.
The County Council currently has no such investments that fall
into this category.
Prior to 1 April 2004, Regulations generally prevented local
authorities from investing for longer than 365 days. As a result
of the Prudential Regime however, these prescriptive regulations
were abolished and replaced with Government Guidance from
April 2004.

Page 165

This Guidance gives authorities more freedom in their choice of
investments (including investing for periods longer than 365
days) and recognises that a potentially higher return can be
achieved by taking a higher (ie longer term) risk.
This flexibility requires authorities to produce an Annual
Investment Strategy that classifies investments as either
Specified (liquid, secure, high credit rating & less than 365 days)
or Non Specified (other investments of a higher risk). Non
Specified investments are perfectly allowable but the criteria and
risks involved must be vigorously assessed, including
professional advice, where appropriate. Therefore investments
for 365 days+ are allowable as a Non Specified investment under
the Government Guidance. The use of such investments is
therefore now incorporated into the County Council's Annual
Treasury Management and Investment Strategy.

49

SCHEDULE 3
ECONOMIC BACKGROUND
1.0 The UK.
1.1 The Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) voted 8-1 to raise Bank Rate by 0.15% from
0.10% to 0.25% and unanimously decided to make no changes to its programme of
quantitative easing purchases due to finish in December 2021 at a total of £895bn.
1.2 The MPC had previously not raised Bank Rate, as markets had expected, at its
November meeting. As the MPC wanted to have assurance that the labour market would
get over the end of the furlough scheme on 30th September without unemployment
increasing sharply; their decision was to wait until statistics were available to show how
the economy had fared at this time
1.3 In December, the low 0.1% m/m rise in GDP in October suggested that economic growth
had already slowed prior to the discovery of the Omicron variant in late November. In
addition, CPI inflation for November increased further from 4.2% to 5.1%, confirming
again how inflationary pressures had been building sharply. However, Omicron also
caused a sharp fall in world oil and other commodity prices; (gas and electricity inflation
has generally accounted on average for about 60% of the increase in inflation in
advanced western economies).
1.4 Based on the economic data from November, the MPC raised Bank Rate in December.
The hawkish tone of comments from the meeting indicated that the MPC is now
concerned that inflationary pressures are building and need concerted action by the
MPC to counter. This indicates that there will be more increases to come with financial
markets predicting 1% by the end of 2022. The 8-1 vote to raise the rate shows that
there is firm agreement that inflation now poses a threat. The MPC commented that
“there has been significant upside news” and that “there were some signs of greater
persistence in domestic costs and price pressures”.
1.5 In contrast, the MPC also commented that “the Omicron variant is likely to weigh on
near-term activity”. But it stressed that at the November meeting it had said it would
raise rates if the economy evolved as it expected and that now “these conditions had
been met”. It also appeared more worried about the possible boost to inflation from
Omicron itself. It said that “the current position of the global and UK economies was
materially different compared with prior to the onset of the pandemic, including elevated
levels of consumer price inflation”. It also noted the possibility that renewed social
distancing would boost demand for goods again, (as demand for services would fall),
meaning “global price pressures might persist for longer”.
1.6 These comments indicate that there has been a material reappraisal by the MPC of the
inflationary pressures since their last meeting and the Bank also increased its forecast
for inflation to peak at 6% next April, rather than at 5% as of a month ago. However, as
the Bank has retained its guidance that only a “modest tightening” in policy will be
required.

50

Page 166

1.7 The MPC’s forward guidance on its intended monetary policy on raising Bank Rate
versus selling (quantitative easing) holdings of bonds is as follows:




raising Bank Rate as “the active instrument in most circumstances”;
raising Bank Rate to 0.50% before starting on reducing its holdings;
once Bank Rate is at 0.50% it would stop reinvesting maturing gilts; and
once Bank Rate had risen to at least 1%, it would start selling its holdings.

The Global Ecomony
2.0 USA.
2.1 Shortages of goods have been fuelling increases in prices and reducing economic
growth potential. In November, CPI inflation hit a near 40-year record level of 6.8% but
with energy prices then falling sharply, this is possibly the peak.
2.2 Shortages of labour have also been driving up wage rates sharply; this poses a
considerable threat to feeding back into producer prices and then into consumer prices
inflation. It now also appears that there has been a sustained drop in the labour force
which suggests the pandemic has had a longer-term scarring effect in reducing potential
GDP. Economic growth may therefore be reduced to between 2 and 3% in 2022 and
2023 while core inflation is likely to remain elevated at around 3% in both years instead
of declining back to the Fed’s 2% central target.
2.3 Fed officials expect three rate rises in 2022 of 0.25% from near zero currently, followed
by three in 2023 and two in 2024, taking rates back above 2% to a neutral level for
monetary policy. The first increase could come as soon as March 2022 as the chairman
of the Fed stated his view that the economy had made rapid progress to achieving the
other goal of the Fed – “maximum employment”. The Fed forecast that inflation would
fall from an average of 5.3% in 2021 to 2.6% in 2023, still above its target of 2% and
both figures significantly up from previous forecasts.

3.0 EUROZONE
3.1 The slow role out of vaccines initially delayed economic recovery in early 2021 but the
vaccination rate then picked up sharply. However, the arrival of Omicron is now a major
headwind to growth in quarter 4 and the expected downturn into weak growth could well
turn negative, with the outlook for the first two months of 2022 expected to continue to
be very weak.
3.2 November’s inflation figures shows that the increase in price pressures is not just due
to high energy costs and global demand-supply imbalances for durable goods as
services inflation also rose. Headline inflation reached 4.9% in November, with over half
of that due to energy. However, oil and gas prices are expected to fall after the winter
and so energy inflation is expected to plummet in 2022.
3.3 The ECB will now also need to consider the impact of Omicron on the economy, and it
stated at its December meeting that it is prepared to provide further QE support if the
51
Page
167

pandemic causes bond yield spreads of peripheral countries, (compared to the yields of
northern EU countries), to rise. However, that is the only reason it will support peripheral
yields, so this support is limited in its scope.

4.0 CHINA
4.1 After a concerted effort following the virus outbreak in Q1 2020, economic recovery was
strong in the rest of 2020; this enabled China to recover all the initial contraction. During
2020, policy makers both quashed the virus and implemented a programme of monetary
and fiscal support that was particularly effective at stimulating short-term growth. At the
same time, China’s economy benefited from the shift towards online spending by
consumers in developed markets. These factors helped to explain its comparative
outperformance compared to western economies during 2020 and earlier in 2021.
4.2 However, the pace of economic growth has now fallen back in 2021 after this initial surge
of recovery from the pandemic and looks likely to be particularly weak in 2022. China
has been struggling to contain the spread of the Delta variant through using sharp local
lockdowns - which depress economic growth. Chinese consumers are also being very
wary about leaving home and so spending money on services. However, with Omicron
having now spread to China, and being much more easily transmissible, this strategy of
sharp local lockdowns to stop the virus may not prove so successful in future.
4.3 The People’s Bank of China made a start in December 2021 on cutting its key interest
rate marginally as an attempt to stimulate economic growth.
4.4 Supply shortages, especially of coal for power generation, were causing widespread
power cuts to industry during the second half of 2021 and so a sharp disruptive impact
on some sectors of the economy. In addition, recent regulatory actions motivated by a
political agenda to channel activities into officially approved directions, are also likely to
reduce the dynamism and long-term growth of the Chinese economy.

5.0 JAPAN
5.1 Recent business surveys indicate that the economy has been rebounding rapidly in
2021 once the bulk of the population had been double vaccinated and new virus cases
had plunged. However, Omicron could reverse this initial success in combating Covid.
5.2 The Bank of Japan is continuing its very loose monetary policy but with little prospect of
getting inflation back above 1% towards its target of 2%, any time soon: indeed, inflation
was actually negative in July. New Prime Minister Kishida, having won the November
general election, brought in a supplementary budget to boost growth, but it is unlikely to
have a major effect.

6.0 WORLD GROWTH
6.1 World growth was in recession in 2020 but recovered during 2021 until starting to lose
momentum in the second half of the year, though overall growth for the year is expected
52
Page 168

to be about 6% and to be around 4-5% in 2022. Inflation has been rising due to increases
in gas and electricity prices, shipping costs and supply shortages, although these should
subside during 2022.
6.2 Supply Shortages. The pandemic and extreme weather events, followed by a major
surge in demand after lockdowns ended, have been highly disruptive of extended
worldwide supply chains with further disruption expected. It is expected that these issues
will gradually be resolved, but will continue to contribute to a spike upwards in inflation
and shortages of materials and goods available to purchase in the short term.

7.0 INTEREST RATE FORECASTS
7.1 The interest rate forecasts provided by Link Group are predicated on an assumption that
there is no break-up of the Eurozone or EU within the forecasting period, despite the
major challenges that are looming up, and that there are no failures in international
relations, especially between the US and China / North Korea and Iran, which have a
major impact on international trade and world GDP growth.
7.2 It is not expected that Bank Rate will go up fast after the initial rate rise as the supply
potential of the economy is not likely to have taken a major hit during the pandemic: it
should, therefore, be able to cope well with meeting demand after supply shortages
subside over the next year, without causing inflation to remain elevated in the mediumterm, or to inhibit inflation from falling back towards the MPC’s 2% target after the spike
up to around 5%. The forecast includes five increases in Bank Rate over the three-year
forecast period to March 2025, ending at 1.25%. However, these forecasts may need to
be revised within a short time frame as a result of:





the economic recovery runs out of steam, resulting in stagflation;
continuation of supply shortages;
the spend in which consumers spend savings retained over the pandemic;
new Covid variants resulting in the possibility of further lockdowns; and
the UK evokes article 16 of the Brexit deal over dislocation in trading arrangements
with Northern Ireland.

7.3 In summary, with the high level of uncertainty prevailing on several fronts, interest rate
forecasts are expected to be revised again.
8.0 The balance of risks to the UK
The overall balance of risks to economic growth in the UK is now to the downside, including
residual risks from Covid and its variants - both domestically and their potential effects
worldwide.
8.1 Downside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates currently include:
 UK – Labour and supply shortages prove more disruptive and depress economic activity;
 The Government acts too quickly to cut expenditure to balance the national budget;

53
Page
169

 UK - Bank of England takes action too quickly, or too far, over the next three years to
raise Bank Rate and causes UK economic growth, and increases in inflation, to be weaker
than we currently anticipate;
 a resurgence of the Eurozone sovereign debt crisis;
 UK / EU trade arrangements – if there is a major impact on trasde flows and financial
sercies due to complications or lack of co-operation;
 weak capitalisation of some European banks, which could be undermined further
depending on extent of credit losses resultant of the pandemic;
 German general election in September 2021 – Germany faces months of uncertainly
while a new coalition government is formed;
 Other minority EU governments. Austria, Sweden, Spain, Portugal, Netherlands,
Ireland and Belgium also have vulnerable minority governments dependent on coalitions
which could prove fragile;
 Geopolitical risks, for example in China, Iran or North Korea, but also in Europe and
other Middle Eastern countries, which could lead to increasing safe haven flows; and
8.2 Upside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates include:
 The Bank of England is too slow in its pace and strength of increases in Bank Rate
and, therefore, allows inflationary pressures to build up too strongly within the UK
economy, which then necessitates a later rapid series of increases in Bank Rate faster
than we currently expect.

54
Page 170

SCHEDULE 4
NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2022/2023 – SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS

Investment

Security / Minimum Credit Rating

Term Deposits with the UK Government or with UK Local Authorities
(as per Local Government Act 2003) with maturities up to 1 year

High security as backed by UK
Government

Term Deposits with credit rated deposit takers (Banks and Building
Societies), including callable deposits with maturities less than 1 year
Certificate of Deposits issued by credit rated deposit takers (Banks
and Building Societies) up to 1 year

Forward deals with credit rated Banks and Building Societies less
than 1 year (i.e. negotiated deal plus period of deposit)
Term Deposits with Housing Associations less than 1 year

Circumstances of Use
In-house
In-house

Organisations assessed as having
“high credit quality”within the UK or
from Countries with a minimum
Sovereign rating of AA- for the
country in which the organisation is
domiciled

Fund Manager or In-house “buy and hold”
after consultation with Treasury
Management Advisor
In-house
In-house

Page 171

Money Market Funds i.e. collective investment scheme as defined in
SI2004 No 534
(These funds have no maturity date)

Funds must be AAA rated

In-house
After consultation with Treasury
Management Advisor
Limited to £20m

Gilts (with maturities of up to 1 year)

Government Backed

Fund Manager or In-house buy and hold
after consultation with Treasury
Management Advisor

Bonds issued by a financial institution that is guaranteed by the UK
Government (as defined in SI 2004 No 534) with maturities under 12
months
(Custodial arrangements required prior to purchase)

Government Backed

After consultation with Treasury
Management Advisor

55

SCHEDULE 4
NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2022/23 – NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS
Investment

Circumstances of
Use

Max % of total
investments

Term Deposit with credit rated deposit takers
(Banks & Building Societies), UK Government and
other Local Authorities with maturities greater than 1
year

Organisations assessed as
having “high credit quality” under
the Credit Worthiness Policy

In-house

100% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£40m)

£5m

5 years

Certificate of Deposit with credit rated deposit
takers (Banks & Building Societies) with maturities
greater than 1 year

Organisations assessed as
having “high credit quality” under
the Credit Worthiness Policy

Fund Manager
or
In-house “buy & hold”
after consultation with
Treasury Management
Advisor

100% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£40m)

£5m

5 years

Callable Deposits with credit rated deposit takers
(Banks & Building Societies) with maturities greater
than 1 year

Organisations assessed as
having “high credit quality” under
the Credit Worthiness Policy

In-house

50% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£20m)

£5m

5 years

Term Deposits with Housing Associations with
maturities greater than 1 year

Organisations assessed as
having “high credit quality” under
the Credit Worthiness Policy

In-house

25% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£10m)

£5m

5 years

Forward Deposits with a credit rated Bank or
Building Society > 1 year (i.e. negotiated deal period
plus period of deposit)

Organisations assessed as
having “high credit quality” under
the Credit Worthiness Policy

In-house

25% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£10m)

£5m

5 years

Page 172

Security / Minimum Credit
Rating

Custodial arrangements prior to purchase

56

Maximum
Max.
investment maturity
with any one period
counterparty

Investment

Security / Minimum Credit
Rating

Circumstances of
Use

Max % of total
investments

Bonds issued by a financial institution
that is guaranteed by the UK Government
(as defined in SI2004 No534) with maturities in
excess of 1 year

AA or Government backed

Fund Manager
or
In-house “buy & hold”
after consultation with
Treasury Management
Advisor

25% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£10m)

n/a

5 years

AA or Government backed

Fund Manager
or
In-house “buy & hold”
after consultation with
Treasury Management
Advisor

25% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£10m)

£5m

5 years

Government backed

Fund Manager

25% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£10m)

n/a

5 years

UK Sovereign Rating

In-house

25% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£10m)

n/a

5 years

Organisations assessed as
having “high credit quality”

In-house after
consultation with
Treasury Management
Advisor

100% of agreed
maximum
proportion of
Core Cash funds
(£40m)

£5m

10 years

Custodial arrangements required prior to purchase

Bonds issued by Multilateral development banks
(as defined in SI2004 No534) with maturities in
excess of 1 year
Custodial arrangements required prior to purchase

Page 173

UK Government Gilts with maturities in excess
of 1 year
Custodial arrangements required prior to purchase

Collateralised Deposit

Property Funds

57

Maximum
Max.
investment maturity
with any one period
counterparty

SCHEDULE 5
APPROVED LENDING LIST 2022/23
Maximum sum invested at any time (The overall total exposure figure covers both Specified and
Non-Specified investments)
Country

UK "Nationalised" banks / UK banks with UK Central
Government involvement
GBR
Royal Bank of Scotland PLC (RFB)
GBR
National Westminster Bank PLC (RFB)
UK "Clearing Banks", other UK based banks and
Building Societies
GBR
Santander UK PLC (includes Cater Allen)
GBR
Barclays Bank PLC (NRFB)
GBR
Barclays Bank UK PLC (RFB)
Bank of Scotland PLC (RFB)
Lloyds Bank PLC (RFB)
Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets PLC (NRFB)
HSBC Bank PLC (NRFB)
HSBC UK Bank PLC (RFB
Goldman Sachs International Bank
Sumitomo Mitsui
Standard Chartered Bank
Handlesbanken
Nationwide Building Society
Leeds Building Society
High Quality Foreign Banks
National Australia Bank
Commonwealth Bank of Australia
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group
Toronto-Dominion Bank
Credit Industriel et Commercial
Landesbank Hessen-Thueringen Girozentrale
(Helaba)
DBS (Singapore)
Local Authorities
County / Unitary / Metropolitan / District Councils
Police / Fire Authorities
National Park Authorities
Other Deposit Takers
Money Market Funds
Property Funds
UK Debt Management Account

GBR
GBR
GBR
GBR
GBR
GBR
GBR

Specified
Investments
(up to 1 year)

Non-Specified
Investments
(> 1 year £40m limit)

Total
Exposure
£m

Tim e
Lim it *

Total
Exposure
£m

Tim e
Lim it *

75.0

365 days

-

-

60.0

6 months

-

-

75.0

6 months

-

-

60.0

6 months

-

-

30.0

365 days

-

-

60.0
30.0

-

-

-

-

GBR
GBR
GBR

60.0
40.0
40.0

GBR

20.0

6 months
6 months
6 months
365 days
6 months
3 months

AUS
AUS
AUS
CAN
FRA
GER

30.0
30.0
30.0
30.0
30.0
30.0

365 days
365 days
365 days
365 days
365 days
6 months

-

-

-

-

SING

30.0

365 days

-

-

20.0
20.0
20.0

365 days
365 days
365 days

5.0
5.0
5.0

5 years
5 years
5 years

20.0
5.0
100.0

365 days
365 days
365 days

5.0
5.0
5.0

5 years
10 years
5 years

Based on data as 31 December 2021

58

Page 174

SCHEDULE 6
APPROVED COUNTRIES FOR INVESTMENTS
This list is based on those countries which have sovereign ratings of AA- or higher, (we show the lowest
rating from Fitch, Moody’s and S&P) and also, (except - at the time of writing - for Hong Kong, Norway and
Luxembourg), have banks operating in sterling markets which have credit ratings of green or above in the
Link Group credit worthiness service.

Sovereign
Rating
AAA

AA+

AA
AA-

Country
Australia
Denmark
Germany
Luxemburg
Netherlands
Norway
Singapore
Sweden
Switzerland
Canada
Finland
USA
Abu Dhabi (UAE)
France
Belgium
Hong Kong
Qatar
UK

59
Page
175

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 13
NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
INFORMAL REMOTE MEETING OF AUDIT COMMITTEE
21 MARCH 2022
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Report of the Corporate Director, Strategic Resources

1.0

PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1

To review the updated Local Code of Corporate Governance and to propose
the suggested amendments to the Code to the Chief Executive Officer for him
to recommend them onwards, under his emergency delegated decisionmaking powers, for approval.

2.0

BACKGROUND

2.1

The standard for local authority governance in the UK is set out in guidance called the
CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework 2016.
The Framework defines the principles that should underpin the governance of an
organisation and provides a structure to assist individual authorities with their approach
to governance. Local authorities should review existing governance arrangements
against these Principles, and develop and maintain an up-to-date Local Code of
Corporate Governance.

2.2

According to the Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee, its role in respect of
Corporate Governance is:
(i)

to assess the effectiveness of the authority’s Corporate Governance arrangements

(ii)

to review progress on the implementation of Corporate Governance arrangements
throughout the authority

(iii)

to approve the Annual Governance Statements for both the County Council and
the North Yorkshire Pension Fund

(iv)

to liaise, as necessary, with the Standards Committee on any matter(s) relating to
the Codes of Conduct for both Members and Officers

(v)

to review the arrangements in place for ensuring good governance in the County
Council’s key partnerships and owned companies.

Page 177
OFFICIAL

2.3

In relation to (i), (ii) and (v) above, an annual report is submitted as set out in the
Programme of Work, and item (iii) is considered as part of the report relating to the
Statement of Accounts. Issues are addressed by the respective Corporate Director
alongside a report on internal audit work relating to that Directorate which is produced by
the Head of Internal Audit.

2.4

Under his delegated decision making powers in the Officers’ Delegation Scheme in the
Council’s Constitution, the Chief Executive Officer has power, in cases of emergency, to
take any decision which could be taken by the Council, the Executive or a committee.

2.5

Following on from the expiry of the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings)
(England and Wales) Regulations 2020 (“the 2020 Regulations”), which allowed for
committee meetings to be held remotely, the County Council resolved at its meeting on 5
May 2021 (before the expiry of the Regulations) that, for the present time, in light of the
continuing Covid-19 pandemic circumstances, remote live-broadcast committee meetings
should continue as informal meetings of the committee Members, with any formal
decisions required being taken by the Chief Executive Officer under his emergency
decision making powers and after consultation with other Officers and Members as
appropriate and after taking into account any views of the relevant Committee Members
and all relevant information. This approach has been periodically reviewed since that
time and will be further reviewed by full Council at its May 2022 meeting.

3.0

LOCAL CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

3.1

The Local Code of Corporate Governance has been written to conform with the
CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework 2016.
The County Council carries out an annual review of changes to the Framework, and
updates their documentation including the Local Code when appropriate.
Framework Principles

3.2

The 2016 Principles that are reflected in the Local Code with links to the Annual
Governance Statement are as follows:
A.

Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and
respecting the rule of law;

B.

Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement;

C.

Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental
benefits;

D.

Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the
intended outcomes;

Page 178
OFFICIAL

E.

Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the
individuals within it;

F.

Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public
financial management;

G.

Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver
effective accountability.

To achieve good governance, each local authority should be able to demonstrate that its
governance structures conform with the core and sub-principles contained in this
Framework.
Changes and Updates to the Local Code
3.3

The Local Code of Corporate Governance for the County Council is a statement of the
principles that the County Council will apply in its corporate governance framework. It
also describes key components of that framework and how they will be monitored and
reviewed.

3.4

The Local Code is reviewed on an annual basis. This review ensures that key changes
to the corporate governance framework (whether driven by external forces such as
legislative changes or by internal factors) are reflected in the current Local Code.

3.5

This year’s review has resulted in minor changes and updates to the Local Code, for
example, links to other documents on the County Council’s website have been updated.
Other amendments are shown as tracked changes. This year one of the biggest tests for
the governance arrangements continues to be the effects of Coronavirus alongside the
Local Government Reorganisation in North Yorkshire. Arrangements have been shown
to stand up to the test of Coronavirus, with decision making arrangements continuing to
be robust.
The revised draft Code can be seen at Appendix A.

3.6

Subject to any comments Members may have at this informal meeting, the Local Code
will be referred to the Chief Executive Officer under his emergency delegated decision
making powers, for him to recommend it for formal approval by himself, under paragraph
4.1(m) of the Officers’ Delegation Scheme, in consultation with the Leader of the Council,
the Executive Member for Central Services, the Corporate Director Strategic Resources
and the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services).

4.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

4.1

That the updated Local Code of Corporate Governance (Appendix A) be
recommended to the Chief Executive Officer for him to recommend it, under his

Page 179
OFFICIAL

emergency delegated decision making powers, for formal approval by himself under
paragraph 4.1(m) of the Officers’ Delegation Scheme, in consultation with the Leader
of the Council, the Executive Member for Central Services, the Corporate Director
Strategic Resources and the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic
Services).

GARY FIELDING
Corporate Director, Strategic Resources, County Hall, Northallerton
March 2022
Report prepared by Fiona Sowerby, Head of Insurance and Risk Management

Page 180
OFFICIAL

Local Code of Corporate Governance - March 20220

Appendix A

North Yorkshire County Council
Local Code of Corporate Governance
March 20221
Contents

Section

Page

1.

Introduction

2

2.

Policy Statement on Corporate Governance

3

3.

The Seven Principles of Corporate Governance

3

4.

Corporate Governance Arrangements

4

5.

Monitoring, Reporting and Review

10

6.

Contact details and further information

12

Appendix

Diagrammatic representation

13

Page 181
OFFICIAL

Local Code of Corporate Governance - March 20220

Appendix A

1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 Corporate governance is the system by which a local authority directs and controls its functions
and relates to the community it serves. It is therefore a framework of policies, management
systems, procedures and structures that together, determine and control the way in which a local
authority manages its business, determines its strategies and objectives, and sets about delivering
its services to meet those objectives for the greater good of its community. This naturally extends
to how the organisation accounts to, engages with and, where appropriate, leads its community.
1.2 On this basis, the principles of good corporate governance require a local authority to undertake
its functions in a way that is completely open and inclusive of all sectors of the community,
demonstrates the utmost integrity in all its dealings, and is fully accountable to the public it serves.
1.3 North Yorkshire County Council is committed to demonstrating good corporate governance. This
Code which is based upon the CIPFA/SOLACE document entitled Delivering Good Governance
in Local Government: Framework 2016 sets out what the governance arrangements are, and who
is responsible for them within the County Council. It also explains how the arrangements will be
kept under review and monitored for compliance.
1.4 The Code also expresses how the County Council will seek to conduct its business in a way that
demonstrates –


Openness and Inclusivity – which is necessary to ensure that stakeholders can have
confidence in the decision-making and management processes of the County Council, and the
role of the Members and Officers therein. Being open through genuine consultation with
stakeholders and providing access to full, accurate and clear information leads to effective and
timely action and lends itself to necessary scrutiny. Openness also requires an inclusive
approach, which seeks to ensure that all stakeholders, and potential stakeholders, have the
opportunity to engage effectively with the decision-making processes and actions of the
County Council. It requires an outward looking perspective and a commitment to partnership
working, that encourages innovative approaches to consultation and to service provision



Integrity – is necessary for trust in decision making and actions. It is based upon honesty,
selflessness and objectivity, and high standards of propriety and probity in the stewardship of
public funds and the management of the County Council’s affairs. It is dependent on the
effectiveness of the internal control framework and on the personal standards and
professionalism of both Members and Officers. It is reflected in the County Council’s decisionmaking procedures, in its service delivery and in the quality of its financial and performance
reporting



Accountability - is the process whereby Members and Officers within the County Council are
responsible for their decisions and actions, including their stewardship of public funds and all
aspects of performance, and submit themselves to appropriate external scrutiny. It is achieved
by all parties having a clear understanding of those responsibilities, and having clearly defined
roles expressed through a robust and resilient structure.

Page 182
OFFICIAL

Local Code of Corporate Governance - March 20220

Appendix A

2.0 POLICY STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
2.1 The Policy of the County Council is to incorporate the principles of Corporate Governance into all
aspects of its business activities to ensure that stakeholders can have confidence in the decisionmaking and management processes of the authority, and in the conduct and professionalism of
its Members, Officers and agents in delivering services. To this end, the County Council will report
annually on its intentions, performance and financial position, as well as on the arrangements in
place to ensure good governance is always exercised and maintained.
2.2 The principles set out in this Policy will also apply to the North Yorkshire Pension Fund. Any
company in which the County Council has a substantive equity holding will also be expected to
comply with these principles.
3.0 THE SEVEN PRINCIPLES OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
3.1 There are seven core principles that should underpin governance arrangements within a local
authority. These are defined as follows –
A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting
the rule of law
B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement
C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits
D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended
outcomes
E. Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals
within it
F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial
management
G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective
accountability
3.2 This Code addresses these seven core principles and describes the systems and processes that
support these in the County Council. In addition the Code reflects how the County Council
addresses the requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in
Local Government (2015) and the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit
(2019).
3.3 The Code also explains how the County Council intends to monitor and review the corporate
governance arrangements defined in these Codes including conformance with both CIPFA
Statements.
3.4 A diagrammatic representation of how this Code fits into the management process of the County
Council is attached as Appendix A.

Page 183
OFFICIAL

Local Code of Corporate Governance - March 20220

Appendix A

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS

4.0

Core Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical
values, and respecting the rule of law
4.1 The County Council will conduct its activities in a manner which promotes high ethical standards
and good behaviour which will foster openness, support and mutual respect. The following
policies and protocols have been established and will be kept under review to assist the County
Council in maintaining this culture:–
 Members’ Code of Conduct (incorporating the general principles of public life)

























Officers’ Standards of Conduct Procedure
Local / National Teachers’ Code of Conduct
Protocol on Officer/Member relations and communications
Code of Conduct for Planning
Ethical Behaviour Statement
Council
Leader
Chief Executive
Protocol re the role of the Leader and Chief Executive Officer in the ethical framework
Ethical Standards & Decision Making Training for Officers and Members
Twice yearly Standards Bulletins, circulated to Members, Officers, certain other authorities
and published on the Council’s website
Member and Officer Registers of Interests
Member and Officer Registers of Gifts and Hospitality
ICT Code of Practice and Protocols on ICT use for Members and Officers
Whistleblowing Policy
Counter Fraud Strategy
Anti-Money Laundering Policy
Equality, and Diversity and Inclusion Policy Statement
Communication Strategy to support the Beyond 2020 Programme
Engagement Promise
Partnership Governance guidance
Information Governance Policy and Framework
Corporate Complaints Procedure
Guidance Note for Councillors and Officers on Outside Bodies
Modern Slavery Statement
Procurement Framework and Supply Chain Resilience Board to implement a managed
corporate approach with supply chains including financial assistance where appropriate.

4.2 In addition, the County Council will ensure that systems and processes for financial
administration, financial control and protection of the authority’s resources and assets are
designed in conformity with appropriate ethical standards and monitor their continuing
effectiveness in practice. This includes compliance with CIPFA’s Statement on the Role of the
Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (2015).

Page 184
OFFICIAL

Local Code of Corporate Governance - March 20220

Appendix A

4.3 The aim is to develop a set of shared values which will underpin an ethos of good governance.
This will be further supported by compliance with legislation, Procedure Rules and all relevant
professional standards.
4.4 The County Council has established a Standards Committee to discharge its responsibilities for
promoting and maintaining high standards of Member conduct. The Standards Committee
meets twice yearly and as required. It develops initiatives to promote high ethical standards, is
involved in ensuring the training of all Members on standards, and determines any complaints
that Members may have breached the Members’ Code of Conduct referred to it by the
Monitoring Officer. The Committee also has a role in assisting, where requested, in the
designation and handling of persistent and/or vexatious complaints/complainants.
4.5 Where the County Council works in partnership it will continue to uphold its own ethical
standards, as well as acting in accordance with the partnership’s shared values and
aspirations.
4.6 Where the Council has established owned/controlled companies it will put appropriate
governance arrangements in place including a governance framework and a register of
interests.
Core Principle B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement
4.7 The County Council will seek the views of its stakeholders and respond appropriately by:–
 clearly identifying its stakeholders, in order to ensure that relationships with these groups
continue to be effective
 maintaining effective channels of communication which reach all groups within the
community and other stakeholders as well as offering a range of consultation methods; to
this end the County Council has a Communications Strategy to support the Beyond 2020
ProgrammeLocal Government Reorganisation Programme and an Engagement Promise
that are regularly reviewed and updated
 publishing a Council Plan and an annual Statement of Final Accounts to inform stakeholders
and services users of the previous year’s achievements and outcomes
 publishing a Medium Term Financial Strategy and consulting each year on the Annual
Revenue Budget and its impact on Council Tax
 providing a variety of opportunities for the public to engage effectively with the County
Council including attending meetings, opportunity to ask questions at meetings, written
consultations, surveys, web chats with Leader and Chief Executive
 presenting itself in an open and accessible manner to ensure that County Council matters
are dealt with transparently, in so far as the need for confidentiality allows
 supporting these shared principles and the undertakings in the North Yorkshire Compact
which provides a framework for local authorities and other public bodies to work together
with the voluntary and community sector.
 and mMaintaining an online engagement community called North Yorkshire Views where
the public can have their say and share ideas about how the County Council operates.
 maintaining a Freedom of Information Act Publication Scheme and arrangements to respond
to requests for information from the public
 operating Access to Information Procedure Rules to ensure local people and stakeholders
can exercise their rights to express an opinion on decisions, and can understand what
decisions have been made and why
 ensuring the lawful and correct treatment of personal information through a Data Protection
policy framework that follows the principles set out in the Data Protection Act 2018 and the
General Data Protection Regulation 2018.

Page 185
OFFICIAL

Local Code of Corporate Governance - March 20220





Appendix A

maintaining a County Council website that provides access to information and services and
opportunities for public engagement.
conformance with the requirements of the Local Government Transparency Code
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Policy Statement

Core Principle C: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and
environmental benefits
4.8 The County Council will develop a clear vision and purpose, identify intended outcomes and
ensure that these are clearly communicated to all stakeholders of the organisation, both internal
and external. In doing so, the County Council will report regularly on its activities and
achievements, and its financial position and performance.
4.9 The County Council will publish: a Council Plan (updated annually)
 an annual Statement of Final Accounts together with the Annual Governance Statement
4.10 The County Council will keep its corporate strategies, objectives and priorities under constant
review, so as to ensure that they remain relevant to the needs and aspirations of the community.
4.11 In undertaking all its activities, the County Council will aim to deliver high quality services which
meet the needs of service users. Delivery may be made directly, via a subsidiary company, in
partnership with other organisations, or by a commissioning arrangement. Measurement of
service quality will also be a key feature of service delivery.
4.12 In addition, the County Council will continue to monitor the cost effectiveness and efficiency of
its service delivery, as well as
 ensure that timely, accurate and impartial financial advice and information is provided to
assist in decision making and to ensure that the County Council meets its policy and service
objectives and provides effective stewardship of public money in its use
 ensure that the County Council maintains a prudential financial framework; keeps its
commitments in balance with available resources; monitors income and expenditure levels
to ensure that this balance is maintained and takes corrective action when necessary
 ensure compliance with CIPFA’s Code on Prudential Framework for Local Authority Capital
Finance and CIPFA’s Treasury Management Code
4.13 The County Council will monitor and regularly report on performance through the Performance
Management Framework and system
4.14 The County Council has a Beyond Carbon Programme in place with a carbon reduction plan
agreed by Executive and a fund established to support internal initiatives.The County Council
is committed to aspire to being carbon neutral by 2030 and to developing a carbon reduction
plan in 2021//22
4.15 The County Council will also seek to address any concerns or failings in service delivery by
adhering to and promoting its Corporate Complaints Procedure.
Core Principle D: Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of
the intended outcome
4.15 The County Council will observe this Principle through a combination of the following: having a formal Constitution which details the decision making processes and the
procedures required to support the transparency and accountability of decisions made
 carrying out consultations to ensure a robust decision making process for service
improvement or termination or otherwise, in order to prioritise competing demands within
limited resources

Page 186
OFFICIAL

Local Code of Corporate Governance - March 20220









Appendix A

publishing a Council Plan which provides the key ambitions for the Council, key strategies,
high level outcomes and priorities for the next 4 years
publishing an annual Statement of Final Accounts including an Annual Governance
Statement to inform stakeholders and services users of the previous year’s achievements
and improvements for the following year
establishing a medium term business and financial planning process to deliver strategic
objectives which is reviewed regularly
maintaining an effective Performance Management Strategy and system
having a Staff Engagement Strategy
having a Communications Strategy to support the Local Government Reorganisation
Programme Beyond 2020 Programme

Core Principle E: Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership
and the individuals within it
4.16 The County Council is continually seeking to develop the capacity and capability of the Council
itself, and both its Members and Officers in recognition that the people who direct and control
the organisation must have the right skills. This is achieved through a commitment to training
and development, as well as recruiting senior officers with the appropriate balance of
knowledge and experience. The County Council aims to achieve this by: carrying out a regular LGA Peer Review
 maintaining Partnership Governance procedures and guidance, and carrying out regular
reviews of partnerships and their outcomes
 organising Member and employee induction programmes
 continuing with further organisational development under the Beyond 2020 Programme by
promoting the 3 core elements of engagement, innovation and leadership
 maintaining an effective Performance Management Strategy and system
 continuing to develop a Workforce Plan that addresses issues such as recruitment,
succession planning, flexible working and other people management issues including an
online recruitment and induction process, and online learning on leading and managing
remote teams
 carrying out regular appraisals which incorporate service improvement and personal
development plans
 providing career structures to encourage staff development
 regularly reviewing job descriptions and person specifications and using these as the basis
for recruitment
 encouraging a wide variety of individuals and organisations to participate in the work of the
County Council, including through a Volunteer Strategy
 ensuring regular review and improvement of “Health Assured” for employees which includes
health assessments, counselling, emotional support and fitness advice.
4.17 To ensure compliance with the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer the
County Council will: ensure the CFO has the skills, knowledge, experience and resources to perform effectively
in both the financial and non-financial areas of his role
 review the scope of the CFO’s other management responsibilities to ensure financial matters
are not compromised
 provide the finance function with the resources, expertise and systems necessary to perform
its role effectively
 embed financial competencies in person specifications and appraisals

Page 187
OFFICIAL

Local Code of Corporate Governance - March 20220



Appendix A

ensure that Members’ roles and responsibilities for monitoring financial performance / budget
management are clear, that they have adequate access to financial skills and are provided
with appropriate financial training on an ongoing basis to help them discharge their
responsibilities

4.18 To ensure conformance with the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit
the County Council will ensure the HoIA: objectively assesses the adequacy and effectiveness of governance and management of
risks, giving an evidence based opinion on all aspects of governance, risk management and
internal control.
 champions best practice in governance and commenting on responses to emerging risks
and proposed developments
 is a senior manager or equivalent with regular and open engagement across the
organisation, particularly with Management Board and with the Audit Committee
 leads and directs an internal audit service that is resourced appropriately, sufficiently and
effectively
 is professionally qualified and suitably experienced
Core Principle F: Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and
strong public financial management
4.19 The County Council observes this Principle through a combination of the following: a Risk Management Policy and Strategy have been in place for many years and are reviewed
and updated in line with current guidance and best practice on a regular basis
 there is a reporting and monitoring framework for communicating risks (eg Corporate Risk
Management Group / Directorate Risk Management Group / Mgt teams)
 decision making is supported through risk registers at Corporate, Directorate and Service
levels as well as one off major projects
 Risk Registers include consideration of objectives and contribute to service plans and
performance
 there is a Corporate Performance Management Strategy and system including greater use
of performance dashboards
 the Executive is supported at all times by professional advice that addresses all relevant
legal, financial, risk and resourcing issues. Risk management processes operate so as to
ensure that the risk and impact of decisions are fully assessed
 there are regular quarterly Performance / Financial reports to Executive & Scrutiny Board
 there is a year-end report on Performance / Financial out-turn to Executive & Scrutiny Board
 there is comprehensive recording of all decisions taken and the reasons for those decisions
 there is an effective scrutiny function and framework, supported by named officers, that
enables decisions by the Executive to be challenged or influenced by the rest of the County
Council’s Members
 there is compliance with the Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption
(CIPFA 2014) through a Counter Fraud Policy and Strategy including a Fraud Prosecution
Policy, and an Anti-Money Laundering Policy and Procedures. The Counter Fraud Strategy
is aligned with the national Fighting Fraud and Corruption Strategy.
 there is an Annual Governance Statement which is updated and forms part of the annual
Statement of Final Accounts
 the Audit Committee includes independent co-opted members
 there is an Information Governance policy framework which ensures compliance with data
protection and access to information legislation and best practice

Page 188
OFFICIAL

Local Code of Corporate Governance - March 20220













Appendix A

an Information Sharing Protocol has been agreed with all key partners and individual
agreements are in place where personal data is shared there is an Audit Charter with an
adequately resourced internal audit and counter fraud function
governance arrangements allow the CFO direct access to the Audit Committee and External
Auditor
by ensuring the provision of clear, well presented, timely, complete and accurate information
and reports to budget managers and senior officers on the budgetary and financial
performance of the County Council
by ensuring the County Council’s governance arrangements allow the CFO to bring influence
to bear on all material decisions
by ensuring that advice is provided on the levels of reserves and balances in line with good
practice guidance
the County Council’s arrangements for financial and internal control and for managing risk
are addressed in annual governance reports by Corporate Directors to the Audit Committee
the County Council puts in place effective internal financial controls covering codified
guidance, budgetary systems, supervision, management review and monitoring, physical
safeguards, segregation of duties, accounting procedures, information systems and
authorisation and approval processes
by ensuring ongoing compliance of Coronavirus secure property arrangements with any
future H& S compliance requirements

Core Principle G: Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to
deliver effective accountability
4.20 The County Council observes this Principle through a combination of the following: maintaining a County Council website that provides access to information and services and
opportunities for public engagement
 all meetings of the Council and its Committees are open to the public, broadcasted live and
recordings published on the internet (except where, for example, personal or confidential
matters are being discussed) and published on the website
 having a formal Constitution which details the decision making processes and the
procedures required to support the transparency and accountability of decisions made
 an Engagement Promise setting out in simple terms how everyone who lives or works in the
county, or uses the County Council’s services can influence decisions
 a properly constituted Standards Committee, an Audit Committee with a number of
independent co-opted members and an effective scrutiny function
 there is an Audit Charter with an adequately resourced internal audit function which conforms
to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and professional best practice (including the
CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit 2019)
 by maintaining an effective counter fraud policy framework and an adequately resourced
counter fraud function
 by ensuring that its governance arrangements allow the CFO direct access to the Audit
Committee and External Auditor
 by ensuring the provision of clear, well presented, timely, complete and accurate information
and reports to budget managers and senior officers on the budgetary and financial
performance of the authority
 by ensuring the County Council’s governance arrangements allow the CFO to bring influence
to bear on all material decisions
 ensure that advice is provided on the levels of reserves and balances in line with good
practice guidance

Page 189
OFFICIAL

Local Code of Corporate Governance - March 20220








Appendix A

by ensuring the County Council puts in place effective internal financial controls covering
codified guidance, budgetary systems, supervision, management review and monitoring,
physical safeguards, segregation of duties, accounting procedures, information systems and
authorisation and approval processes
ensuring the County Council’s arrangements for financial and internal control and for
managing risk are addressed in annual governance reports by Corporate Directors to the
Audit Committee
publishing an annual Statement of Final Accounts together with the Annual Governance
Statement which will show any significant improvements required.
completion of Equality Impact Assessments/Data Protection Impact Assessments and
Climate Impact Assessments for any proposed changes in policy or service delivery

Page 190
OFFICIAL

Local Code of Corporate Governance - March 20220

Appendix A

5.0 MONITORING, REPORTING AND REVIEW
5.1 Ensuring good corporate governance is the responsibility of the whole Council. However to
formalise the process, the County Council has two Committees that are primarily responsible for
monitoring and reviewing the adequacy of the corporate governance arrangements referred to in
this Local Code –


the Audit Committee



the Standards Committee

The two Committees liaise on any issue of Corporate Governance that may be of legitimate
common concern to both.
5.2 The Audit Committee is independent of both the Executive and Scrutiny, and has wide ranging
responsibilities in relation to audit, information governance, counter fraud, risk management,
treasury management, financial and performance reporting, as well as overall corporate
governance and ethics. The Committee’s terms of reference are set out in the Constitution and
its principal objectives are to ensure that the County Council manages its risks appropriately and
maintains an adequate and effective system of internal control. The Committee meets up to five
times a year and includes up to three co-opted external Members.
5.3 The Standards Committee currently meets twice yearly and as required to promote and maintain
high standards of conduct by Councillors and co-opted Members of the Council. The Committee
provides advice and support to the Council and its members on the Council’s Members’ Code of
Conduct and related ethical issues such as membership of outside bodies and Member/officer
relations. Additionally, Standards Committee Members participate in training sessions and the
Committee determines any complaints that Members may have breached the Members’ Code of
Conduct referred to it by the Monitoring Officer. The Committee also has a role in assisting, where
requested, in the designation and handling of persistent and/or vexatious
complaints/complainants. The Committee is attended by independent persons, as well as County
Council Members.
5.4 Further to the two Committees referred to above, the County Council has also established:


a Corporate Governance Officer Group of senior officers, chaired by the Corporate Director
– Strategic Resources, which is responsible for overseeing the delivery of an integrated
programme of work to support the development of robust corporate governance
arrangements, and to keep implementation of such arrangements under on-going review. In
particular, this Group monitors the Self-Assessment Checklist that maps, and monitors, all
governance activity within the County Council against all published Best Practice Guidelines



a Corporate Information Governance Group, also chaired by the Corporate Director –
Strategic Resources. This Group addresses the various challenges of Information
Governance including the development and maintenance of a Framework for Information
Governance which comprises a suite of relevant policies, protocols and guidance notes

5.5 The County Council is required to undertake an annual review of the effectiveness of its system
of internal control (as required by Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations (2015).
This review seeks to –


identify principal risks to the achievement of County Council objectives



identify and evaluate key controls to manage principal risks

Page 191
OFFICIAL

Local Code of Corporate Governance - March 20220



obtain assurances of the effectiveness of key controls



evaluate assurances and identify gaps in control/assurances

Appendix A

This review is overseen by the Audit Committee and is part of the preparatory process for the
Annual Governance Statement (see paragraph 5.8 below). The Audit Committee receives
assurance from various sources regarding the adequacy of the internal control environment and
overall corporate governance arrangements, including from the Head of Internal Audit.
5.6 Additionally, compliance with the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in
Local Government is reviewed annually by the Audit Committee.
5.7 Finally, annual reports are produced and published by:



the Audit Committee Chair
the Standards Committee Chair

The Annual Governance Statement
5.8 Following the annual review of effectiveness of the system of internal control an Annual
Governance Statement (AGS) will be published to accompany the Statement of Final Accounts
for the County Council. The AGS will provide an overall assessment of the corporate governance
arrangements in the County Council.
5.9 To reflect the County Council’s commitment to the continuous improvement of its system of
internal control, progress to address weaknesses is drawn up in response to any significant
control weaknesses identified in the AGS. A follow up process is then overseen by the Corporate
Governance Officer Group to ensure continuous improvement of the system of corporate
governance. The Audit Committee monitors progress to address weaknesses every six months.
Review of this Code
5.10 A review of this Code will be undertaken annually alongside the preparation of the AGS.

Page 192
OFFICIAL

Local Code of Corporate Governance - March 20220

Appendix A

6.0 CONTACT DETAILS AND FURTHER INFORMATION
6.1 Further details of the County Council’s Corporate Governance arrangements can be obtained on
the County Council’s website www.northyorks.gov.uk or by contacting the Corporate Director –
Strategic Resources (see below).
6.2 Finally, if you have any concerns about the way in which the County Council, its Members, Officers
or agents conduct its business, or believe that elements of this Code are not being complied with,
please contact one of the following Officers as appropriate. Your enquiry will be treated
confidentially, and a response made following investigation of the facts in each case.
(i) Chief Executive (Head of Paid Service)
Richard Flinton
North Yorkshire County Council
County Hall
Northallerton
North Yorkshire DL7 8AL
Tel: 01609 532444 E-mail: richard.flinton@northyorks.gov.uk
(ii) Corporate Director – Strategic Resources (Section 151 Officer)
Gary Fielding
Corporate Director – Strategic Resources
North Yorkshire County Council
County Hall
Northallerton
North Yorkshire DL7 8AL
Tel 01609 533304 E-mail gary.fielding@northyorks.gov.uk
(iii) Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services)
(Monitoring Officer)
Barry Khan
Legal and Democratic Services
North Yorkshire County Council
County Hall
Northallerton DL7 8AL
Tel 01609 532173 E-mail barry.khan@northyorks.gov.uk

Page 193
OFFICIAL

ANNUAL
GOVERNANCE
STATEMENT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principle A.
Behaving with integrity,
demonstrating strong
commitment to ethical
values, and respecting
the rule of law
















Principle B
Ensuring openness and
comprehensive stakeholder
engagement




















B.1.1 Demonstrating our
commitment to
openness
B.1.2 & B.1.3 Making
open decisions with
clear reasoning and
evidence.
B.1.4 Using consultation
to determine effective
courses of action
B.2.1 Engaging
effectively with
institutional
stakeholders
B.2.2 & B.2.3
Developing partnerships
built on trust and shared
values to allow efficient
use of resources
B.3.1 Establishing a
clear policy on the type
of issues that we will
consult upon
B.3.2 Ensuring effective
communication and
clarity on the role of
members and officers
with regard to
community engagement
B.3.3 Ensuring
consideration is given to
the views of those from
different backgrounds
and to future needs
B.3.4 Implementing
effective feedback
mechanisms
B.3.5 Balancing
feedback from more
active stakeholder
groups with that of
others
B.3.6 Taking account of
the interests of future
generations, tax payers
& service users

Principle C
Defining outcomes
in terms of
sustainable
economic, social,
and environmental
benefits















C.1.1 Having a
clear vision
C.1.2 Specifying
intended
impacts and
changes
C.1.3 Delivering
outcomes
sustainably
within available
resources
C.1.4 Identifying
and managing
risks to the
achievement of
outcomes
C.1.5 Managing
service user
expectations
C.2.1 & C.2.3
Considering the
economic,
social and
environmental
impact of
service
provision and
the associated
wider public
interest
C.2.2 Taking a
longer term
view with regard
to decision
making
C.2.4 Ensuring
fair access to
services

Principle D
Determining the interventions
necessary to optimise the
achievement of the intended
outcomes

















D.1.1 Ensuring decision
makers consider full options
appraisals
D.1.2 Considering feedback
in decision making on service
improvement or removal
D.2.1 Working to robust
planning and control cycles
D.2.2 Engaging with all
stakeholders on service
planning and delivery
D.2.3 Considering and
monitoring risk in
partnerships
D.2.4 Ensuring flexible &
agile arrangements are in
place
D.2.5 Establishing key
performance indicators for
service performance
measurement.
D.2.6 Ensuring sufficient
capacity to review service
quality
D.2.7 & D.2.8 Preparing
budgets in accordance with
plans, strategies and realistic
expenditure estimates.
D.3.1 & D.3.3 Ensuring the
MTFS balances priorities with
affordability and sets the
context for on-going decision
making
D.3.2 Ensuring budgets take
into account the medium and
long term cost of operations
D.3.4 Ensuring the
achievement of social value

OFFICIAL

Standards
Committee

Ongoing
Monitoring and
Annual Review

Audit
Committee

Corporate Governance
Officer Group
Principle E
Developing the entity’s
capacity, including the
capability of its leadership
& the individuals within it















E.1.1 & E.1.2
Regularly reviewing &
benchmarking
operations,
performance and use
of assets
E.1.3 Recognising the
benefits of
partnerships and
collaborative working
E.1.4 Maintaining an
effective workforce
plan
E.2.1 Ensuring elected
& appointed leaders
talk with each other
E.2.2 Specifying
delegable and non
delegable decisions
E.2.3 Clearly defining
Leader and CEO roles
E.2.4 Developing the
capabilities of
members and officers
E.2.5 Encouraging
public participation
E.2.6 Considering
leadership
effectiveness
E.2.7 Reviewing staff
performance
E.2.8 Maintaining
workforce health and
wellbeing

Principle F
Managing risks and performance
through robust internal control and
strong public financial
management














F.1.1, F.1.2 & F.1.3
Recognising risk management
as an integral part of activities
and implementing
arrangements, ensuring
responsibilities are understood
F.2.1, F.2.4 & F.2.5 Monitoring
& reporting on all aspects of
service delivery including post
implementation reviews
F.2.2 Making decisions based
on objective analysis & clear
understanding of the risks
F.2.3 & F.3.5 Operating an
effective overview and
scrutiny function and audit
committee
F.3.1 & F.3.2 Evaluating risk
management & internal
control and ensuring
alignment with objectives
F.3.3 Ensuring effective
counter fraud & anti-corruption
arrangements
F.3.4 Obtaining Internal audit
assurance on governance
F.4.1, F.4.2 & F.4.3 Ensuring
robust data governance
arrangements are in place
F.5.1 & F.5.2 Ensuring strong
financial management
arrangements are in place

Principle G
Implementing good practices
in transparency, reporting,
and audit to deliver effective
accountability













G.1.1 & G.1.2
Communicating with
stakeholders in an
understandable and
transparent way
G.2.1 & G.2.2 Reporting
on performance & value
for money and ensuring
members and senior
managers own the results
G.2.3 Publishing an
Annual Governance
Statement
G.2.4, G.3.4 & G.3.5
Ensure audit and
governance are applied to
partnerships, shared
services and those
provided by third parties
G.2.5 Preparing
consistent performance
information to accompany
financial statements
G.3.1 & G.3.2 Ensuring
effective internal and
external audit
G.3.3 Welcoming peer
challenge & inspection

APPENDIX A



Page 194



A.1.1 Acting in the
public interest and
protecting our
reputation
A.1.2 Establishing
and communicating
our values
A.1.3 Leading by
example and using
our values as a
framework for
decision making
A.1.4 & A.2.3
Embedding values
and ethical standards
in our policies
A.2.1 & A.2.2 Ethical
standards and
performance are
maintained and
permeate our culture
and operation
A.2.4 Ensuring
external providers of
our services act
ethically and with
integrity
A.3.1 Demonstrating
a strong commitment
to the rule of law
A.3.2 Ensuring
statutory officers and
members are able to
fulfil their legislative
and regulatory
responsibilities
A.3.3 Optimizing the
full use of powers for
the benefit of citizens
and communities
A.3.4 & A.3.5 Dealing
effectively with
breaches of legal and
regulatory provision,
corruption and misuse
of power

LOCAL CODE OF
CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Agenda Item 14
NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
AUDIT COMMITTEE
21 MARCH 2022
INFORMATION GOVERNANCE ANNUAL REPORT
Report of the Corporate Director – Strategic Resources

1.0

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To provide an update on Information Governance matters, developments in the
County Council’s Information Governance arrangements, details of related
performance and compliance with relevant legislation.

2.0

BACKGROUND

2.1

Information governance is the framework established for managing, recording,
protecting, using and sharing information assets in order to support the efficient and
effective delivery of services. The framework includes management structures,
policies and processes, technical measures and action plans. It helps to ensure
information is handled securely and correctly, and provides assurance to the public,
partners and other stakeholders that the County Council is complying with all
statutory, regulatory and best practice requirements. Information is a key asset for
the County Council along with money, property and human resources, and must
therefore be protected accordingly. Information governance is however the
responsibility of all employees.

2.2

The County Council must comply with relevant legislation, including:
The Data Protection Act 2018 (DPA 2018)
The UK General Data Protection Regulation (UK-GDPR)
Freedom of Information Act 2000
Environmental Information Regulations 2004
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000

2.3

2.4

In respect of Information Governance, the Audit Committee is responsible for:


reviewing all corporate policies and procedures in relation to Information
Governance



overseeing the implementation of Information Governance policies and
procedures throughout the County Council

Information governance has been identified as a high risk area on the corporate risk
register. This is in part due to the consequences should the County Council suffer a
serious data breach. As well as regulatory action, including the possibility of
financial penalties, the County Council could also suffer significant reputational
damage in such an event.

Page 195

3.0

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

3.1

The County Council’s information governance framework includes a number of
specific roles, as follows:
Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO)
The Corporate Director - Strategic Resources has been designated as the Senior
Information Risk Owner (SIRO) with specific responsibility for ensuring risks relating
to information governance are managed effectively. The SIRO reports on the
County Council’s management of information risks to Management Board and the
Audit Committee.
Corporate Information Governance Group (CIGG)
The Corporate Information Governance Group (CIGG) exists to support the SIRO in
the discharge of those responsibilities. CIGG provides overall direction and
guidance on all information governance matters. CIGG meets every two months
and reviews and updates the information governance strategy and policy
framework, monitors information risks and emerging issues, develops and
coordinates action plans and oversees related activities.
Data Protection Officer (DPO) – Veritau
All public authorities are required to appoint a Data Protection Officer (DPO). The
DPO monitors and reports on compliance, and provides independent advice on
data protection matters. The DPO also advises on Data Protection Impact
Assessments and acts as the first point of contact for the Information
Commissioner’s Office (ICO) and data subjects. Veritau is the County Council’s
Data Protection Officer
Data Governance Team
The Data Governance team works with service areas to embed information
governance policies and best practice. This includes providing support with the
preparation and maintenance of information asset registers, Data Protection Impact
Assessments and information sharing agreements. The team supports services to
mitigate the risk of data breaches. The team also delivers classroom based training
to service teams and updates the mandatory data protection e-learning courses.
Veritau Information Governance Team
The Information Governance team within Veritau manage all Freedom of
Information and Subject Access requests received by the County Council. The
team coordinates responses, provides advice to services on the use of exemptions
and responds to complaints. The team chairs the Multi Agency Information Sharing
Protocol group and investigates all serious data breaches. The team also works
with the Data Governance team to ensure the policy framework is kept up to date,
raise awareness of data protection obligations, and respond to any emerging
issues.

Page 196

4.0

POLICY FRAMEWORK / COMPLIANCE WITH UK-GDPR / DPA 2018

4.1

The information governance policy framework continues to be reviewed and
updated to comply with UK-GDPR and the DPA 2018, and to reflect the latest best
practice guidance issued by the ICO.

4.2

The Information Governance and Management Strategy has been updated. The
current priorities include continuing to raise awareness of information governance
responsibilities and good practice across the County Council, embedding
procedures to better understand and manage information assets and risks, and the
utilisation of new technologies and innovations to improve security and service
delivery. The Strategy also aims to develop policies and processes to support
improved information and records management across the County Council.

4.3

Key actions completed in the year and other developments have included:


the implementation of a new information security incident categorisation
process



the identification and review of service areas carrying out law enforcement
processing covered by Part 3 of the Data Protection Act 2018. Work is
ongoing to update relevant documentation including privacy notices with the
initial focus being on Trading Standards



providing specialist workshops on Data Protection Impact Assessments
utilising the new template and guidance as well as law enforcement
processing



producing guidance for information asset owners



completing a data protection compliance review in Technology and Change



reviewing and updating privacy notices as required



reviewing supplies and services to identify any remaining contracts or
processing activity involving personal information. Any new agreements will be
checked to ensure that they reference the UK-GDPR.

5.0

DATA BREACHES

5.1

Employees are required to report all information security incidents (data breaches)
to Veritau, including any near misses. The incidents are assessed, given a risk
rating and then investigated.

5.2

Low or very low risk incidents are unlikely to result in harm but indicate a breach of
procedure or policy; moderate incidents represent actual disclosure, but harm is
unlikely to be serious; and high or very high incidents are sufficiently serious to
require self-reporting to the ICO and potentially the data subjects. White incidents
are where there has been a failure of security safeguards but no breach of
confidentiality, integrity, or availability has actually taken place (i.e. the incident was
a near miss).

5.3

The number of reported data security incidents in the period 1 April 2020 to 31
December 2021 is as follows:

Page 197

2021 / 22
Quarter

5.4

High

Moderate

Low

Q1

Very
high
4

White

Total

29

Very
low
23

0

10

14

80

Q2

2

1

13

27

29

18

90

Q3

2

0

16

36

17

30

101

The risk assessment methodology has been changed but the equivalent number of
data security incidents reported in 2020/21 was as follows:
2020 / 21

5.5

Quarter

Red

Amber

Green

White

Total

Q1

0

29

14

12

55

Q2

2

24

27

21

74

Q3

4

21

39

9

73

Q4

2

6

30

7

45

9 data breaches have been reported to the ICO in 2021/22 to date, as follows:
Type of breach

ICO Action

s170 unauthorised access

No further action

s170 unauthorised access

No further action

Incorrect document recipients

No further action

Unauthorised disclosure

No further action

s170 unauthorised access

No further action

Loss of records

No further action

s170 unauthorised access

No further action

s170 unauthorised access

No further action

Incorrect document recipients

ICO still investigating

Page 198

6.0

LOCAL GOVERNMENT REORGANISATION (LGR)

6.1

Work is ongoing to ensure the new council will be compliant with the Data
Protection Act 2018 / UK-GDPR from 1 April 2023. This work includes reviewing
the existing policies and processes for each of the North Yorkshire councils, and
adopting a standard framework. Support is also being provided to the LGR
programme to ensure data protection risks are identified and managed as services
and systems are brought together. Data protection impact assessments are
therefore being completed for each work stream and individual transformation
project as required.

6.2

A data sharing agreement has been established between the councils of North
Yorkshire. The Multi-Agency Information Sharing Protocol (MAISP) group is also
coordinating the review and update of other relevant information sharing
agreements between the new council and external partners.

7.0

CYBER SECURITY

7.1

The impact of a significant cyber attack against the council as well as making
systems unavailable could result in a significant data breach. The threat to local
authorities continues as has been demonstrated previously and more recently with
one council attacked for a second time. All these incidents have led to the loss of
services to residents and potential data losses. It has been reported that the cost of
recovery for one of these councils has been in excess of £10 million.

7.2

To mitigate this risk, the Technology and Change Service has invested in and
continues to maintain several technical measures to minimise the likelihood of an
attack and to reduce the impact if one occurs.

7.3

We proactively monitor for cyber threats through the use of security software and
acting on intelligence received from trusted partner organisations e.g. National
Cyber Security Centre (NCSC), Yorkshire & Humber Warning, Advice & Reporting
Point (YHWARP) and Regional Organised Crime Unit (YHROCU). This monitoring
has proved effective with the Information Security Team successfully identifying and
blocking threat activity from various international locations.

7.4

As these measures cannot guarantee that the council will not fall victim to a cyber
incident, our employees have an important role to play as the last line of defence.
The Technology and Change Service therefore provides regular advice and
guidance to them through training, intranet updates and key messages.

7.5

A revised set of training has been released to update employees on how to work
securely. Regular simulations will also be carried out to improve their ability to
identify phishing emails and to understand what actions they should take if they
receive one.

7.6

The Technology & Change Service has continued to maintain its ISO 27001
certification, which is an internationally recognised framework for Information
Security ensuring that the Confidentiality, Integrity and Availability of data is
maintained. The Service has also achieved ISO/IEC 20000 certification which
relates to best practice for IT service management (ITSM). This helps organisations

Page 199

to evaluate how effectively they deliver managed services, measure service levels
and assess their performance.
8.0

OFFICE 365 IMPLEMENTATION

8.1

As part of the Office 365 implementation the ability to classify documents (email,
word, excel) under the agreed protective marking scheme (Official, Official
Sensitive) has been improved to make it easier for the end user and where possible
automate the classification based on the content of the document.

8.2

Within Office 365 the ability to categorise documents allows us to put in place
retention policies which support one of the UK-GDPR requirements of storing data
for no longer than is necessary for the purposes for which it was processed. Work is
ongoing in this area with the Data Governance team working with service areas to
identify retention periods.

8.3

As we migrate emails and outlook into the Office 365 environment, other
functionality within Office 365 will be rolled out to further improve our ability to
manage information securely and effectively.

9.0

COVID-19 PANDEMIC

9.1

Privacy notices and data protection impact assessments have continued to be
completed or amended as required in relation to the Covid-19 pandemic.

9.2

Work has been ongoing in relation to the Shielded Patient List/Clinically Extremely
Vulnerable (CEV) data to ensure that data is being disposed of in line with
legislation.

10.0

RECOMMENDATION

10.1

Members are asked to note the County Council’s information governance
arrangements and activities during the year.

Report prepared by Max Thomas, Head of Internal Audit and Jon Learoyd, Head of
Technology Solutions
GARY FIELDING
Corporate Director – Strategic Resources
County Hall
Northallerton
17 February 2022
Background Documents: Relevant reports considered by the Corporate Information
Governance Group

Page 200

Agenda Item 15a
NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
AUDIT COMMITTEE
21 MARCH 2022
INTERNAL AUDIT WORK FOR THE CENTRAL SERVICES DIRECTORATE
Report of the Head of Internal Audit

1.0

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To inform Members of the internal audit work performed for the period 1 June 2021
to 31 January 2022 for the Central Services (CS) directorate.

2.0

BACKGROUND

2.1

The Audit Committee is required to assess the quality and effectiveness of the
corporate governance arrangements operating within the County Council. In
relation to the Central Services directorate, the Committee receives assurance
through the work of internal audit (as provided by Veritau), as well as receiving a
copy of the latest directorate risk register.

2.2

This agenda item is considered in two parts. This first report considers the work
carried out by Veritau and is presented by the Head of Internal Audit. The second
part is presented by the Corporate Director and considers the risks relevant to the
directorate and the actions being taken to manage those risks.

3.0

WORK DONE FOR THE PERIOD TO 31 JANUARY 2022

3.1

Details of the final reports issued during the period for the directorate and the
outcomes of these audits are provided in Appendix 1. The Covid-19 pandemic
has continued to cause some delays in audit work. A number of other audits are
therefore currently at draft report stage or fieldwork is still progressing. No
significant issues have been identified in the work completed to date.

3.2

Veritau has also been involved in carrying out a number of other assignments for
the directorate. This work has included;


Attendance at various project groups and providing advice and support to a
variety of specific project leads (particularly relating to Local Government
Reorganisation)



Providing advice and support as a result of specific control issues



Undertaking financial assessments on behalf of Central Services to support
the Council’s procurement process



Meeting regularly with Central Services management and maintaining
ongoing awareness and understanding of key risk areas

Page 201

3.3

As with previous audit reports, an overall opinion has been given for each of the
specific systems or areas under review. The opinion given has been based on an
assessment of the risks associated with any weaknesses in control identified.
Where weaknesses are identified then remedial actions will be agreed with
management. Each agreed action has been given a priority ranking. The
opinions and priority rankings used by Veritau are detailed in Appendix 2.
Where the scope of the audit work is limited or the audit focused on value for
money or the review of specific risks as requested by management then no audit
opinion will be given. The work completed for the directorate and the opinions
given following each audit contribute to the annual report and opinion of the Head
of Internal Audit.

3.4

It is important that agreed actions are formally followed up to ensure that they
have been implemented. Veritau follow up all agreed actions on a regular basis,
taking account of the timescales previously agreed with management for
implementation. On the basis of the follow up work undertaken during the
period, the Head of Internal Audit is satisfied with the progress that has
been made by management to implement previously agreed actions
necessary to address identified control weaknesses.

3.5

The programme of audit work is risk based. Areas that are assessed as well
controlled or low risk are reviewed less often with audit work instead focused on
the areas of highest risk. Veritau’s auditors work closely with directorate senior
managers to address any areas of concern.

4.0

RECOMMENDATION

4.1

That Members note the results of internal audit work performed in the period for the
Central Services directorate.

MAX THOMAS
Head of Internal Audit
Veritau
County Hall
Northallerton
18 February 2022

Page 202

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Relevant audit reports kept by Veritau.
Report prepared by Ian Morton, Assistant Director – Audit Assurance, Veritau and
presented by Max Thomas, Head of Internal Audit, Veritau

Page 203

Appendix 1

FINAL AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED IN THE PERIOD TO 31 JANUARY 2022

A

System/Area

Audit
Opinion

Areas Reviewed

Date
Issued

Comments

Action Taken

Creditors (20/21)

Substantial
Assurance

The audit reviewed the
controls in place for
processing invoices
while staff are working
from home, and for
setting up and
amending supplier
records in Oracle.

September
2021

It was found that the
invoices tested were
processed in accordance
with policy and procedure.
The processes were
appropriately adapted for
home working.

N/A

Page 204

All invoices over £30k had
been authorised
appropriately.
There was an appropriate
process in place for setting
up new supplier details
through the use of a
‘Supplier set up form’. All
new accounts tested were
found to have been set up
correctly. Similarly all
changes to supplier details
that were tested had been
processed correctly.

B

Main Accounting
System (21/22)

Substantial
Assurance

The audit reviewed the
controls relating to
user access to Oracle,
and the operation of
feeder systems and the
accuracy of

December
2021

The audit found that access
to Oracle was controlled
effectively, and
management checks are in
place.

N/A

System/Area

Audit
Opinion

Areas Reviewed
information. The use of
journals, suspense
accounts and bank
reconciliations was also
reviewed.

Date
Issued

Comments
For the three feeder
systems tested, information
was accurate and
appropriate tests and
reconciliations were in
place.
The journals tested were
processed correctly, and
reviewed through budget
monitoring and formal
quarterly reporting.

Page 205

Transactions posted to
suspense accounts were
reviewed and cleared
promptly in line with
procedures. Exchequer
Services maintain and
update a list on a monthly
basis of the status of their
holding and suspense
accounts.

Action Taken

Appendix 2
Audit Opinions and Priorities for Actions
Audit Opinions
Our work is based on using a variety of audit techniques to test the operation of systems. This may include sampling and
data analysis of wider populations. It cannot guarantee the elimination of fraud or error. Our opinion relates only to the
objectives set out in the audit scope and is based on risks related to those objectives that we identify at the time of the
audit.

Page 206

Opinion

Assessment of internal control

Substantial
Assurance

A sound system of governance, risk management and control exists, with internal controls operating
effectively and being consistently applied to support the achievement of objectives in the area
audited.

Reasonable
Assurance

There is a generally sound system of governance, risk management and control in place. Some
issues, non-compliance or scope for improvement were identified which may put at risk the
achievement of objectives in the area audited.

Limited Assurance

Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified. Improvement is required to the
system of governance, risk management and control to effectively manage risks to the achievement
of objectives in the area audited.

No Assurance

Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance identified.
The system of governance, risk management and control is inadequate to effectively manage risks to
the achievement of objectives in the area audited.

Priorities for Actions
Priority 1

A fundamental system weakness, which presents unacceptable risk to the system objectives and
requires urgent attention by management

Priority 2

A significant system weakness, whose impact or frequency presents risks to the system objectives,
which needs to be addressed by management.

Priority 3

The system objectives are not exposed to significant risk, but the issue merits attention by
management.

Agenda Item 15b
North Yorkshire County Council
Audit Committee
21 March 2022
Internal Control Matters for the Central Services Directorate
Report of the Corporate Director – Strategic Resources
1.0

Purpose of the report

1.1

To provide an update to Members of issues and progress against governance related
areas identified within Central Services (CS) Directorate.

1.2

To provide details of the latest Risk Register for the CS Directorate.

2.0

Background

2.1

The Audit Committee is required to assess the quality and effectiveness of the
corporate governance arrangements operating within the County Council. In relation
to the CS Directorate, the Committee receives assurance through the work of internal
audit (detailed in a separate report to the Committee), details of the areas of
improvement in the Annual Governance Statement (AGS), together with the
Directorate Risk Register.

3.0

Directorate update

3.1

Covid-19

3.1.1

Covid-19 continues to have a significant impact on all walks of life, this update covers
the involvement of the Directorate only at a high level. Naturally, there is a lot of
activity beyond this frame which cannot be covered through this report.

3.1.2

A key issue throughout the pandemic has been the access vulnerable people have to
basic necessities, particularly those who have to self-isolate following a positive test
or when requested to do so by NHS Test and Trace, but also those who are clinically
vulnerable and were advised to self-isolate (“shielding”) prior to April 2021. The
Stronger Communities team has continued to support the 23 Community Support
Organisations it rapidly commissioned at the start of the pandemic to coordinate
community led activity in localities. The CSOs have worked with mutual aid groups,
volunteers and district councils for essentials such as shopping, prescription delivery;
pet walking and befriending services amongst others. The Local Assistance Fund
was also extended to better facilitate support for people on low income who are selfisolating. The collaborative approach has been well received and has been
extremely effective. More recently the CSOs have been supporting some people
who received a lot of support during lockdowns and self-isolation to become more
independent. The Stronger Communities team is now working with those CSOs who
are interested in developing a longer term role in supporting their communities more
broadly.

3.1.3

The Customer Service Centre and the Communications team have continued to play
a key role in keeping members of the public informed throughout the period. This
includes updates on how to access NYCC services, e.g. schools, transport, HWRCs,
etc as well as general public information. The Council uses a variety of channels, e.g.
telephone, website, social media, press conferences with local newspapers and
radio, to ensure messages are clear and timely.

Page 207

1

3.1.4

The NYCC Resilience and Emergencies Team (RET) has continued to play a key
role in the response to Covid-19 including facilitating the delivery of testing. The
NYCC RET, as secretariat for the North Yorkshire Local Resilience Forum (NYLRF),
has also co-ordinated the strategic, tactical and operational multi-agency incident
response across the county.

3.1.5

As the country started to move into the recovery phase of the pandemic, our supply
chains started to see some improvements, however it was evident that there was a
continued need and role for NYCC’s Supply Chain Resilience Board. Working
across the Council our service areas, procurement, commissioning and contract
managers continued to monitor our ‘at risk’ suppliers and providers. The continuation
of the Board has ensured a timely and transparent approach to resilience
issues. The social care sector has been impacted significantly by the pandemic and
we continue to see the effects on this sector in particular. In order to aid a transition
into a new business as usual, governance has been developed and implemented at
pace to help and support this market from a sustainability and resilience perspective.

3.1.6

The County Council has followed government guidance in respect of working
arrangements throughout the course of the pandemic. Where possible staff have
been advised to work from home. Where it has not been possible for staff to work
from home strict Covid secure measures have been established, including social
distancing, enhanced cleaning regimes and increased ventilation. It is expected that
the current working arrangements will largely remain the same until the spring but
that, thereafter, staff will be encouraged to adopt more hybrid working, to include a
combination of home and office based working, according to the requirements of
service management. The County Council’s Modern Council programme will
continue to review the requirements for technology and property to ensure that staff
are able to work efficiently in the context of the revised working arrangements. Any
Government guidance in respect of Covid mitigation will continue to be monitored to
ensure the health and safety of staff and other building users.

3.1.7

At the point of lockdown, all staff who were able to were obliged to work from home.
This work from home policy has been in place, to varying degrees in line with
government guidance, throughout 2020/21 and 2021/22. Support services adapted
well to this new way of working and helped to ensure the Council was still able to
perform as effectively as possible across all its services. In particular, ICT services
have been vital to ensure staff have been able to work in an agile way throughout the
pandemic and on the whole, technology has worked well and has been appreciated
and well received by staff. Looking ahead, as Covid restrictions are lifted, a greater
number of staff will be seeking to return to an office environment and where that
occurs, it is important to do so in a safe fashion as set out above. To this end,
working groups were established to develop proposals for what a ‘new normal’ way
of working may look like and these proposals shared with staff. Implementation has
been delayed due to the emergence of the Omicron variant at the end of 2021 but
are expected to be rolled out further during 22/23 in line with the end of restrictions.

3.2

I.T. Security

3.2.1

Cyber-attacks on individuals and organisations continue to be a constant threat and
at times we can see significant levels of activity against our network, Local Councils
have been impacted by successful attacks. Notable examples exist across the Public
Sector including Redcar & Cleveland and the London Borough of Hackney in 2020
with both having service delivery seriously impacted. More recently Gloucester City
Council have been hit for the second time with online services affected and estimate
it could take months to fully recover. We continue to follow national advice and
guidance to put in a range of effective measures to protect NYCC as far as

Page 208

2

reasonably possible, and having robust plans in the event that such an attack takes
place.
3.2.2

During the year T&C continue to maintain the technical elements of our security
product portfolio to improve our resilience against cyber-attack and implement any
guidance produced by the National Cyber Security Centre (NCSC) to improve our
overall security posture and have proactively blocked incoming traffic from several
countries when we have noticed elevated malicious activity.

3.2.3

At the beginning of December 2021 a number of vulnerabilities were disclosed
worldwide that affected a commonly used piece of software named Apache Log4j.
This vulnerability was one of the most serious security flaws in the past decade as it
is widely used in many applications and is present in many services as a
dependency. Once notified of the vulnerability T&C implemented measures, including
guidance provided from NCSC and service providers, to mitigate the risk to the
council network and applications and continue to monitor the situation.

3.2.4

The Head of Technology Solutions and the SISCO are continuing work with our
emergency planning team to run awareness sessions with service areas to consider
the impact of a cyber-attack on their ability to deliver services and update their
business continuity plans accordingly.

3.2.5

The Technology and Change service maintained its certification of ISO 27001:2013
Information Security Management System standards which demonstrates we
continue to provide reliable documentation of how the Information Security
Management System (ISMS) is achieving the intended outcomes, and how T&C
continues to focus its efforts on maturing and improving the ISMS and the policies
and procedures to embed information security to further optimise the business
benefits.

3.2.6

All officers of the organisation play an important role in reducing the risk of a
successful cyber-attack and we have rolled out two sets of training to raise
awareness and guidance and test the organisations ability to identify phishing attacks
and improve overall information security awareness.

3.2.7

Throughout the year there have been a few minor incidents involving users clicking
on email links. No matter how good our layers of security, a small percentage of
phishing emails will always get through. These emails tend to be from compromised
external accounts which our security applications see as coming from a legitimate
domain, has a plausible subject line, and does not obviously contain malicious
attachments, which means we are reliant on the vigilance of our staff in recognising
and handling these emails correctly.

3.3

Legal and Democratic Assurance

3.3.1

Part of the role of Central Services is to review risk within the Council and offer
assurance against activity it undertakes. Within Legal and Democratic Services there
are good measures in place to protect the Council through the Legal and Democratic
Services team; including provision of clear advice being provided to all directorates,
regular staff training and development and networking and forums.

3.3.2

As a result of the on going pandemic the changes brought in during 2020 for
meetings and decision taking have continued throughout the past year. The
Council’s Constitution has worked in enabling decision making to continue effectively
with regular reviews of the position by the Council. Where appropriate changes have
been made and as the regulations have become less restrictive ‘in person’ meetings
have taken place with appropriate safeguards. The Democratic services team have
been key in ensuring that the governance arrangements, virtual meetings and

Page 209

3

recording of decisions has continued seamlessly. The legal team has also been key
in ensuring the changes to the procurement regime throughout the pandemic have
been implemented appropriately and the team has also provided particular support in
the area of COVID relief to suppliers ensuring this is documented and state aid/
subsidy control compliant and this is still ongoing.
3.3.3

The Council can be subject to prosecution, but no new prosecutions have been
brought against the authority in the past 2 years.

3.4

Carbon Reduction
A Carbon Reduction Plan has been agreed by the Executive which sets out the
Council’s aspirations and actions in relation to carbon reduction in the context of
national and regional commitments. Central Services teams are part of a dedicated
project team driving the ‘Beyond Carbon’ change programme for North Yorkshire
County Council and to this end a specific risk in relation to Carbon neutrality is
included on the Central Services Risk Register and it is also highlighted as a
corporate objective. A climate change impact assessment tool has been introduced
to enable managers and decision makers to understand and take appropriate action
regarding the carbon implications of the policy and work of the Council. A one-off
£1m pump-priming fund was committed in the Council’s 2021-22 budget and has
enabled the appointment of a dedicated officer and is supporting the development of
business cases to reduce the Council’s carbon footprint.

3.5

Commercial Agenda
North Yorkshire Highways Limited
Central Services teams have played key roles in the successful set up, go live and
ongoing service support to North Yorkshire County Council’s newest wholly owned
teckal company which has been established to deliver highways maintenance
services. This project took significant time and resource from Finance, T&C, HR,
BSS, Legal, Property and Procurement to ensure a successful company could go live
on 1 June 2021 with the appropriate governance and internal control processes in
place. Since go live, central services teams have continued to provide day to day
support to the company through service level agreements and essential support in
resolving issues including system and governance procedures. A new financial
system has been built including coding structures, systems, processes, onboarding of
new suppliers and ensuring software systems communicate with each other.

3.6

Other Issues

3.6.1 Capacity and prioritisation continue to be significant issues in the Directorate,
particularly in light of the challenges that have continued to be presented by Covid
throughout the year and the decision to move forward with Local Government
Reorganisation. In addition to the existing capacity pressures presented by
continuing to deliver Value for Money services, the Beyond 2020 Programme
(including the ongoing need to achieve savings) and the various risks & issues
outlined in this report; the Directorate will play a key supporting role in a range of
wider council initiatives, particularly Local Government Review and Devolution.
3.6.2 Other key issues facing the Directorate, however the detail of those having been
covered elsewhere through the Audit Committee programme of work, include:

Property portfolio and rationalisation

Information security

Beyond 2020

Page 210

4

4.0

Directorate Risk Register

4.1

The Directorate Risk Register (DRR) is the end product of a systematic process that
initially identifies risks at Service level, which then aggregates these via a sieving
process to Directorate level. A similar process sieves Directorate level risks into the
Corporate Risk Register.

4.2

The Risk Prioritisation System used to derive risk registers across the County Council
categorises risks as follows:

Category 1 and 2 are high risk (RED)

Category 3 and 4 are medium risk (AMBER)

Category 5 is low risk (GREEN)
The DRR represents the principal risks that may materially impact on the
performance and financial outcomes of the Directorate.

4.3

A summary of the DRR is attached at Appendix A. As well as providing a quick
overview of the risks and their ranking, it also provides details of the change or
movement in the ranking of the risk since the last review in the left hand column.

4.4

The latest detailed DRR is shown at Appendix B showing a range of key risks with
existing controls and additional actions to minimise them. The detail also shows a
ranking of the risks both at the present time and after mitigating action.

4.5

An annual and interim review of the Risk Register has taken place since the last
report to this Committee. The last review was carried out in February 2022. The
Risk Register reflects the range of services but also includes many corporate
initiatives given the leadership role of Central Services on such issues as the
Information Governance and Security and Health and Safety risks.

4.6

The Risk Register continues with many risks that have previously been present but
there has been the following changes since the last progress report to this
Committee:
New risks
North Yorkshire Transformation Programme risk – this risk is effectively a new risk as
it changed its title and emphasis from the Beyond 2020 Change Programme and now
particularly focusses on the Local Government Reorganisation (LGR) transition work
which is substantial. However transformational work continues as time allows
alongside LGR.
Deleted risks
No risks have been deleted.
Other Notable Changes/Actions Information Governance and Security risk – this risk
has been expanded and includes further emphasis on cyber security and also
includes reference to the Brierley Group companies.
i)
Effectiveness, Capacity and Skills of Staff and Workplace Health and Wellbeing
risk – previously this risk was expanded to include workplace health and
wellbeing. The risk has further expanded to include the impact of LGR and
transition work.
ii)
Commercial Strategy risk – this risk has changed emphasis to the governance
arrangements and commercial financial issues of Brierley Group companies.
iii)
Significant Incidents risk – this risk includes reference to supporting the refugee
resettlement in the County and closer partnership working with the City of York
Council.

Page 211

5

5.0

Recommendation

5.1

That the Committee:
i)
Note the position on the Central Services Directorate key governance issues;
ii)
Note the Directorate Risk Register for the Central Services Directorate; and
iii)
Provide feedback and comments on the Directorate Risk Register and any
other related internal control issues.

GARY FIELDING
Corporate Director, Strategic Resources
March 2022

Page 212

6

Central Services Directorate

Appendix A

Risk Register: month 6 (February 2022) – summary
Next review due: July 2022
Report Date: 24th February2022 (pw)

Identity
Change



Risk Title

15/161 - Information
Governance and
Security (corporate
risk)

Person

Risk Description

Ineffective information governance
arrangements lead to unacceptable levels of
unauthorised disclosure of personal and
sensitive data, poor quality or delayed
responses to FoI requests, and inability to locate
key data upon which the Council relies resulting Chief
in loss of reputation, poor decision making, fine, Exec
etc (including Brierley Group companies) Failure
to put in place the appropriate cyber security
arrangements could potentially lead to data
breach, loss of data, loss of systems, loss of
reputation



15/162 - Effectiveness,
Capacity and Skills of
Staff and Workplace
Health and Wellbeing
(including impact of
LGR)

Page 213



Failure to deliver a coherent NY transformation
15/11 - North Yorkshire
programme which meets the needs of LGR
Transformation
transition, service operational requirements and
Programme
savings requirements





Classification
Fallback Plan
Pre
RR
Post
Risk
Risk
Action
FBPlan
Next
Owner Manager Prob Obj Fin Serv Rep Cat RRs
Manager
Prob Obj Fin Serv Rep Cat
Action

A lack of capacity and skills within Central
Services together with insufficiently supported
staff leads to a significant decline in
effectiveness, service quality &/or insufficient
progress in carrying out multiple priority areas
including the LGR transition, Covid and Covid
recovery alongside existing responsibilities.

CD SR

H

L

M

L

H

1

12 30/04/2022 M

L

M

L

H

2

Y

CD SR

Chief
Exec

CD SR

H

H

H

H

H

1

5 31/03/2022 M

H

H

H

H

2

Y

All Mgt
Board

Chief
Exec

CSD Mgt
Team

H

M

L

M

M

2

10 31/07/2022

M

L

M

L

2

Y

CSD Mgt
Team

CSD Mgt
Team

M

M M

M

H

2

6 31/03/2022 M

M M

M

H

2

Y

CSD Mgt
Team

CSD Mgt
Team

M

M

M

M

2

5 30/09/2022

M

M

M

3

Y

Chief Exec

Failure to both put effective governance
arrangements in place (including transparency
and oversight for commercial operations) and
15/201 - Commercial appropriately influence commercial financial
Chief
Strategy
targets (eg. NY Brierley Group companies and
Exec
NYES) commercial investments and commercial
ventures particularly arising through LGR leading
to poor decision making and financial loss.
Failure to deliver the Central Services savings
plan as set out in the MTFS resulting in inability to
15/184 - Central
Chief
meet the budget, rationalise support services
Services Savings Plan
Exec
and enable the programme

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

H

H

L

H

Page 7 of 2

Central Services Directorate

Appendix A

Risk Register: month 6 (February 2022) – summary
Next review due: July 2022
Report Date: 24th February2022 (pw)

Identity

Person

Classification
Fallback Plan
RR
Post
Risk
Risk
Action
FBPlan
Owner Manager Prob Obj Fin Serv Rep Cat RRs Next Prob Obj Fin Serv Rep Cat
Manager
Action
Pre

Change

Risk Title

Risk Description



15/183 - Health &
Safety

Major Corporate Health and Safety failure
resulting in injuries, claims, reputational and
service delivery impact and possible
prosecution (this includes the impact of Covid,
associated emerging variants and LGR)

15/200 - Significant
Incidents (Corporate)



15/243 - Carbon
Neutral

Page 214





15/29 - Corporate
Governance and
Ensuring Legality

L

M M

M

H

3

7 31/03/2022

L

M M

M

H

3

Y

CSD SR
HoHSRM

Chief
Chief Exec
Exec

L

L

H

L

H

3

8 30/04/2022

L

L

H

L

M

3

Y

Chief Exec

Chief
Exec

CSD AD
PPC

L

L

M

L

H

3

3 31/03/2022

L

L

M

L

H

3

N

Failure to ensure adequate Corporate
Governance arrangements across the County
Council to ensure that the Council acts lawfully
in its operations and decision making resulting in
inadequate control and stewardship; given the
Chief
environment of greater risk taking and
Exec
expansion of the types of activities the Council is
now involved in resulting in challenge and non
delivery of decisions, financial implications and
loss of reputation particularly given service and
statutory obligations

CSD ACE
LDS

M

L

M

M

M

4

13 31/07/2022 M

L

M

M

M

4

Y

Failure to plan, respond to and recover
effectively from significant incidents in the
community resulting in risk to life and limb,
impact on statutory responsibilities, impact on
financial stability and reputation
Failure to support the Council’s aspiration to
achieve carbon neutrality by 2030 resulting in
unmet public expectation and missed
opportunities for energy spend reduction

Chief
Exec

CD SR

CSD ACE
LDS

Key
Risk Ranking has worsened since last
review.





Risk Ranking has improved since last review

- new -

New or significantly altered risk

Risk Ranking is same as last review

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Page 8 of 2

Central Services Directorate

Appendix B

Risk Register: month 6 (Feb 2022) – detailed
Next review due: July 2022
Report Date: 24th February 2022 (pw)

Phase 1 - Identification
Risk
15/161
Number

Risk Title

Risk
Chief Exec
Owner

15/161 - Information Governance and Security (corporate risk)

Manager CD SR

Ineffective information governance arrangements lead to unacceptable levels of unauthorised disclosure of personal and
sensitive data, poor quality or delayed responses to FoI requests, and inability to locate key data upon which the Council
Risk
Legislative
Description relies resulting in loss of reputation, poor decision making, fine, etc (including Brierley Group companies) Failure to put in
Group
place the appropriate cyber security arrangements could potentially lead to data breach, loss of data, loss of systems, loss of
reputation

Risk Type

Corp
20/187

Phase 2 - Current Assessment

Current Control Measures

Page 215

Probability H

Objectives

Information Governance Strategy including the associated Policy and Procedure Framework; CIGG Action Plan; data breach process;
messages from senior management; on-line training; staff induction; Information Asset Owners identified; information asset registers regularly
updated; Internal Data Governance team with an identified representative for each Directorate (replacing DIGCs); Veritau appointed as
DPO; posters; intranet information; regular monitoring of electronic communication by T&C; series of unannounced security compliance visits
by internal audit Brierley Group companies’ information governance procedures in place;
FoI – controls include central monitoring of receipt and progress, regular review by Veritau and review of outstanding cases by the Chief
Exec on a monthly basis; proactive monitoring of all data; terms of reference reviewed; Veritau investigate significant data breaches; CIGG
consider reasons for data breaches and cascade lessons learned; secure physical storage and internal info transfer issues resolved; e
learning training packages refreshed; Information Sharing Protocol in place;
SAR - controls include central monitoring of receipt and progress; refreshed Information Governance page on intranet; Information
Governance risk register completed; Data Quality Improvement Action Plan agreed; DPIAs in place;
Cyber Security - application of all the features of the Information Security Management System (ISMS);cyber prevention tools are kept up to
date; security team in place; Non NYCC Network Access Policy produced; e learning training packages refreshed; targeted phishing
campaign; Directorates’ discussion on the potential outcome of a cyber-attack carried out; regular updates and awareness
communications to staff;
L

Financial

M

Services

L

Reputation H

Category 1

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions
Action Manager
15/423 - Continue to emphasise personal responsibility of staff for all information in this area and consider disciplinary action in CD SR
cases of data breaches
CSD ACE BS
CSD SR AD T&C
Reduction 15/424 - Continue to review information asset registers and target training where appropriate (ongoing) (Info Gov)
Ho Int Audit
15/426 - Continue to ensure individual information sharing agreements completed for each data sharing activity - (ongoing)
Ho Int Audit
Reduction
(Info Gov)
15/431 - Continue to work within services in a prioritised order to ensure information (electronic and physical) is secure and
CSD SR AD T&C
Reduction
transferred securely (ongoing) (linked to Microsoft 365 roll out)

Reduction

15/433 - Put in place a system to ensure regular communications to staff to ensure good Information Governance including

Action
by
Wed-31Aug-22
Wed-31Aug-22
Wed-31Aug-22
Wed-31Aug-22

Reduction messages from Management Board and associated campaigns

CSD SR AD T&C

Wed-31Aug-22

Reduction 15/611 - Ensure Data Protection risks are managed to comply with UK GDPR (ongoing)

CSD SR AD T&C

Wed-31Aug-22

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Completed

Page 9 of 2

Central Services Directorate

Appendix B

Risk Register: month 6 (Feb 2022) – detailed
Next review due: July 2022
Report Date: 24th February 2022 (pw)
15/612 - Data Quality Improvement - implement an action plan to address the Data Quality issues that are impacting on the
Reduction accuracy of operational management information, performance reports, transparency publications and statutory returns
(Info Gov)
15/613 - Documents and Record Management - implement the approach to document and records management and
Reduction storage with the Council that encompasses both physical and electronic information (linked to Microsoft 365 roll out) (Info
Gov)
15/636 - Review existing training and continue to develop and implement appropriate training relating to quality and security
Reduction
of information

Reduction 15/793 - Review impact on Veritau and audit days required and implement actions required (ongoing)

Fri-30Sep-22

CSD SR AD T&C

Wed-31Aug-22

CSD SR AD T&C
Ho Int Audit
CD SR

15/1105 - Review and revise Business Continuity Plans with Directorates to take into account actions required following a

Wed-31Aug-22
Wed-31Aug-22

CSD SR AD T&C

Thu-30Jun-22

15/1956 - Ensure information governance requirements are in place for wholly owned companies (review Information
CSD AD SR (VD)
Governance Procedures in place for each of the Brierley Group companies to ensure they are up to date and fit for purpose)

Sat-30Apr-22

Reduction cyber-attack (Cyber Security)
Reduction

CSD SR AD T&C

Page 216

Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment
Probability M
Objectives

L

Financial

M

Services

L

Reputation H

Category 2

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan
Action Manager

Fallback
15/514 - Review Action Plan and new technology and continue to raise awareness. Invite ICO to carry out an audit of NYCC IG systems
Plan

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

CD SR

Page 10 of
2

Central Services Directorate

Appendix B

Risk Register: month 6 (Feb 2022) – detailed
Next review due: July 2022
Report Date: 24th February 2022 (pw)

Phase 1 - Identification
Risk
15/11
Risk Title
Number

15/11 - North Yorkshire Transformation Programme

Failure to deliver a coherent NY transformation programme which meets the needs of LGR transition,

Description service operational requirements and savings requirements

Risk Owner Chief Exec

Manager CD SR

Risk Group Strategic

Risk Type 20/207

Corp

Phase 2 - Current Assessment
Current Control Measures
Probability H

Objectives

Transformation programme; review of areas of overspend and actions to mitigate; review (deep dives) into specific high-risk base budgets such as HAS
Care and Support, SEN Transport, and Home to School transport carried out; BEST approach embedded into service planning; performance monitoring
through Q reports; emerging LGR transition work streams; PMO in place; LGR governance agreed;
H

Financial

H

Services

Reputation H

H

Category 1

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions
Action Manager
Reduction 15/634 - Continue to identify the output from LGR transition work streams and resource accordingly

Action by

CSD SR AD T&C

Fri-31-Mar-23

CSD ACE LDS

Fri-31-Mar-23

Reduction 15/831 - Develop a consolidated programme plan

CSD SR AD T&C

Thu-31-Mar22

Reduction 15/865 - Deliver a consolidated programme plan

All Mgt Board

Fri-31-Mar-23

All Mgt Board

Fri-31-Mar-23

Reduction

15/635 - Identify all statutory and policy driven initiatives across the Council which require some form of
transformation

Page 217

15/867 - Continue to review and transform operational service requirements as part of the Programme in

Reduction order to maximise efficiency

Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment
Probability M
Objectives H

Financial

H

Services

H

Reputation H

Completed

Category 2

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan
Action Manager
Fallback
15/561 - Carry out a full review and ensure an effective revision of the programme plan
Plan

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

All Mgt Board

Page 11 of
2

Central Services Directorate

Appendix B

Risk Register: month 6 (Feb 2022) – detailed
Next review due: July 2022
Report Date: 24th February 2022 (pw)

Phase 1 - Identification
Risk
Number

15/162

Risk Title

15/162 - Effectiveness, Capacity and Skills of Staff and Workplace Health and Wellbeing
(including impact of LGR)

A lack of capacity and skills within Central Services together with insufficiently supported staff leads to a significant
Description decline in effectiveness, service quality &/or insufficient progress in carrying out multiple priority areas including the LGR
transition, Covid and Covid recovery alongside existing responsibilities.

CSD

Risk
Chief Exec
Owner

Manager Mgt

Risk
Capacity
Group

Risk Type

Team

Phase 2 - Current Assessment

Current Control Measures

Probability H

Objectives

Reviewing of Transformation resources; savings re-profiled and included in budget/MTFS report; Looking After You North Yorkshire intranet area;
#askSAL; return to office based work risk assessments and induction; Corporate Workplace Health and Wellbeing Group established including
Directorate representatives; Boost H&W intranet pages; Health Assured 24 staff care network helpline; post established within H&W to lead on
development of H&W promotion materials for the workforce; communications plan established including regular intranet communications on health
and wellbeing campaigns and initiatives, 6 weekly blog; regular updates to HRSMT and Corporate Management Board; procurement of extra
resources for LGR transition; review priorities of systems and projects across the Council; funding secured for LGR transition additional support; support
groups and diversity networks protected characteristics established and process in place to add further groups and networks;
M

Financial

L

Services

Reputation M

M

Category 2

Page 218

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions
Action Manager
15/111 - Regularly perform skills gap analysis and review succession planning based on current and future requirements

Reduction and use to inform CS workforce training plan and monitor effectiveness

CSD Mgt Team

Reduction 15/475 - Continue to prioritise and manage pressures on services on an ongoing basis

CSD Mgt Team

Reduction 15/520 - Identify and secure additional capacity following procurement to support the LGR transition (start Nov 2021)

CSD SR AD T&C

Reduction 15/591 - Collaborative working between District and County Councils’ staff to address transition work

CSD Mgt Team

Reduction

18/819 - Continue to enable staff to initiate and develop initiatives to improve their health and wellbeing at work including
HAS HoHR
the long term effect of Covid
18/820 - Progress a series of health and wellbeing initiatives (eg. Introduction of eBikes; wellbeing roadshows; local yoga

Reduction classes; craft groups; green gym; walking / running groups etc including the long term effect of Covid

HAS HoHR

Reduction 18/821 - Continued promotion of good mental health including Mental Health Awareness week activities

HAS HoHR

Reduction

18/823 - Establish new post of Workplace Health Improvement Adviser within the Health and Wellbeing Team to develop
and deliver a proactive health and wellbeing offer.

Reduction 18/824 - Develop wellbeing spaces in major offices and workplaces

HAS HoHR
HAS HoHR

18/825 - Establish diversity networks protected characteristics and a range of support groups for staff including: Parenting;

Reduction Carers; Parents of Children with Autism; Menopause; Mens Health

HAS HoHR

Action
by

Completed

Wed-31Aug-22
Wed-31Aug-22
Fri-31Mar-23
Fri-31Mar-23
Sun-31Jul-22
Sun-31Jul-22
Sun-31Jul-22
Sat-31-JulWed-30-Jun-21
21
Sun-31Jul-22
Sat-31-JulWed-30-Jun-21
21

Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Page 12 of
2

Central Services Directorate
Risk Register: month 6 (Feb 2022) – detailed
Next review due: July 2022
Report Date: 24th February 2022 (pw)
Probability H
Objectives M

Financial

L

Appendix B

Services

M

Reputation L

Category 2

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan
Action Manager
Fallback
15/515 - Review and revise resource allocation where possible and consider additional funding and capacity where required
Plan

CSD Mgt Team

Page 219
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Page 13 of
2

Central Services Directorate

Appendix B

Risk Register: month 6 (Feb 2022) – detailed
Next review due: July 2022
Report Date: 24th February 2022 (pw)

Phase 1 - Identification
Risk
15/201
Number

Risk Title

15/201 - Commercial Strategy

Failure to both put effective governance arrangements in place (including transparency and oversight for commercial
Description operations) and appropriately influence commercial financial targets (eg. NY Brierley Group companies and NYES) commercial
investments and commercial ventures particularly arising through LGR leading to poor decision making and financial loss.

CSD

Risk
Chief Exec
Owner

Manager Mgt

Risk
Strategic
Group

Risk Type

Team

Phase 2 - Current Assessment

Current Control Measures

Probability M

Objectives

Brierley Group of Companies (including NYES); Brierley Group Board; Shareholder Committee; regular reports to Overview and
Scrutiny Committee; Brierley Group companies business plans in place; commercial challenge sessions for each company on an
annual basis; Brierley Group Performance report on a quarterly basis; selection criteria for commercial opportunities; NYCC
Commercial: Commercial strategy; service plan challenge sessions on an annual basis; Commercial Investments Board; investment
decisions scrutinised; decision process for investments in place; internal communications plan to publicise the Commercial Strategy;
LGR work streams and governance processes;
M

Financial

M

Services

M

Reputation H

Category 2

Page 220

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions
Action Manager

Reduction 15/609 - Review and refresh training modules on commercial and take appropriate actions

CSD AD SR (VD)

Reduction 15/610 - Ensure appropriate visibility around commercial decision making eg purchase of asset for dementia village

CSD AD SR (VD)

Action
by
Thu-31Mar-22
Sat-31Dec-22

CD SR
CSD ACE BS
CSD AD SR (VD)

Fri-31Mar-23

15/781 - Ensure full awareness of developments and changes to legislation and/or guidance that affect commercial investment
CSD AD SR (VD)
s in a detrimental way (ongoing)
CSD AD SR (HE)
Reduction 15/783 - Carry out a review and restructure of support of Commissioning and Contract Management
CSD HoP&CM

Fri-31Mar-23
Sat-31Dec-22

Reduction

15/721 - Ensure the Council takes advantage of available central government incentives such as grants and any potential
funding is monitored, together with engagement in relevant consultations

Reduction

15/784 - Ensure commercial ventures are an integral part of the LGR work streams to ensure appropriate oversight and

Reduction understanding of risk

Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment
Probability M
Objectives

M

Financial

M

Services

CSD AD SR (VD)

M

Completed

Fri-31Mar-23

Reputation H

Category 2

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan
Action
Manager
Fallback
15/550 - Review financial position and invoke budget cuts as necessary
Plan
Phase 1 - Identification

CSD Mgt Team

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Page 14 of
2

Central Services Directorate

Appendix B

Risk Register: month 6 (Feb 2022) – detailed
Next review due: July 2022
Report Date: 24th February 2022 (pw)

Risk
15/184
Number
Description

Risk Title 15/184 - Central Services Savings Plan

Failure to deliver the Central Services savings plan as set out in the MTFS resulting in inability to meet
the budget, rationalise support services and enable the programme

Risk Owner

Chief Exec

Manager

Risk Group

Financial

Risk Type

CSD Mgt
Team

Phase 2 - Current Assessment
Current Control Measures
Probability M

CS Management Team meetings; AD T&C providing CS Programme updates to CSMT and Programme Board; individual project monitoring
regimes with RAG status; nominated lead officers and associated governance structure; CS programme plan; business mandates; briefs and
business cases as appropriate; savings re-profiled and included in budget/MTFS report; Beyond 2020 programme developed;

Objectives M

Financial

H

Services

Reputation

M

M

Category 2

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions
Action Manager
Reduction 15/182 - Ongoing review of impact at Management Teams and overall consideration at CSMT

CD SR

Reduction 15/183 - Periodic reviews at Programme Board

CD SR

Action
by

Page 221

Fri-30Sep-22
Fri-30Sep-22
Fri-30Sep-22

Reduction 15/184 - Implementation of plans of individual projects

CSD Mgt Team

Reduction 15/185 - Secure commercial opportunities where appropriate

CSD Mgt Team

Fri-30Sep-22

Reduction 15/208 - Reassessment of savings alongside Covid and LGR pressures

CSD Mgt Team

Fri-30Sep-22

Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment
Probability L
Objectives M

Financial

H

Services

M

Completed

Reputation

M

Category 3

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan
Action Manager
Fallback
15/540 - Review savings plan and implement alternative savings
Plan

Chief Exec

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Page 15 of
2

Central Services Directorate

Appendix B

Risk Register: month 6 (Feb 2022) – detailed
Next review due: July 2022
Report Date: 24th February 2022 (pw)

Phase 1 - Identification
Risk
15/183
Number
Description

Risk Title

15/183 - Health & Safety

Major Corporate Health and Safety failure resulting in injuries, claims, reputational and service delivery impact
and possible prosecution (this includes the impact of Covid, associated emerging variants and LGR)

Risk
Chief Exec
Owner
Risk
Legislative
Group

Manager CD SR
Risk Type SR 32/194

Phase 2 - Current Assessment
Current Control Measures
Probability L

Objectives

HSRM Service Plan feeding into Directorate Action Plans; H&S team; Corporate H&S Policy; Corporate and Directorate H&S procedures;
intranet and NYES sites; Directorate RM groups; H&S Champions and lead officers; reporting on a regular basis; on-going H&S risk assessment,
training, monitoring and audit (including the checking and advising on Covid controls); managers’ and employees’ online H&S training and
other modules; shared service with City of York Council and deliver to 4 of the 7 District Councils subject to LGR; BondApp B-Safe system
implemented;
M

Financial

M

Services

M

Reputation H

Category 3

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions
Action Manager

Page 222

15/248 - Continue delivery of the programme of H&S monitoring of audits and inspections (and ensuring that all

Reduction visits and the premises being visited that are undertaken are Covid Secure) or Covid Secure by Design (ongoing) CSD SR HoHSRM
15/255 - Ensure appropriate operating standards of H&S risk assessments exist and are being implemented locally

Reduction this includes considering Covid related risks (especially the more transmissible variants) across the NYCC property CSD SR HoHSRM

Action by

Completed

Wed-31-Aug-22
Wed-31-Aug-22

portfolio

15/257 - Review and revise the corporate H&S procedures alongside alignment with the Safety Management

Reduction System (intranet revision has taken place, Safety Management System to complete) (ongoing)

CSD SR HoHSRM

Wed-31-Aug-22

15/417 - Consider H&S implications of significant changes for delivery of services within the Council and factor into
Directorate H&S action plans (this includes the risks from Covid and revised priorities due to the pandemic being
CSD SR HoHSRM
Reduction reflected in action plans particularly over the winter 2021/22 when there may be increased risk from influenza)
(ongoing)

Wed-31-Aug-22

15/651 - Ensure understanding of H&S operating environment of NYCC through regular attendance at Corporate

Reduction and Directorate Risk Management Groups, and develop H&S Improvement Plans which are agreed by the

CSD SR HoHSRM

Wed-31-Aug-22

CSD SR HoHSRM

Thu-31-Mar-22

CSD SR HoHSRM

Fri-31-Mar-23

relevant Groups (particularly reflecting risks from Covid and revised priorities due to the pandemic). (ongoing)
15/837 - Report on accident and incident data from the BondApp B-Safe system to identify areas of concern

Reduction and/or under reporting. And implementation of Risk Assessment and Safe System of Work modules
Reduction

15/866 - Consider requirements relating to H&S policies and procedures in relation to the transition to the new
unitary Council and put together an action plan

Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment
Probability L
Objectives

M

Financial

M

Services

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

M

Reputation H

Category 3

Page 16 of
2

Central Services Directorate

Appendix B

Risk Register: month 6 (Feb 2022) – detailed
Next review due: July 2022
Report Date: 24th February 2022 (pw)

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan
Action Manager
Fallback
15/538 - Liaise with HSE, media management, implement fatal/serious injury response guide
Plan

CSD SR HoHSRM

Page 223
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Page 17 of
2

Central Services Directorate

Appendix B

Risk Register: month 6 (Feb 2022) – detailed
Next review due: July 2022
Report Date: 24th February 2022 (pw)

Phase 1 - Identification
Risk
15/200
Number
Description

Risk Title

Risk
Owner
Risk
Group

15/200 - Significant Incidents (Corporate)

Failure to plan, respond to and recover effectively from significant incidents in the community resulting in risk to
life and limb, impact on statutory responsibilities, impact on financial stability and reputation

Chief Exec

Manager Chief Exec

Performance

Risk Type

Corp
20/244

Phase 2 - Current Assessment

Current Control Measures

Page 224

Probability L

Objectives

NYLRF and RMCI; experience and resources of partners; existing plans incl public health (training and exercises); RET; partnership working with
District Councils; community resilience; silver response in the County Council major incident plan tested; approach to BCP refreshed to strengthen
service resilience; Resilience Direct portal; regional multi agency pandemic exercise held; effectiveness and robustness of resilience plans relating
to the public health and social care of the NY population tested; NYCC action plan developed and implemented based on the debrief report
recommendations and all multi agency learning (including the flood reporting tool and simplification of information flow); members of national
steering group on volunteers; BCP post audit action plan; Multi Agency cyber threat event held; Ready for Anything campaign; provided input to
and engaged with national learning and development of best practice following incidents locally, regionally and nationally; use of Office 365
tools to increase engagement and response capability in effective planning and coordination of incidents; increased team to support Covid
response and ability to deal with concurrent incidents; LRF workplan through to 2024; partnership work with Directorates, District Councils, Migration
Yorkshire and other partners to support refugee resettlement in the County.
L

Financial

Services

H

Reputation H

L

Category 3

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions
Action Manager

15/614 - Continue to work with our partners in Public Health England, the NHS and the wider North Yorkshire
Dir Public Health
Reduction
local resilience forum to share the information and messages of reassurance being issued by the lead agencies

Reduction 15/637 - Continue to ensure business continuity plans are reviewed, exercised and kept up to date
15/652 - Continue to work with Directorates, District Councils, Migration Yorkshire and other partners to support

Reduction Afghan resettlement, both into permanent housing in the County and whilst in temporary placements

CD SR
CSD AD PPC

Sun-31-Jul22

CSD AD PPC

Sun-31-Jul22

organised by the Home Office in bridging hotels in the County

20/970 - Continue to ensure effective co-ordination and communication with County and District/Borough

Reduction Council services & NYLRF in light of reduction in resources including LGR (ongoing)

Action by

Completed

Sun-31-Jul22
Sun-31-Jul22

20/971 - Continue to ensure effective and efficient processes are embedded amongst all partners to prioritise
CSD AD PPC
work streams (incl. plans, training and exercises) (ongoing)
343/788 - Respond to call to evidence on review of local resilience, National Resilience Strategy and Civil
CSD PPC HoR&E
Reduction
Contingencies Act
343/789 - Progress closer partnership working with City of York; SLA in place to provide services to CoY on a pilot
CSD PPC HoR&E
Reduction
basis.

Sun-31-Jul22
Sat-30-Apr22
Thu-31-MarMon-31-Jan-22
22

Reduction 343/790 - Work through recommendations from Covid debrief to inform responses to future incidents

Sun-31-Jul22

Reduction

Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment
L
Probability L
Objectives

Financial

H

Services

CSD PPC HoR&E

L

Reputation M

Category 3

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Page 18 of
2

Central Services Directorate

Appendix B

Risk Register: month 6 (Feb 2022) – detailed
Next review due: July 2022
Report Date: 24th February 2022 (pw)

Action Manager
Fallback
20/207 - Embedded practice based on Response to Major and Critical Incident protocols
Plan

Chief Exec

Page 225
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Page 19 of
2

Central Services Directorate

Appendix B

Risk Register: month 6 (Feb 2022) – detailed
Next review due: July 2022
Report Date: 24th February 2022 (pw)

Phase 1 - Identification
Risk
15/243
Number

Risk Title

15/243 - Carbon Neutral

Failure to support the Council’s aspiration to achieve carbon neutrality by 2030 resulting in unmet public

Description expectation and missed opportunities for energy spend reduction

Risk Owner Chief Exec

Manager

CSD AD PPC

Risk Group Environmental

Risk Type

PPC 343/241

Phase 2 - Current Assessment
Current Control Measures
Probability L

Objectives

Leadership commitment; Executive task group; Scrutiny working group; street light conversion to LEDs; Corporate Building energy efficiency
schemes; LGA guidance for councillors; Carbon Reduction Plan for Council adopted by Executive & Chief Executive; Beyond Carbon board and
programme management established within B2020 programme; climate change impact assessment tool enables decision makers to better
understand the impact of the decisions that they are being asked to make; £1m pump-priming fund established in MTFS to support
implementation of carbon reduction plan.
L

Financial

M

Services

Reputation

L

Category 3

H

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions
Action Manager

Page 226

343/777 - Utilisation of £1m pump-priming fund established in MTFS to support implementation of carbon
CSD AD PPC
Reduction
reduction plan.

Reduction 343/785 - Integration of carbon reduction plan into council plan and KPIs into Q performance reports

CSD AD PPC

343/786 - Ongoing review of implementation of climate change impact assessment tool to ensure that
that they are being asked to make

Financial

M

Services

L

Completed

Mon-31-Jan-22

Thu-31-Mar22

Reduction it is effective and efficient in enabling decision makers to better understand the impact of the decisions CSD AD PPC

Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment
L
Probability L
Objectives

Action by
Thu-31-Mar22
Thu-31-Mar22

Reputation

H

Category 3

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan
Action Manager
Fallback
Plan

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Page 20 of
2

Central Services Directorate

Appendix B

Risk Register: month 6 (Feb 2022) – detailed
Next review due: July 2022
Report Date: 24th February 2022 (pw)

Phase 1 - Identification
Risk
Number

CSD

Risk
Chief Exec
Owner

Manager ACE

Failure to ensure adequate Corporate Governance arrangements across the County Council to ensure that the Council acts
Risk
lawfully in its operations and decision making resulting in inadequate control and stewardship; given the environment of
Legislative
Description greater risk taking and expansion of the types of activities the Council is now involved in resulting in challenge and non delivery
Group
of decisions, financial implications and loss of reputation particularly given service and statutory obligations

Risk Type 17/6

Risk Title

15/29

15/29 - Corporate Governance and Ensuring Legality

LDS
LDS

Phase 2 - Current Assessment

Current Control Measures

Probability M

Objectives

Lawyers and DSO's engage with 2020 Programme and services; delegation scheme; constitution; training; legislation monitoring and advice
notes/briefings; increased monitoring of committee reports; ACE LDS on MB; Proforma for Executive Reports covering major issues;
Monitoring complaints and commendation policy and system; monitoring of the Forward Plan; Democratic Services IT system; compliance
with rules on access to information; Corporate Governance Officers Group; Local Code of CG; Corporate Governance Checklist; Annual
Governance Statement; Statements of Assurance across the Council; Controls in Risk management, Business Continuity and Information
Governance; views of external Auditors; Audit Committee in-depth consideration; LGA corporate peer review; GDPR impacts understood;
Exec subcommittee and Brierley Board established as part of governance arrangements; introduction of virtual decision making processes
L

Financial

M

Services

M

Reputation M

Category 4

Page 227

Phase 3 - Risk Reduction Actions
Action Manager
CD SR
CSD ACE LDS

Sun-31Jul-22

Reduction 15/251 - Continue to ensure compliance with rules on access to information

CSD ACE LDS

Sun-31Jul-22

Reduction 15/369 - Review decision and procedures after a successful challenge

CSD ACE LDS

Sun-31Jul-22

Reduction

15/57 - Continue to ensure effective monitoring of governance and operational requirements of new legislation (eg. Health
Integration, Combined Authorities) and make sure services and teams are aware impact on their areas

Action
by

15/370 - Ensure early legal advice is provided within the NY Transformation Programme which is particularly important due to
diminishing resources
15/449 - Continue to provide governance and legal advice on key issues (eg. impact of staff shortages due to Covid,
Reduction
devolution, LGR)

Reduction

Reduction 15/513 - Annual Review of Corporate Governance Arrangements by Audit Committee
15/824 - Continue to strengthen links with Directorates including liaison by Monitoring Officer and team with Directorates and

Reduction ensure consultation on legality of major initiatives
Reduction

15/825 - Ongoing monitoring of committee reports and decision making to ensure Council decision making takes account of
relevant considerations including EIAs and consultation requirements

Reduction 15/838 - Carry out mandatory governance training for Members covering key areas eg data protection, ethical standards
Reduction

17/47 - Ensure the council recognises that health integration is a large area of new and complex business that needs the right
approach to ensure sustainable success

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

CSD ACE LDS
CD SR
CSD ACE LDS
CD SR
CSD ACE LDS
CSD ACE LDS
CSD ACE LDS
CSD ACE LDS

Completed

Sun-31Jul-22
Sun-31Jul-22
Fri-31Fri-31-Dec-21
Dec-21
Sun-31Jul-22
Sun-31Jul-22
Sun-31Jul-22
Sun-31Jul-22

Page 21 of
2

Central Services Directorate

Appendix B

Risk Register: month 6 (Feb 2022) – detailed
Next review due: July 2022
Report Date: 24th February 2022 (pw)
17/502 - Ensure we continue to provide adequate support to the newer councillors to enable them to make appropriate
Reduction
decisions within the legislative framework

Reduction 17/588 - Continued liaison with procurement to ensure that processes remain robust and resistant to challenge
17/625 - Ensure the risk of ongoing use of remote access, live broadcast meetings and decisions made by a committee in

Reduction consultation with the Chief Executive Officer continue to be understood
Phase 4 - Post Risk Reduction Assessment
Probability M
Objectives

L

Financial

M

Services

CSD ACE LDS
CSD ACE LDS
CSD ACE LDS

M

Sun-31Jul-22
Sun-31Jul-22
Sun-31Jul-22

Reputation M

Category 4

Phase 5 - Fallback Plan
Action
Manager
Fallback
15/169 - Review failing areas in existing arrangements and plan for improvement
Plan

CSD ACE LDS

Page 228
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Page 22 of
2

AUDIT COMMITTEE - PROGRAMME OF WORK 2022/23
MAR
22

JUNE
22

SEPT
22

OCT
22

Training for Members (as necessary)
Annual Internal Audit Plan
Annual report of Head of Internal Audit

4


2



3

1

Progress Report on Annual Internal Audit Plan
Internal Audit report on Children and YP’s Service
Internal Audit report on Computer Audit/Corporate Themes/Contracts
Internal Audit report on Health and Adult Services
Internal Audit report on BES
Internal Audit report on Central Services



ANNUAL WORKPLAN

NOV
22

DEC
22

MAR
23

Audit Committee Agenda Items

A

Page 229

Statement of Final Accounts including AGS (NYCC + NYPF)
Letter of Representation
Chairman’s Annual Report
Audit Committee - terms of reference / effectiveness
Changes in Accounting Policies
Corporate Governance
– review of Local Code + AGS
– annual report inc re AGS
Risk Management (inc Corporate R/R) – annual report
Partnership Governance – annual report
Information Governance – annual report
Review of Finance,/Contract/Property Procedure Rules
Business Continuity – annual report

C


































Counter Fraud (inc risk assessment) – annual report
Procurement and Contract Management – annual report
CIPFA FM Code
Treasury Management
– Executive February



VFM – annual assurance review
Work Programme
Progress on issues raised by the Committee (inc Treasury Management)














21/03

27/06

19/09

24/10

Agenda planning / briefing meeting
Audit Committee Agenda/Reports deadline
Audit Committee Meeting Dates
=

Internal Audit

=

External Audit

=

Statement of Final Accounts / Governance

=

Other

=

Dates








28/11


C

D
E



OFFICIAL







12/12

20/03

before formal meeting
1 Governance of External Companies (inc NY Highways) &
Commercial Investments
2 LGR Update – MTFS & Governance Issues
3 Pensions Governance
4 Cyber and information security

Agenda Item 16

D
E
A
B




Annual Audit Letter
Annual Audit Plan (NYCC & NYPF)
Annual Report / Letter of the External Auditor (ISA 260)
Interim Audit Report
External Audit Appointments from April 2023

B



This page is intentionally left blank

